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* CORPORATE VISION

‘ ‘ To Be A Preferred Supplier
To The Leading OEMs In The World

* STEPS TOWARDS ATTAINMENT OF THE CORPORATE VISION

‘ Designing our formulations to key customer and segment needs
Excellence in operations
Continuous upgradation of laboratories

Planned investments in R&D

Employee involvement through training programs for skill development
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ﬁ CHAIRMAN STATEMENT

It gives me immense pleasure to present 23" Annual
Report before all of you. | am very optimistic for che
current year, that we will see the government in action
taking initiatives for the development of the Country.
The Prime Minister of India, consistent with his
election promises, and the objective of removing
poverty by creating productive jobs in the
manufacturing sector. The government is working on
the micro level, many changes have been made in che
system, rules and regulations so as to promote the
industrial development. The Government of India is
working on 340 poines regime ac state and central
level, the work is simultaneously going on and | am very
optimistic that the impact will be seen in 2017-18.
Huge investment is being made in infrascruccure
creating big employment opportunities, which will
make the things turnaround.

A Texture For Every Idea

India has emerged as the fastest growing major econoimy
in the warld as per the Central Scacistics Organisation
(CSO) and International Monetary Fund (IMF).
According to the Economic Survey 2015-16, the Indian
economy will continue to grow 7.4 per centin 2016-17

The improvement in India's economic fundamentals has
accelerated in the year 2015 with the combined impact
of strong government reforms, RBl's inflation focus
supported by benign global commodicy prices.

India was ranked the highest globally in terms of
consumer confidence during October-December
quarter of 2015, continuing its earlier trend of being
ranked the highest during first three quarters of 2015, as
per the global consumer confidence index created by
Nielsen.

Furthermeore, initiatives like Make in India and Digital
India, 'Start Up India, Stand Up India' and 'Ease of Doing
Business' and projected India as an important
destination for manufacturing activity, it will take a while
before they translate on the ground will play a vital role
in driving the Indian economy.

The year 2015-16 was a year of challenge, the prices of
the crude was down substantially, our 80% raw material
is based on crude oil.The benefit of reduction in crude
prices has been passed on the our customers.The Indian
auto industry is one of the largest in the world and is
growing at the great pace awing to a growing middle
class and a young population. India is also a prominent
auto exporter and has strong export growth
expectations for the near future. The auto industry
produced a total 19.84 million vehicles in April-January
2016, including passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles,
three wheelers and two wheelers, as against 19.64
million in April-January 2015.The Government of India
encourages foreign investment in the automobile sector
and allows 100 per cent FDI under the automatic route.
The government is also taking the initiative to promote
the automotive industry such as to set up a separate
independent Department for Transport, comprising of
experts from the automobile sector to resolve issues
such as those related to fuel technology, motor body
specifications and fuel emissions, apart from exports.
Mayur being the leader in the synthetic leather industry
has been beneficced a lot with the increasing demand of
the synthetic leather from the aucomative sector. Mayur
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has been focusing on clients requiring higher value
added products for high end vehicles viz. M&M, Ford and
GM where realizations are much higher than chose
offered by OEMs that cater to the mass market,

Over the last 4 years, Mayur has added clients such as
Ford and Chrysler in the US and is currently in
discussions various companies. Exports are expected to
grow by FY17E and its current contribution is 26% of
Total Sales (Standalone basis).

Mayur has been facusing on the domestic replacement
market for automobile seats, a high-growth user
segment for the synthetic leather industry, marked by
the presence of several unorganized players. However,
the trend has been changing with organized players
witnessing high growth, and Mayur emerging as a big
beneficiary with its segment revenues being the leader in
the industry.

Currently,we are in discussion with Automotive giants in
USA. We expect a good growth 12-15% in Auto sector;
therefore, we are concentrating more and more on Auto
Exportand Auto Domestic OEM.In the last 4 years Auto
replacement has also decent growth, presenting the
good opportunity to your company.

In the general export, our first thrust is on adding new
geographical areas and we are getting good response.
The growth was |3.5% in 2015- 16 and expect the similar
growth this year inspite of big recession in oil producing
countries,

Mayur supplies synthetic leather to footwear segment.
Footwear industry was a concern for the synthetic
leather manufactures. The emerging market witnessed
slow down because of tight money market conditions.
Your company has taken cautious approach in supplies
to avoid the bad debts.The things have started returning
to normalcy and we are expecting this sector to grow by
[0-15%. Your Company derives its revenue from the
footwear industry serving clients including Bata, Action,
Liberty, Relaxo, VKT group, Paragon among others.The
domestic footwear market is dominated by unorganized
players who account for nearly 65-70% of the total
market, with organised players constituting the rest
However, with increasing brand awareness, organised
players are seeing induscry-leading growth aver the past
few years.

You, as our shareholders, have shown great faith and
belief in what we are doing and that gives us the strength
and determinarion to keep exceeding your expecrtations.
Your Company in financial year 2015-16 has shown the
good performance with standalone Profic After Tax
(PAT) of Rs.8251.29 lacs i.e.25.21 % over previous year.

Curing che financial year 2015-2016, the Company has
incorporated the wholly owned subsidiary company in
the name of Mayur Uniguoters Corp. in Texas, USA to
facilitate its export business in abroad.

Your c¢ompany believes in Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR} and undertaken accivities
accordingly.

The challenge before the Country inter alia is
unemployment. To combat unemployment, we need
more industries and create employable youth, for that
we have to enhance our education system and skill
development. Your company is committed to achieve
and had adopted 10 Government Schools in financial
year 2015-16 and we plan to adopt at leasc 50
Government Schools and committed to make these
schools as a“Model Schools™ under CSR initiatives.

Your company continues to believe in excellence in
delivering services seasoned with good business ethics.
We rtarget high cuscomer sacisfaction, employee
satisfaction and maximum revenue generation from all
that we undertake.VVe aim to extract maximum benefit
from the business opportunities that we foresee, hand in
hand with our trained and skilled team and teamworlk.

We look forward for the continuing support and
encouragement from all our stakeholders, bankers,
customers, vendors, employees, government authorities
and all thase who directly or indirectly helped us to
achieve our goals. In the end, | would like to thank the
Mayur ceam for their determination and hard work to
take the company to soaring new heights.

Thanks and Jai Hind
Best Regards,

Suresh Kumar Poddar
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN :-00022395

Jaipur, 27" May,2016
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* BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar {69 years) is a B.Sc. (Science Graduate) Chairman and Managing
Director is widely recognized for his path breaking and visionary contributions made to the
Indian synthetic leather industry. His excellent entrepreneurial skills has made Mayur
Uniquoters Limited, is the largest manufaceurer of synthetic leather and che producer from
India supplying to Norch American Automotive majors.

Mr. Poddar has invested time and money in people, technology and processes to create an
efficient and progressive organization with a total production capacity of over 3.05 million
linear meters per month making Mayur one of the largest manufacturer of Artificial Leather/
PVCVinyl in India. Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar halds 1, 56,87,324 (33.90% of total shares) in
the Companyas on March 31,201 6.

Manav Poddar {41 years) is a Commerce Graduate, erstwhile associated with the Company
for the 12 years have played a significant role in the success of the Company. The
Management after looking at his past performance and contribution have again been
appointed him as an Additional Director w.ef. 09.06.2016. He brings many different
meanings to the word success, and is iconized in the organization. He has taken Mayur
Uniquoters Limited from being a promising player in the artificial leacher industry to an
international corporate organization to reckon with. His focus is on Quality Management
and Human Capital Development. He is a Strategic Management Personnel and a key
member of the Board and holds 72,65,91 2 shares {15.70% of total shares) in the Company
asonh March 31,2016,

Mr.Arun Kumar Bagaria {43 years) is a Commerce graduate and is MBA from Univarsity of
Strathelyde Graduate Business School, UK. He had joined the Board of Mayur in June, 2007
and was appointed ag Executive Directorin August, 2007 and since then he continues to be
on the Board of Company. His rich experience and contribution has enabled Mayur
Uniquoters Limited to scale to new heights year after year. He is the Strategic Management
Personnel and a key member of the Board. Mr. Bagaria holds 5,50,000 Equity Shares {1.12 %
of total shares) in the Company as on March 31,2016.
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* INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Kanwarjic Singh {75 years) is a M.Sc. in Machematics (Delhi) and in Fiscal studies (Bath
University, UK}. He is 1965 batch of IRS. His last posting was as CCIT, Rajasthan. Mr: Singh
worked in PSB for three years, as General Manager and in a PSU as Ex-Director for five
years. Currently,heis on the Board of C] International Hotel Limited.

He has conducted a number of studies with faculty member of NIPF&P he was also the
Convener of the High Powered Committee set up by the CBDT to examine direct tax issue
of e-=commerce.

Mr Singh worked as tax advisor ta Punjab National Bank and Central Bank of India and as
lead consultant for a baseline survey on corruption in Zimbabwe & also as the project
Director with NIIT at various times.

Mr. Singh has also served as an Independent External Monitor in BHEL and as consultant,
under an ADB project on State Financial Reforms.

Mr.Kanwarjit Singh does not hold any shares of the Company.

Mr. B. L. Bajaj (50 years) is a fellow Chartered Accountant, Fellow Company Secretary and
Fellow Member of Indian Management Association, Co-founder and Managing Director of
Dynamics Orbits (DO). With his rich experience in corperate finance, cross border
business development,M&A & general management, he offers advisary services to Indian as
well as global corporate leaking for merger / acquisitions / |Vs and cross border business
development.

Mr. B. L. Bajaj has around 23 years of experience in various industries including automobile,
chemicals, textiles, power, I T services, international business and investment banking. He has
been the Direccor of business development with Swiss MNC, Ciba Specialcy Chemicals. He
is active in several industry associations and a regular speaker at leading global and Indian
events, widely covered by Indian media for his professional achievements.Mr. B. L. Bajaj does
not hold any shares of the Company.

Mrs. Tanuja Agarwal (57 years) is a B.A. Hons. (Psycholoagy), from St Xavier's College,
Mumbai. Pareer in Ratan Das Gupta & Ce. and devoted to social work. Past President of
InnerWheel Club, Jaipur Main and Janhit Sansthan. Associated with Concerned Citizen, an
NGO associated with WHO for spreading AIDS awareness through lectures among schoal
teenagers. Member of S.M.5. Medical College, Jaipur Anti-Ragging Committees and Animal
Rights Commissian.

Mrs. Tanuja Agarwal does not hald any shares of the Company.
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“ FIVEYEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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BOARD'S REPORT

To,
Dear Members
Mayur Uniguoters Limited

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the 23" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the audiced

financial statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2016.

1, FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31% 2016 is summarised below:

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
EY. 2015-1& EY 2014-15 EY. 2015-16

Total Revenue 51,680.65 51,225.78 50,138.36
Total Expenditure 37,743.50 40,535.10 16,675.56
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST, DEPRECIATION 13,937.15 10,690.48 13,458.80
AND TAX (PBIDT)

Less: Interest 159.20 179.22 159.72
Less: Depreciatian 1,611.81 1,186.02 1,1 1.61
PROFIT BEFORE TAX {(PBRT) 12,166.34 9,325.44 11,687.47
Less: Provision of Taxation Including Deferred Tax 3,915.05 2,735.34 3,968.18
PROFIT AFTER TAX (PAT) 8,251.29 6,590.10 7,719.29
Add; Balance Brought Forward From Previous Year 17,922.34 13,424.33 17,922.34
Add: Deferred Tax Liability - 210.28 -
Add: Depreciation Reversed - 42.03 -
Profit Available For Appropriation 26,173.63 20,256.74 25,641.63
Less: Appropriation:

Transferred to General Reserve - 659.10 -
Equity Dividend (Including Proposed Dividend) 1,619.72 [,411.46 1,419.72
Preference Dividend @ 5% on CCPPS 297.20 - 297.20
Dividend Distribution en Praference Dividend @) 5% an CCPPS 60.50 - 60.50
Dividend Diseribution on Equicy Dividend (Ineluding Proposed Dividend) 32974 273.84 329.74
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet 23,8446.47 17,922.34 23,334.47

NOTE : The operation of wholly owned subsidiary company i.e. Mayur Uniquoters Corp.in LISA has been started during the financial
year 2015-16, Hence consolidated figures for financial year 2014-15 are not provided.

2.

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE
OUTLOOK

The Economic Survey 2015-16 presents an optimistic
picture of Indian economy stating thac amidst the gloomy
landscape of unusual volatility in the international
ecanomic environment, India stands as a heaven of stability
and an outpost of opportunicy. It says che councry's macro-
ecoramy is stable, founded on the government's
commitment to fiscal consolidation and low inflation. The
Survey underlines that India's economic growch is amongst
the highesc in the world, helped by a reorientation of
government spending toward needed public infrastructure.

With Make in India and digical India inidative launched
by the Government of India to encourage multinational,

as well as national companies to manufaccure cheir
produees in India and taking it leap forward.

Hon'ble Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi vision of
"Brand India," with focus on 5-Ts - Talent, Tradition,
Tourism, Trade and Technology presents che good future
of the country in the years to come.

Global growth, currently estimated at 3.1 percent in 2015,
is projected at 3.4 percent in 20146 and 3.6 percenc in
2017.The pickup in global activity is projected to be more
gradual than in the October 2015 World Econemic
Outlook (WEO), especially in emerging market and
developing economies,
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India continues to remain a bright spot in the otherwise
bleak global economic forecase of the Internacional Monetary
Fund {IMF). India will be the fastest growing major economy
in 2016-17 growing at 7.5%, ahead of China, at a time when
global growth is facing increasing downside risks.

Mayur is one of the largest producer of the synthetic
leather having the installed capacity of 3.05 million linear
meter month and has shown the good performance during
the current financial year. Today cthe companies are
operating in the environment where the survival of fitcest
is the law of land. The major contributing factors towards
the success of Mayur is its commitment to sarve the
customer to their satisfaction. Mayur is now on tche fast
track adapting to the changes in economic scenario and
technological innovations keeping in mind the object of
the becoming che global player producing che high
technology and premium products.

You will be happy to know that the Company is in the
process of inscalling the PU plant having the installed
capacity of 6,00,000 linear meters per month in the State
of Rajasthan. Since the PU plant requires a lot of water
and Rajasthan being the dry state/ dry zone. An application
have been moved with the Government of Rajasthan for
their approval which is expected in the near future,
However we are also evaluating the alternative option in
differenc scates.

Your Company has delivered good performance in the
financial year 2015-16 on the Standalone basis, with a PAT
groweh is 25.21% from Rs. 6590.10 Lacs to Rs. 8251.29
Lacs.

The global aucomotive interior macerial markec has
grown significantly during the last few years. It is expected
to grow rapidly in the next five years, mainly driven by a
growing consumpcion in the North America and Europe.
Asia-Pacific is the largest consumer of automotive
interior materials across the world. The synthetic leather
is the largest segment of the automotive interior
macerials market across the world. The market for the
same is valued at $18.45 hillion by 2019. During che
Fiscal year 2016, the Company has incorporated the
wholly owned subsidiary Company in the name of Mayur
Uniquoters Carp. in Texas, USA co facilitate ics export
business in abroad. The Statement containing salient
features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary
Company/Associate Companies / JointVentures has been
given Annexure-| i.e. Form AOC-1 forming the parc of
the board report.

Mayur claims to be the Company from Asia pacific supplying
to the US Aucomotive giants which has led to the
exponential growth in the Export segment. Higher
realization as result of higher value added products have
also lead to higher EBIDTA margins. The Company is in
the process exploring the new markecs as well as new
avenues and segments with the aim of increasing its
presence globally.

A Texture For Every Idea

DIVIDEND

Mayur has always strived to maintain a balance by providing
an appropriate return ta the sharehclders while
simultaneously retaining a reasonable portion of the profit
to maintain healchy financial leverage with a view to
support and fund the future expansion plans. Mayur has a
well-defined dividend policy which ensures gooad and
healthy return co its members.

The Board has recormmmended a final dividend of Rs 0.20
per Equicy Share an 4,62,77,600 Equicy Shares of Rs 5/
- each for the year ended 3 1 March, 201 6. The Company
has distributed first interim dividend of Rs 0.80/- {i.e.
Rs 18%) per equity share of Rs 5/- each in August 201 5.
The second, third and fourth interim dividend of Rs
0.80/-, Rs 0.85/- and Rs 0.85/- respectively were paid in
November, 2015, February 2016 and March 2016. The
Company has declared tocal dividend of Rs. 3.50/- per
equity share of Rs. 5/- each for the financial year 2015-
l& {(i.e. 70% of face value of Rs. 5/-). The final dividend
on Equity Shares is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
scheduled on Wednesday, 27% July, 2016. The cotal
dividend payout will be 161%.72 lacs excluding dividend
distribution rax of Rs. 390.24 lacs.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to
general reserve during the financial year ended March 31+,
2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company in the financial year 2014-15 has issued
and allocted 14,86,000 Compulsory Convertible
Participating Preference Shares (CCPPS) of Rs. 400 each
at a premium of Re. 71.06. All the CCPS were converted
into the 29,72,000 equity shares of the Company of
face value of Rs. 5 each on the terms of its issue an 30th
April, 2015.

As on 31 March, 2016 the paid up share capital stood
at Rs. 23,13,88,000/- consequent to conversion of
CCPPS into equity shares of the Company on 30™ April
2015.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

During the year 7 {Seven) board meetings were convened
and held on the dates as mentioned below in the table.
Other details pertaining to attendance at the meetings
are given in the corporace governance report actached
with this reporc. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the pericd prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and che SEBI {LODR) Regulacions,
2015,
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S. No. Date of the meeting
l. 30/04/2015
2. 12/05/2015
3. 12/0612015
4. 13/08/2015
5. 02/1112015
6. 09/0212014
7. 14/03120148

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting
as well as retaining talented employees for role of KMP/ a
level below KMP are the basis for the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to select a candidace for
appointment to the Board. When recommending a
candidate for appointment, the Nomination and
Remuneracion Committee has regard co:

4]

assessing the appointee against a range of criteria
which includes burt not limited to qualifications, skills,
regional and industry experience, background and
other qualities required to operate successfully in
the position, wich due regard for the benefits from
diversifying the Board;

the extent to which the appointee is likely to
contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board,
work conscructively with the exiscng directors and
enhance the efficiencies of the Company;

the skills and experience that the appointee brings
to the role of KMP/Senior Official and how an
appointee will enhance the skill sets and experience
of che Board as a whole;

the nature of existing positions held by the appcintee
including directorships or other relationships and
the impacc they may have on the appointee’s ability
to exercise independent judgment;

The Board of the Company as on che date of the
repart consists of 6 directors ouc of which chree
are Independent Directors as per the
requirement of the provisian of section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Independent
Directars Mr. Kanwarjit Singh, Mr. B.L. Bajaj and
Mrs. Tanuja Agarwal have affirmed that they
continue to meet all the requirements specified
under sub-section (6) of secction |49 of
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of their position
as an "Independent Director™ of Mayur Uniquoters
Limited. Mr. Suresh Kumar Peddar, Chairman and
Managing Director, Mr. Gumamal Jain, Chief
Financial Officer and Mr. Nikhil Saxena, Company

Secretary of the Company are che Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT

The members had approved appointment of Mr.
Suresh Kumar Poddar as Chairman and Managing
Director for a period of 3 years with effect from
April 1,2014.The term of appointment for Mr. Suresh
Kumar Paddar ends on March 31, 2017. Subject to
the approval of the members, the Board hereby
recommend his re-appolntment as an Executlve
Chairman of the Company.

The members had approved appointment of Mr.
Arun Kumar Bagaria as Whole Time Director for a
period of 3 years with effect from August I, 2013.
The term of appointment for Mr. Arun Kumar
Bagaria ends on July 31, 2014, Subject to the appraval
of the members, the Board hereby recommend his
re-appointment.

Necessary resolutions for the re-appointunent of the
aforesaid Directors have been included in the Nocice
convening the ensuing AGM and details of the
proposal for re-appointment are mentioned in the
Explanatory Statement to the Notice. Subject to the
approval of the members, the Board hereby
recommend cheir re-appointmenc.

During cthe financial year Mr. Rameshwar Pareek,
Independent Director of the Company resigned from
the Company wich effect from 13.08,2015

Mr. Prahalad Sahay Jangid, resigned from the post of
Chief Financial Officer with effect from 13.082015.

Mr. Gumanmal Jain, has been appointed as, Chief
Financial officer of the Company with effect from
13.08.2015

The Company has received a requisition from a
member of the Company for the appointment of Mr.
Manav Poddar as a director of the Company
Nominacion and Remuneracion Committee has
recommended to the Board for his appointment as a
Whole Time Director/ Managing Director of the
Company. The Board considered recommendation
given by Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and confirm his appointment as Whaole Time
Director! Managing Director subject to the approval
of the members for the same for tenure as under:
Whole Time Director - 22.06.2016 to 31.03.2017
{Executive Director)

Managing Directar - 01.04.2017 to 21.06.2019

As required under SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015
with the Stock Exchanges, the relevant details of
Director retiring by rotacion and/or seeking re-
appointment at the ensuing AGM are furnished as
annexure to the Notice of AGM.
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4 FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION The Company has conducted programmes for
) ) familiarization of Independent Directors with the
The evaluationfassessment of the Directors, KMPs Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
and the senior officials of the Company is to be Company, nature of the industry in which che
conc!ucted on an annual ba.sis and to satisfy the Company operates, business model, legal matters
requirements of the Campanies Act, 2013. under various Regulations of Securities and
The Company has devised a Policy for performance Exchange Boar}:l of India viz.F’IT. SAST.LODR, related
evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, party transaction, Companies Acc, 2013 and other
Committess and other individual Directors which related matters under the guidance of consultants
include criteria for performance evaluation of che and Top Manager.nent and mare than |5 hours has
non-executive directors and executive directors. been spent on it. These programmes have been
devised under the guidance of consultants and Top
The Company is availing services of consultants for Management.
looking at the best practices prevalent in the industry
and advising with respect to evaluation of Board 8. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
members. On the basis of recommendations of the
consultants and the Policy for performance evaluation The details of employees employed by the Campany during
of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and the financial year 2015-16 pursuant to provisions in
other individual Direccors, a process of evaluacion accordance with Rule 5{2) of the Companies {Appointmenc
was followed by the Board for its own performance and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
and that of its Committees and individual Directars, are as under:
Name of Designation Qualification | Age | Date of [Experience Annual Last Last
Employee appoint- (Years) Gross Employment|Designation
ment Remuneration
{Rs. in lacs)
Mr. Suresh Kumar Chairman & B.Sc. &9 |2710772000 46 143.38 Own Business | Entrepreneur
Poddar Managing Direcror
& CEQ
Mr. Manay Poddar® Executive Directar | B.Com. {(Hons) 41 |OIF1172002 21 102.32 Own Business | Entrepreneur
Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria | Executive Director | B.Com. (Hons) 43 |30/0672007 19 92.90 Own Business | Enoepreneur
& MBA
Mr. Ramdas U Acharya| Senior Vice MBA (Material & | &9 |24703/2011 35 225.89 Unirayal Vice
Presidenc Produccion Engineered Presidenc
{Technical) Management), Products Co. | {R&D and
MS in Chemical Quality)
Engineering
Michigan state
University, East
Lasing, Michigan,
Training- Juran
& Demming,
15O, QS & TS
Quality Control
Techniques

Noces:

I.  Remuneration comprises salary, house renc allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses and other perquisites & allowances.

2. Mr Suresh Kumar Poddar, Mr. Manav Poddar and Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria are related to each other.

Nature of employment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, Mr. Manav Poddar, Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria and Mr. Ramdas U Acharya is
contractual.

4, *Mr.Manav Poddar who ceased to the director of the Company wee.f, 01 May, 2016 have been appointed as an Addicional Director
of the Company w.e.f.- 09.06.2016.

e A

Mr. Ramdas U Acharya , his spouse and dependent children do not hald any shares of the Company.
Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar halds |, 56,87,324 equity shares of the Company as on 31°° March, 2016,
Mr. Manav Poddar holds 72,865,912 equity shares of the Company as on 3 1% March, 201 6.

Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria holds 5,50,000 equity shares of the Company as on 31 March, 2016,



STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Madhukar Garg & Co., Charcered Accountants {Firm
Registration No, 000866C) the Statutory Auditors of the
Company were appointed pursuant to the resolution
passed by the shareholders at the 215 Annual General
Meeting held on 16.09.2014 for a term of chree years
according to Section 139 and 142 of Companies Act, 2013,
Their appointment is subject to ratification at the ensuing
Annual General Meecing. They have canfirmed their
eligibility under che Act.

The qualifications/observations of the auditors given in
cthe Auditor's Reporc if any, are self-explanatory and have
been explained/ clarified, wherever necessary, in the notes
to the Financial Statements.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

In consonance with the requirements of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made cthereunder, Mis
V.M. & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Jaipur,
was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2015-164.

An Audit Reportissued by M/sV. M. & Associates, Company
Secretaries, in respect of the secrecarial audit of the
Comparvy for the financial year ended 31 March, 2016, is
given in Annexure-|l to this Report

The Secretarial Audit reporc for the financial year ended
31~ March, 2014 is self-explanatory and does nct call for
any further comments.

The Board has re-appointed M/s V. M. & Associates,
Company Secretaries in Practice, Jaipur as Secretarial
Auditar of the Company to carry ouc secrecarial audic of
the Company for the financial year 2016-17.

COST AUDITORS

In accordance of provisions of Seccion 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Board of Directors of the
Company has appointed M/s. Pavan Gupta & Associates,
Cost Accountants,as the cost auditor of the Company for-
the year ended March 31, 201 4.

The Company has received Cost audit report of the cost
accouncs of the Company for the year ended March 31+,
2016 and have been submitted co the Central Government.

In view of the same and in cerms of the provisions of Section
148 and all ocher applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the Companies {(Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, M/s. Pavan Gupta & Associates, Cost
Accountants have been appointed as Cost Auditors to
conduct che audit of cost recards of your company for the
Financial Year 2016-17. The remuneration proposed to be
paid to them requires ratification of the shareholders of
the Company. In view of this, your ratificacion for payment
of remuneration to Cosc Auditers is being sought.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted the audit committee in line
wich the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015. As on
31* Mareh, 2015 the audit commitcee consist of 4 members
out of which the 3 are Independent directors. The details
of the composition of the Audit Commictee along with
their meetings held/ attended have been given elsewheare
in the Corporate Gaovernance Report.

NOMINATION AND
COMMITTEE AND POLICY

REMUNERATION

The Company has constituced the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee in line with the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Reguladion 19 of SEBI {(LODR}
Regulations, 2015. As on 31 March, 2016 the Nomination
& Remuneration Commictee consist of 3 members in which
all members are Independent direccors. The details of the
composition of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee along with their meetings held/ attended have
been given In the Corporate Governance Report.

The Nomination and Remuneraticn Policy was formulated
by the Commictee on direccor's appaincment and
remuneration including criceria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a
director and other matters as specified under section 178
(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and same was approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company. The
Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate
Governance Report.

4 MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Details of che ratio of the remuneration of each
director to the median employee's remuneration and
other details as required pursuant to Rule 5{1) of
the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been provided
as Annexure Il of the Board's Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Chairman & Managing Director has confirmed and
declared that all che members of the board and the senior
management have affirmed compliance with the code of
conduct.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF
TRADING PRACTICES

INSIDER

In compliance with the SEBI Regulations on Prevention of
Insider Trading, the Company has formulaced and
implemeanted a new comprehensive Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading by its managemenc and
employees. The code lays down guidelines advising them
on procedures to be followed and disclosures co be made
while dealing with shares of Mayur.
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Palicy,
which also incorporates aVigil Mechanism in terms of the
SEBI {LCDR) Regulations, 2015 for Directors and
employees commensurate to the size and the business of
the Company to promote ethical behavior in all its business
activities and to report concerns and unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of our code of
conducec and ethics. Under the said mechanism, the
employees are free to report violations of applicable laws
and regulations and the Code of Conduct. It also provides
for adequate safeguards against the victimization of
persons who use such mechanism.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a risk management policy which
encaompasses practices relating to identification,
assessment monitoring and mitigation of various risks co
key business objectives. The Risk management framework
of the Company seeks to minimize adverse impact of
risks on our key business objectives and enables the
Company to leverage market opportunities effectively.

The Risk Management Committee constituted in the
previous financial year baing not mandatory under SEBI
{LODR) Regulations, 2015 have been dissolved in the Board
of Directors meeting held on 02.11.2015. However, the
necessary measures has been taken that the risks
associated with the operations of the Company are
adequacely taken care of.

The various key risks to key business objectives are as
follows:

Liquidity Risk: It is the risk that the Company will be
unable to meet its financial commitment to a Bank/ Financial
Insticucion in any location, any currency ac any point in
time. Liquidity risk can manifest in three different
dimensions for the Compzny.

Funding Risk: To replace net outflows due to
unanticipated oucflows.

Time Risk: To compensate for non receipt of expected
inflows of funds.

Call Risk: Due to crystallization of contingent liabilities
or inability to undertake proficable business opportunities
when desirable.

Interest Rate Risk: Ic is the risk where changes in market
interest races might adversely affect the Company's financial
condition. The short termfimmediate impact of changes in
interest rates are on the Company's Net Interest Income
(NI). On a langer term, changes in incerest rates impace
the cash flows on cthe assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items, giving rise to a risk to the net worth of the
Company arising out of all repricing mismatches and other
interest rate sensitive positions.

A Texture For Every Idea

The Company manages monitors and reports an the
principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability
to achieve its stracegic ohbjectives. The Company's
management systems, organisational structures, processes,
standards, code of conduct and behaviours together form
the Mayur Management System (MMS) that governs how
the Group conducts the business of che Company and
manages associated risks.

The Company has introduced several improvements to
integrated enterprise risk management, incernal controls
management and assurance frameworks and processes to
drive a common integrated view of risks, optimal risk
mitigation responses and efficienc management of internal
concrol and assurance activities. This integration is enabled
by all three being fully aligned across group wide risk
management, internal control and internal audit
methodologies and processes.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Relevant extract of annual return as on the Financial Year
ended on March 31, 2016 is given in Annaxure-1V to this
Report.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACLY OF
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS,

In Mayur, the corporate audit division headed by Chief
Financial Officer who continuously manitor che
effectiveness of the internal controls with an objective to
provide to the audit committee and che Board of Directors,
an independent, objective and reasonable assurance of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization's risk
management, control and governance processes.

The division also assesses opportunities for improvement
in business processes, systems & controls; provides
recommendations, designed to add value to che
organization and follows up on the implementation of
corrective actions and improvements in business
processes after review by the Audit committee and Senior
Management.

The scope and authority of the corporate audit division is
designed in a mannar that the audit plan is focused on the
following objeccives:

o All operational and related activities are performed
efficiently and effectively.

o Significant financial, managerial and cperating
infarmartion thac is relevant, aceurare, and reliable is
provided on time,

o  Review, identification and management of Risks.

o Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently
and safeguarded adequately.
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o Employeses' actions are in accordance with the
Company's policies and procedures, Mayur's code of
conduct and applicable laws and regulations.

o Significant legislative and regulatory praovisions
impacting the organization are recognised and
addressed appropriately.

o Oppaortunities identified during audits, for improving
management control, business targets and
prafitability, process efficiency and the organization's
image, are communicated to the appropriace level of
managemenc.

o Shareholders' and other stakeholders' wealth is
preserved, protected and enhanced.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial stacements. During
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was
observed.

DEPOSITS

In the beginning of the Financial Year 2015-16, there were
no deposits lying with che Company and further it is
clarified that no maney have been received which fall undey
the category of depaosits during the Financial Year 201 5-
16,

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS UIS 185 OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees
given and securides provided along with the purpose for
which the loan or guarancee or security is proposed to be
ucilized by the recipient are provided in the Financial
Statement.

PARTICULARS OF <CONTRACTS O©OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions were entered during the
financial year were in the ordinary course of the
business of the Company and were on arm's langth
basis. There were no materially significant relaced party
transactions entered by che Company with Promaoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons
which may have a pocencial conflict wich the incerest of
the Company.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval for
normal business transactions is also obtained from the
Audit Committee for the related party transactions which
are of repetitive nacure as well as for the normal business
transactions which cannot be foreseen and accordingly
the required disclosures are made o the Commictee on
quarterly basis in terms of the approval of the
Committee.

23,

24.

25.
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The policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions
and also on dealing with Related Party Transactions as
approved by the Audic Committee and the Board of
Directors is uploaded on the website of the Company
and che link for the same is www.mayuruniquoters.com.
Since all related parcy transacdons enterad into by the
Company were in the ordinary course of business and
were on arm's length basis, form AOC-2 is not applicable
to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the corporate
governance reguirements as stipulated under the
Regulation of SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
Company obtained a certificace from che auditors regarding
compliarnce with Regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and certificate has been annexed with the Board's
Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
{(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassmenc of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, every company is required to set up an Internal
Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating
to sexual harassmenc at work place of any women
employee.

Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Wamen at workplace and has sec up
Committee for implementation of said policy. During the
year Company has not received any complaint of
harassment, therefore, at the end of che year no complaint
was pending which need to be resolved.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
POLICY

The Corporate Social Respansibilicy Commitcee {CSR
Committee) has constituted as per Companies Act, 2013,
a Carporate Social Responsibility Pelicy {CSR Policy)
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company,
which has been approved by che Board.

The key philosophy of all CSR initiatives of the Company
is guided by three core commitments of Scale, Impacc
and Suscainahility.

The CSR initiatives of Mayur were marked by unrelenting
commitment to several large - scale key projects as well
as initiation of several new projects identified under the
10 focus areas of Mayur:

Activities included by Mayur in Corporate Social
Responsibilicy Policies relating to:-

(i} Reducing child mortality and improving maternal
health;
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(i) Promotion of education;
{iii) Promoting gender equality and empowering women;
(iv) Eradicating excreme hunger and poverty;

{v} Combating human immunodeficiency virus, acquired
immune deficiency syndrome, malaria and ocher
diseases;

vi) Ensuring environmental sustainability;

(
{vii} Employment enhancing vocational skills;
(viil) Social business projects;

{

ix) Concribution to the Prime Miniscer's Nacional Relief
Fund ar any other fund set up by the Central
Government or the State Governments for socio-
economic development and relief and funds for the
welfare of the Scheduled Casces, cthe Scheduled Tribes,
other backward classes, minorities and women; and

{x) Rural developmenc projects.

During che financial year 2015-16, Rs. 70.03 Lacs was
incurred on account of expenditure cowards CSR. Details
as requird under section |35 of Companies Act, 2013 is
given in Annexure-V

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology,
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
pursuant to Section |34 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
given in Annexure-Vl| to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company treats its "human resources' as one
of its most imporcanc assets,

Company has always provided an amicable atmosphere
for work to all sections of the society. Mayur is
committed to respect universal human rights. The
Company pucs emphasis in providing equal oppertunities
at all levels, safe and healchy workplaces and protecting
human health and environment, The Company provides
opportunities to all its employees to improve their skills
and capabilities.

Mayur is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, nationality,
ethnic origin, colour, gander, age, citizenship, sexual
orientation, marital status or any disability not affecting
the functional requirements of the position held.

The Company's expanding its commitment towards
neighboring communities to improve their cultural,
economic, educational, and social well-being.

18,

29.

30.

3.
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ENVIRONMENT

Mayur has taken several environmental initiatives for
various issues like conservation, preservation and
restoration of biodiversity. The Company makes efforts
to minimize the environmental impace of its cperadions
and its products through the adoption of susrtainable
practices and continuous improvement in environmencal
performance.

The Company strives o contribute to environmental
sustainability through developing and offering resource
efficient and environmentally friendly products to che
CUSTOMErs.

Mayur has sec up water recycling and rain harvesting
facilities at its planc sices. As an integral part of its initiative
to protect the enviranment, the Company monitars waste
generation, emission of greenhouse gases, effluents, quality
of air, etc. ac che plant sites.

The management works to attain the goals like becoming
carbon neucral, water positive and developing green zones
in and around our manufacturing plants and offices. Mayur
aspires for setting up an innocucus environment by
working on standards that are aligned to international
standards like |SO 9001.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Mayur has always taken promising steps towards health
and safety through its policy, which focuses on people,
technolagy and facilities, supported by che managemenc
commitmenc as their prime drivers. The dedicated
"Safety Management Team” is working toward the
prevention of man machine and material Incidents at
corporate & unit level and to educate and motivate the
employees about che Safety, Occupational &
Environmental Palicy (SH&E). The safety, occupational
% health of its employees are embedded as core
organizational values of the Company. The Company
strives to ensure the health, safety and securicy of
employees, contractors and others affected by business
operations. The Company's SH&E supports the
development of a healch and safecy culture based on
the principal that prevention is better than cure.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of
this Annual Report and has been annexed with the Board's
Reporc.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to sub section 3 (¢) of Section |34 of the
Caompanies Act, 2013, che Board of Directors of the
Company hereby state and confirm that:

a) in cthe preparation of the annual accounts, che
applicable accounting standards had been followed
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b)

d)

along with proper explanation relating to material
departures:

the directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of che
Company for that period;

the directors have talken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts an a
going concern basis;

the directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial concrols are adequate and were
operating effectively; and;

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such syscems were adequace and operating
effectively.

Date : 22.06.2016
Place : Jaipur

312,

kXN

34,

TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant tc the provisions of the Investor Education and
Protection Fund {IEPF), the Company has duly transfered
unpaid and unclaimed divided amounc to IEPF. The Company
has already filed the necessary form and uploaded the
details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
Company, as on the date of last AGM {i.e. 31.07.2015),
with the Miniscry of Corporate Affairs.

LISTING OF SHARES

Your Company's shares are listed at BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the listing
fees for the year 2016-17 has been duly paid.
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Your Directors would like to express their appreciation
for assistance and co-operation received from the
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Chairman & Managing Director
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Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary
Company/Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

FORM No.AOC |

PART “A’: Subsidiaries

{Rs. in lacs)

Sl No

Name of the Subsidiary

MAYUR UNIQUOTERS CORP

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned

I* April To 31* March every year

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiary

US Dallar ($)
INR 66,3329 = | USD

Share Capital 6.98
Reserves & Surplus 128.93
Total Assets 3335.44
Total Liabilities 3199.55
Investments NIL
Turnover 3534.64
Profit Before Taxation 298.22
Provision For Taxation 53.13
Profic After Taxation 245.09
Proposed Dividend NIL

% of Sharehelding

100 {Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

Noces:

l. Name of the subsidiaries which are yer to commence operations : NIL

2, Name of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : NIL
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Annexure:- 1l

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.? of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Mayur Uniquotars Limited
Jaipur-Sikar Road, Village: Jaitpura,
Tehsil: Chomu, Disce. Jaipur - 303704

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices Mayur Uniquoters Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secrecarial Audic was conducted in a
mahher that provided us a reasohable basis for evaluating the
caorporate conducts/statutery compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books. papers. minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the infermation provided by che Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in cur apinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2016 (*Audit Period”) complied with the
statucory provisicns listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafcer:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records mainwined by the Company for
the financial year ended en March 31, 2016 according to the
provisions of:

(i The Companies Act, 2013 {(che Act) and che rulas made
thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA)
and the rules made thereunder;

(iiiy  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made chereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investmenc and
Excernal Commercial Borrowings;

™ The fellowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Acc,
1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{(Substancial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 [;

{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(repealed w.e.f. I15* May, 2015)

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009%;

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; {Not
applicable to the Company during the Audic
Period)

{g8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and
as amended from time to time; (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period)

{fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agencs)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Acc and
dealing with client;

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting
aof Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period)

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period)

{i)y The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
and

{iY The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015,

{vi)  As confirmed by the management, there are no sector
specific laws that are applicable specifically to the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable ¢lauses of
the following:

i Secretarial Standards issued by The Insticute of Company
Secretaries of India;
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il The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
with BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items bafore che meeting and for meaningful participacion at the
During the period under review the Company has complied with meeting.
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. as menticned above. Majarity decision is carried through while the dissenting
members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the
We further report thac minutes,
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with We further report that chere are adequate systems and
proper composition of Executive Directors, Nan-Executive processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
Directors and Independent Directors. The other changes in the operations of the Company to moniter and ensure compliance
compaosition of the Board of Directors that took place during the wich applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of che Act. We further report that during the audit period the Company
has not undertaken any event/action having a major bearing on
Adequate hotice is given to all Direccors co schedule the Board the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
ForV.M. & Assaciates
Company Secretaries
CS Manoj Maheshwari
Partner
Place : Jaipur FCS 3355
Date : 27" May, 2016 C.P.No.: 1971

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure =A and forms an integral part of this

report.

‘Annexure -A’
To, believe that che processes and practices, we followed
The Members provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Mayur Uniquoters Limiced 3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness

Jaipur-Sikar Road, of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
Village: Jaitpura, Jaipur . .
ge: Jaicp Jaip 4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management
Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter. representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc,
I Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
our audit. responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on tesc basis.
2. We have followed che audit practices and processes as

were appropriate to obtain reasconable assurance about 6. The Secretarial Audit REPDI‘C is neither an assurance as to
the ¢arrectness of the contents of the Secretarial recards, the future viahility of the Company nor of the efficacy or
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that effectiveness with which che management has conducted

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We the affairs of the Company.
ForV.M. & Associates
Company Secretaries
CS Manoj Maheshwari
Partner
Place : Jaipur FCS 3355
Date : 27% May, 2016 CPNa.: 1971
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Annexure-lll

Disclosure on the Remuneration of the Managerial Personnel

)] the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneracion of the employees of the Company for the financial
year -
S. Name of Director/KMP Remuneration % increase in Racio of Comparison of che
No. and Designation of Director/KMP remuneration | remuneration each | remuneration of
far financial year in the Directorita median | of the KMP against
2015-16 FinancialYear remuneration the performance
(Rs. in lacs) 2015-16 of employees of the Company
l. Suresh Kumar Poddar 143.38 2.55% 52.14 Profit afcer Tax
Chairman and
Managing Director increased by
2. | Manav Poddar 102.32 0.94% 37.20 25.21% in the
Executive Director - .
financial year
3. Arun Kumar Bagaria 92.90 1.20% 33.78
) . 2015-16
Executive Director

The median remuneratich of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2.75 laes

(i)

(iii)

the percentage increase in remuneracion of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer; Company Secretary
of Manager, if any, in the financial year - CEO 2.55%, CFO B.00% and CS 10.59%

the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year;

Particular Remuneration {in Lacs) % increasel {decrease)
2014-15 2015-16
Median Remuneration of all employees 271 2.75 1.48%

the number of permanent employees on che rolls of Company: 410

the explanation on the relacionship between average increase in remuneration and company performance;- The Company's
profic after tax has increased by over 25.21% (Standalone basis)

comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company - Remuneration
of the KMPs as % of the PAT for 2015-14 is 4.35%.The Company's PAT has increased 25.21% during the year.

Variation in the market capicalisation of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing dace of the current financial year and
previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in
comparisoh to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies and in case of
unlisted companies the variations in the net worth of the Company as at the close of the current financial year and previcus
financial year:-

Date Market price in Rs. | EPSinRs. | P/E ratio Market Capitalisation, Rs.in Crore | % Change

March 31, 2015

453.90 15.22 29.82 196584

March 31, 2016

386.95 17.14 22.57 1790.71 {8.91)

(viii)

average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than che managerial personnel in the last financial
year and comparison with the pereentile increase in the managerial remunerartion and justificacdion chereof and point out if there
are any exceptiohal circumstances for increase In the managerial remuneration;

- Average increase in the remuneration of all employees exeluding KMPs' 10.50%
- Average increase in the remuneration of KMP's 6.01%

- Justification for salary increases are decided based on the Company's performance, individual performance, inflation,
prevailing industry crends and benchmarks.
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(IX) Comparison of remuneration of each of the Key Managerial Persaonnel against the performance of the Company,

Each KMP is granted salary based on his qualification, experience, nature of job, industry benchmark, earlier salary and many
other factars, comparison of one against the other is not feasible, perfarmance of the Company has been quite satisfactory this
year.

(X}  The key parameters for any variable companent of remuneradion availed by the directors- Only CEO & Whole-time director
is given variable component, please refer vii above.

(XI) che ratic of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year i.e., Ramdas U. Acharya {I:1.58)

(X1} affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company - Yes
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Annexure:-IV

Form No :- 9

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended 31.03.2016

Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 12 {1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN LI8I0IR]I992PLCO06552

ii Regiscration Date 14.09.1932

iii Name of the Company Mayur Uniquoters Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Companry having Share Capital

v Address of the Registered office Village: Jaicpura, Jaipur- Sikar Road, Jaipur- 303704 (Rajasthan)
& contact details Tel: +91-1423-224001 » Fax: +91-1423-224420

vi Whether listed company Yes

vii Name, Address & contact derails of the Beetal Financial & Computers Services (P) Lcd., Beetal House,
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind LSC, New Delhi- 110062,

Tel : 011 2995 1281-83
1 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business accivities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated

Sl Name & Descriptian of main NIC Coade of the % to total turnaover
Nao. productsiservices Produce /service of the Company

I Manufaceuring of Artificial Leacher/ Foam
Leather and ocher substicute of Leacher 2684 100

1 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

5. | Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING! % OF APPLICABLE
No. SUBSIDIARY! | SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD

I Mayur Uniquoters Corp. Foreign Company Subsidiary 100 2(87)

v SHAREHOLDING PATTERN {Equicy Share capital Break up as % to cotal Equicy)

Category of Nao. of Shares held at the Na. of Shares held at the change during
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year the year
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of No of %
Total Shares| Total Shareg Shares
A. Promoters
{1} Indian
al IndividualiHUF 2.87,61,804 0 |2,87,61,804 66.42 |2,82,84,916 0 |2,82.84,916 61.12 | -4,76,988 -5.30
i Central Gavt. or
State Gout. Y 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00
¢l Badies Corparate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00
il Bank/Fl Y ] ] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 ] 0.00
el Anyother a 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00
SUR TOTAL: {R}{1) 2,.87,61.904 0 |2,87,61,904 66.42 |2,82,24,916 0 |2,82,84 916 61.12 | -4,76,928 -5.30
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the change during
Shargholders heginning of the year end of the year the year
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of No of %
Total Shares| Total Shares] Shares

{2) Foreign
al NRI- Individuals 0 0 i 0 0 0 a 0 0 0.00
i Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0.00
) Baodies Corp. 0 a a 0 1} 1} a 0 0 0.00
i BanksFl 0 0 a 0 0 0 (] 0 0 0.00
el Anyuother_. 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0.00
SUB TOTAL (A} {2} 1] 0 1] 1] 1] ] 0 1] 0 n.00
Total Shareholding of
Promaoter
{A)={RN11+(RN2) 281.61.904 0 |2.87.61.904 66.42 [2.82.8.4916 0 |2.82.84.916 61.12 | -4.76.988 -5.30
B. PUELIC SHAREHOLDING
{1} Institutions
al Mutual Funds 20,568,675 62,400 | 21,19,075 4.89 | 26,29,938 62,400 | 26,92,338 5.82 | 573,263 0.83
bl Banks{Fl 11,045 20,800 31,845 0.07 4,462 20,800 35,262 0.05 -5,583 -0.02
ol Central Govt. 0 0 ad 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
i State Govr. 0 0 { 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
el Venture Capital Fund 0 0 i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
i Insurance Cormpanies 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0.00
g RIS 2874110 0 | 28,7410 6.87 | 3811647 0| 3811647 8.24 | 836837 1.37
hi Foreign Yenture Capital Funds 0 0 i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
ij  Others {specify) 0 0 0 0 1] 1] a 0 0 0.00
Fareign Financial Inst.| bank 0 ] a 0 178104 1] 178104 0.38 178106 0.38
SUB TOTAL {B){1}: 50,42 430 83,200 | 51,25,630 11.84 | 66,24,152 43,200 | 67,007,352 145 | 15,81,722 2.66
{2) Non Institutions
al Badies corporate
il Indian 8,956,366 23,800 9,320,166 111 g.h4,549 19800 8,74,349 1.89 -45,817 0.23
il Overseas 0 0 ad 0| 28,72,000 0| 25,72,000 6.42 | 28,72,000 §.42
b Individuals
il Individual sharehalders

halding nominal share

capital upto Rs. 2 lzkhs 38,89,345 | 1445311 | 54,34,656 1255 | 43,67.642 | 1287871 | 56,65513 12.24 | 230,857 -0.31
il Individuals shareholders

halding nominal share capital

in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs 18,890,770 0 [ 1980770 45 8.76.409 0 4,76.409 1.9 1114361 2,70
¢} Others {snecify)
HNRI 8,07,820 §2,200 740,120 1.71 6,23,937 77,200 1.01,137 1.51 -38,883 -0.20
Clearing Member 32,314 0 22,374 (.05 29,986 0 29986 0.08 1,612 0.01
NRIIOCBS 0 0 { 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Fareign National 575 0 575 0 0 0 0 0 -575 0.00
Trust 25,000 0 25,000 0.06 0 0 a 0 -25,000 -0.08
HUF 284405 0 284,405 0.66 1,65,938 0 165938 0.36 | -1,18,467 -0.30
SUB TOTAL {B}2: 78,66,755 | 1551,311 | 84,18,066 2175 | 9890461 | 1384,871 |1,12,85,332 2438 | 18,67266 263
Total Public Shareholding
{B}= {BM1)-+{B}2] 12908185 | 1634511 | 14543686 33.58 [1.65,14,613 | 14,78,071 |1,79,92 684 38.88 | 34.48,888 5.30
C. Shares held by Custodian for

GORs & ADRs I a a I 1] 1] a 1] a 0.00
Grand Total (A+B+C) 416,71,089 | 16,34,511 H,33,05,600 100 |4,47,99,529 | 14,768,071 |4,62,77 600 100 | 29,72,000 0.00
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(i SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
8I. No. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No of shares |% of total shares| % of Shares No of shares |% of total shares| % of Shares | % change in
of the Company Pledged| of the Company Pledyed| share holding
encumhered encumbered during
to total shares to total shares the year
1 DAOLLY BAGARIA 3,85,000 0.89 a 3,85,000 0.83 a 0.06
2 KIRAN PODDAR 5,75,080 1.33 0 5,759,080 1.4 i] 0.09
3 &RUN KUMAR BAGARIA 5,00,000 1.39 a 5,560,000 1.19 0 0.20
4 PUJA PODDAR 7,20,000 1.66 d 7,20,000 1.56 0 0.10
5 SUREEH KUMAR PODDAR {HUF} 31,01,600 7.16 0 31,01,600 5.70 0 0.46
B MANAY PODDAR 72,656,912 16.78 a 72,656,312 15.70 0 1.08
7 SURESH KUMAR PODDAR 1,61,14,312 32 a 1,66,87,324 33.90 a 3.31
Total 2,87,61,904 66.42 0 282,84 918 61.12 ] h.30
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
{A) Name of the Promoter:- Suresh Kumar Poddar
Sl. For Each of the Promoter Sharehalding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Na. end of che year during che year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
che Company* the Company*
| At the beginning of the year l.&l,14,312 37.21 1,61,14,312 37.21
2 | Date wise increasefdecrease in Premoters {4,26,988) [Open 0.99 1,56,87,324 339
Shareholding during the year specifying the Market Sale
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ on 17.04.2015]
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
3 Ar the end of the year |1,56,87,324 339 1,56,87,324 339

{B) Name of the Promoter:- Manav Poddar
Sl. For Each of che Promoter Shareholding at che Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of che year during che year
No. of shares % af total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company* cthe Company*
| | At the beginning of the year 7265912 16.78 72,65912 16.78
2 | Date wise increase/decrease in Promaters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity ecc.) Nil Nil 72,65912 15.70
3 | Acthe end of the year 72,65,912 15.70 72,65912 15.70

*The paid-up equity share capital of the Company has increased fram 2,165.28 lacs co 2,313.88 lacs as the result of conversion of

CCPPS inta equicy shares of Rs. 5/- each on 30.04.2015.
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{C) Name of the Promoter:- Arun Kumar Bagaria
Sl. For Each of the Promacer Shareholding at the Cumulacive Shareholding
No, end of the year during che year
No. of shares % of tatal Nao. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company™ the Company?
| At the beginning of the year 4,00,000 1.39 6,00,000 1.39
2 | Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters (50,000) [Open
Share holding during the year specifying the Market Sale
reasans for increase/decrease {e.g. allocment/ on [7.04.2015] 0.12 5,50,000 1.19
transfer/bonus/sweat equicy atc)
3 | At the end of the year 5,50,000 .19 5,50,000 1.19
{D} Name of the Promoter:- Kiran Poddar
Sl. For Each of the Promacer Shareholding at the Cumulacive Shareholding
No. end of the year during che year
No. of shares % of tatal Nao. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company?¥ the Company*
| At the beginning of the year 5,75,080 1.33 5.75,080 1.33
2 | Dace wise increase/decrease in Pramoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equicy atc) Nil Nil 5,75,080 1.24
3 | Acthe end of the year 575,080 1.24 5.75.080 1.24
{E) Name of the Promaocer:- Puja Poddar
Sl. For Each of the Promaoter Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of the year during che year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company™ cthe Company*
| At the beginning of the year 7,20,000 .66 7.20,000 1.66
2 | Dace wise increase/decrease in Pramoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equicy atc) Nil Nil 7,20,000 1.54
3 | Acthe end of the year 720,000 1.56 7.20.000 1.56
{F) Name of che Promater:- Dolly Bagaria
Sl. For Each of the Promaoter Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Na. end of the year during che year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company™ cthe Company*
| At the beginning of the year 3,85,000 Q.89 3,85,000 0.89
2 | Dace wise increase/decrease in Pramoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equicy atc) Nil Nil 3,85,000 0.83
3 | Acthe end of the year 3.85,000 0.83 3.85.000 083

*The paid-up equity share capital of the Company has increased from 2,165.28 lacs to 2,313.88 lacs as che result of conversion of

CCPPS into equity shares of Rs, 5/- each on 30.04.2015,

26




23" ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

{F) Name of the Promoter:- Suresh Kumar Poddar & Sons (HUF)

Sl. For Each of che Promoter Shareholding at che Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of che year during che year
No. of shares % af total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company* cthe Company*
| | At the beginning of the year 3101600 7.18 3101600 716

2 | Date wise increase/decrease in Promaters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity ecc.) Nil Nil 3101600 6.7

3 | At the end of the year 3101600 6.70 31015600 6.7

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {ocher chan Direccors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. No. Name Shareholding at the Beginning of the year
No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company
| DSP Balckrock Balanced Fund 20,546,457 475
2 HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited A/C Jwalamulhi
Investment Heold 18,05,980 4.17
3 Newedge Group Alc Malabar India Fund Limited 9,38,722 217
4 Priya Singh Aggarwal 2,00,000 0.44
5 IL and FS Trust Company Limitad 1,70,288 0.39
) Lincoln P Coelho 1,70,000 0.39
7 RathiTechservices Privace Limited 1,586,153 0.38
8 Rahul Ramkumar Rathi 1,55,782 0.38
9 Nilaesh Hastimal Shah 1,20,000 0.28
10 Suresh Sureka 1,20,000 0.28

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the financial year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease(e.g.
allotment /cransfer/bonusisweac equity ecc.)

Sl No. Name Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of shares % of tatal shares
of the Company
| Weschridge Crossover Fund, LLC 29.72,000 6.42
2 DSP Balckrock Balanced Fund 3,401,638 0.43
3 Newedge Group Afc Malabar India Fund Limited 940,294 4.06
4 HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited A/C Jwalamukhi
Invescment Hold 0 0.00
5 IL and FS Trust Company Limited 65,000 0.51
[ ICICI Prudential Value Fund Series 8 2,31,585 0.50
7 Priya Singh Aggarwal -6391 0.05
8 Lincoln P Coelhe 0 0.00
9 Rathi Techservices Private Limited -5000 0.03
10 Nilesh Hastimal Shah 0 0.00
Il Suresh Sureka 0 0.00
12 Rahul Ramkumar Rathi 0 0.00

*The paid-up equity share capital of the Company has increased from 2,165.28 lacs to 2,313.88 lacs as the result of conversion of
CCPPS inta equity shares of Rs. 5/- each on 30.04.20(5.
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Ac the end of the financial year {or on che dace of separation, if separated during the year) {(31.03.2016):

S No. Name Sharehaolding ac the end of the year
No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company
I Westbridge Crossover Fund, LLC 29,72,000 6.42
2 DSP Balckrock Balanced Fund 23,98,095 5.18
3 MNewedge Group Alc Malabar India Fund Limiced 18,79,016 4.06
4 HSBC Bank {Mauritius) Limited A/C Jwalamukhi Investment Hold 18,05,980 3.9
5 IL and FS Trust Company Limited 2,35,286 051
6 ICICI Prudential Value Fund Series & 2,311,585 0.50
7 Priya Singh Aggarwal 1,83,609 0.42
B Lincaln P Coelho 1,70,000 0.37
9 Rathi Techservices Private Limited 1,51,153 0.33
10 Nilesh Hastimal Shah 1,20,000 0.26
I Suresh Sureka 1,20,000 0.26
{v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Persannel:
Details the Shareholding of Suresh Kumar Poddar { Chairman and Managing Director & KMP of Mayur)
Sl For Each of the Direccors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulacive Shareholding
No. end of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares | % of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company* the Company*
I | Ac the beginning of the year 1,61.14312 37.21 1.61,14,312 37.21
2 | Dace wise increase/decrease in Promoters/ {4,26,988) [Open
Director & KMP Shareholding during the year Market Sale
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease on 17.04.2015]
{e.g. allotment/transfer/bonusisweat equity etc) 0.59 1,56,87,324 339
3 | At the end of the year 1,56,87,324 33.9 1,56,87,324 339

Details che Shareholding of Manav Poddar {Executive Direccor)

Sl. For Each of the Direccors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulacive Shareholding
No. end of the year during che year
No. of shares % of tatal Nao. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company?¥ the Company*
| Ac the beginning of the year 72,6592 16.78 7265912 16.78
2 | Dace wise increasefdecrease in Promoters/
Director & KMP Shareholding during che year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil 72,65912 15.7
3 | Acthe end of the year 7265912 15,7 7265912 15.7

*The paid-up equity share capical of the Company has increased from 2,165.28 lacs to 2,313.88 lacs as the result of conversion of
CCPPS inco equity shares of Rs. 5/- each on 30.04.2015.
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Details the Shareholding of Arun Kumar Bagaria {(Executive Director)

Sl. For Each of the Direccors & KMP Shareholding at che Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of che year during che year
No. of shares % af total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company* cthe Company*
| | At the beginning of the year 6,00,000 .39 §,00,000 1.39
2 | Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters/ {50,000) [Open 5,50,000 1.19
Director & KMP Shareholding during the year Market Sale
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease on 17.04.2015]
{e.z. allotment/transfer/banus/sweat equity etc) 0.12
3 Ar the end of the year 5,50,000 1.19 5,50,000 1.19

Details the Shareholding of Kanwarjit Singh (Independent Director)

Sl For Each of the Direccors & KMP Shareholding at che Cumulative Sharehaolding
No. end of the year during the year
No. of shares % of cotal No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
| | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 | Dare wise increase/decrease in Promoters/
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotment/transfar/bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 | At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details the Shareholding of BL Bajaj (Independent Director)

Sl. For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Na. end of cthe year during che year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
| | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 | Date wise Increase/decrease in Promaters
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.z. allotment/transfer/banus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 | At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details the Shareholding of Rameshwar Pareek {Independent Director) {Ceased on 13.08.2015)

Sl. For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Na. end of the year during the year
No. of shares % of cotal No. of shares (% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
| | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 | Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters/
Director & KMP Share holding during che year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.z. allotment/transfer/banus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

*The paid-up equity share capital of the Company has increased from 2,165.28 lacs co 2,313.88 lacs as the result of conversion of
CCPPS inca equicy shares of Rs. 5/- each on 30.04.2015.
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Sl For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of the year during the year
No. aof shares % of total Na. af shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
cthe Company the Company
I | At cthe beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
? | Date wise increase/decrease in Promaoters/
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotmentltransfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | Acthe end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details the Shareholding of Prahalad Sahay Jangid {Chief Financial Officer and KM

P) (Ceased on 13.08.2015)

Sl For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of cocal shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
I | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 | Date wise increasefdecrease in Promoters/
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity ecc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | Acthe end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details che Shareholding of Nikhil Saxena {Company Secretary and KMP)

Sl For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding ac the Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of the year during the year
No. af shares % of total Na. of shares |% of cocal shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
I | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
? | Date wise increase/decrease in Promaters/
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | Acthe end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details the Shareholding of Gumanmanl Jain {Chief Financial Officer and KMP) (appointed w.e.f. 13.08.2015)

Sl For Each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. end of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares |% of total shares
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
I | At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 | Date wise increasefdecrease in Promoters/
Director & KMP Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/decrease
{e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | Acthe end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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v INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest oucscanding/accrued but noc due for paymenc (Rs. in lacs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Depaosits Total
excluding deposics Loans Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the
financial year
i} Principal Amount 4,274.12 207.87 Nil 4481.99
ii) Interest due buc not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii] Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total {i+ii+iii) 4,274.12 207.87 Nil 4,481.99
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Additions 19,314.92 695.80 Nil 40,010.72
Reduction 41,184.87 720.60 Nil 41,905.47
Net Change -1,869.95 -24.80 Nil -1,894.76
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i} Principal Amount 2404.16 183.07 Nil 2,587.23
ii) Interest due buc not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total {i+ii+iii) 1,404.16 183.07 Nil 2,587.23
Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A, Remuneration co Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: (Rs. In Lacs)
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Name of Total
No. MD: Whole Time Directors Amount
Mr. Suresh Mr. Manav Mr. Arun
Kumar Poddar Poddar Kumar Bagaria
I | Grosssalary
{a) Salary as per provisions caontained in
section | 7{1) of the Income Tax, 1961, 135.77 99.50 90,15 325142
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income cax Act, 961 7481 2.82 1.76 13.19
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL NIL NIL
2 | Stock option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 | Swear Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 | Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profic NIL NIL NIL NIL
- others (specify) NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) 143.38 102.32 92.91 338.461
Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 1,258.84 Lacs (being 10% of net profits of the Company calculated as
per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)
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B. Remuneration to other directors: (Rs. in lacs)
Sl Particulars of Name of the Directors Tocal Amount
No. Remuneration
| Independent Directors Mr. Rameshwar | Mr. Kanwarjic | Mr B.L. Bajaj Mrs. Tanuja
Pareek Singh Agarwal
(2) Fee for attending board
committee meetings 0.66 |.00 |03 1.07 376
{byCommission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
{¢) Orchers, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) 0.66 1.00 1.03 1.07 3.76

2 Other Non Executive Directors

(2) Fee for attending board

committee meetings NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
{c) Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total {B)=(1+2) 0.646 1.00 1.03 0.26 3.76
Total Managerial
Remuneration 342.37

Overall Cieling as per the Act, | Rs. 1,384.72 Lacs {being | 1% of net profits of the Company calculated as per Section
198 of the Companies Act, 201 3)

* Total Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and Other Directors (being the Total of A and B)

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/IMANAGER/WTD

(Rs. in lacs)

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
| | GrossSalary Mr. Suresh Mr. Nilchil Mr.Prahalad [Mr. Gumanmal Total
Kumar Poddar Saxena Sahay Jangid Jain
{(CEQ) {CS) {(CFO-upto | (CFO-w.e.f,

13.08.2015) | 13.08.2015)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income

Tax Act, 1961, 135.77 5.07 392 14.48 159.24
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17{2) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 761 0.36 0.08 |.66 9.71
() Profics in lieu of salary under section
I 7{3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2 | Stock Qption NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 | Sweat Equiry NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 | Commissicn NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profic NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
- others, spacify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total 143.38 5.43 4.00 16.14 163.95
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VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/ICOMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type

Section of the
Companies
Act, 2013

Brief
Descripcion

Details of
Penaltyi
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
{RD/NCLT/
Court)

Appeal made
if any
(give details)

A. COMPANY

Penaley NONE

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penaley NONE

Punishment

Compounding

€. OTHER OFFICERS
IN DEFAULT

Penalty NONE

Punishment

Campounding
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Annexure -V

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause {o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility)
Rules, 2014]

I. A brief oudine of the Company’s C5R policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs: Refer Corporate Social Responsibifity Policy in this Report.

2, The composition of the C5R Committee: I, Mrs, Tanuja Agarwal
2. Mr Suresh Kumar Poddar
3. Mr Kanwarjic Singh
4. Mr. B.L. Bajaj
3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: 8053.44 Lacs.
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure {twa per cant of the amount as in item 3 above): |61.07 Lacs.
5. Derails of CSR spent during the financial year:
(1) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: 161.07 Lacs
(b} Total amount Spenc 70.03 Lacs

{¢) Total amount unspent : 21.05 Lacs
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(d) Manner in which the amount spent during che financial year is detailed below {in Rs.)
| 2 3 4 5 b 7 8
5. | CSRproject Sectorin Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
No. or accivicy which the programs ouclay on che projects | expendicure spenc:
identified projectis {budget) OF programs upto to the Direct or
cavered project or reporting through
programs wise period
{I) Local Sub - implementing
area or other heads: agency*
(2) Specify {1) Direct
the State and expenditure
district where on projects
prajects or or pragrams
programms was
undertaken
(2) Overheads
| | Preventive Healch Phagi {Jaipur), %0,97,000 950215 950215 Direct
Health Care and Govindgarh
Sanitation and (Jaipur), Rajasthan
making available
Safe Drinking
Water
2 | Promoring Education Dhodsar (Jaipur) 51,25,000 20,086,979 20,06,979 Direct
education & Jaipur City
including special
education to girl
child and
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects
3 | Promoting Education Dhodsar {Jaipur) 38,25,000 37.20,000 37,20,000 Through
education and & Jaipur City Implementing
differently abled Agency
and livelihood
enhancement
prajects
4 [ Ensuring Envircnment | Dhodsar (Jaipur) 3,00,000 1,69,953 1,639,953 Direct
environmental
sustainability
5 | Prometicn of Sports Dhodsar (Jaipur) 3,00,000 1,146,364 I,16,364 Direct
Rural Sports
6 | Rural Rural Dhodsar (Jaipur} 4.53.32¢ 39,150 39,150 Direct
Development Development
Project
TOTAL 1,61,00,320 70,02,665 70,02,665
6.  ]ustification for short fall: Company is planning to cover 100 schools as a Happy Schools in coming two years.We plan to spend
Rs. 6,00,000/- per school. Previously the Company as supported 10 government schaols with all facilicies lilke Clean & Hygienic,
separate toilets for boys, Girls & Teachers, Safe and Adequate drinking wacer, books & furnitures in the Library. Full Uniforms for
poor students, sports macerial and equipment, benches and desks for studencs & teachers, computer, e-learning material & green
board for becter vision, Activity Room {Learning game, LED Monitot, Decorated Room Ete.), Science Activity equipments. The
Company incends spend to Rs. 6 Crore in coming years. In schools we also plan develop Rain water harvesting system sao that
we could contribute for society specially increase ground Water level in rural area. Assurance and availabilicy of these basic
facilities increase the actendance and enrollment in government schools. We also plan to work on Swachh Bharat Mission in five
villages nearby our plant area.
7. A responsibility stacement of the CSR Commitcee that che implementation and monicoring of the CSR Policy , is in compliance

with C5R objectives and policy of the Company:- Yes
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M MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LTD

ANNEXURE-VI TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PARTICULARS REQUIRED UNDER THE .
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURES OF PARTICULARS
IN REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS)
RULES, 1988 .

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Coating line 6th from ISOTEX, Itlay is of wider widch of
2 meters which has resulted increased production with
the fixed cost remaining the same.

Incerporating new technology in the air-conditioning
system in upcoming facilities to optimize power
consumption and identification and replacement of low

efficienc machines {AC) in the phased manner.
{i) Steps taken for conservation of energy (AC) P

The Company is continuously engaged in the process of
energy conservation & strives to make the plant energy
efficient. Energy conservation dictates how efficiently a
company can conduct its operations and reduce che cost of
production thereby increasing the profitability benifitting
the Company as well as it's customer.

Mayur recognize the importance of energy conservation in
decreasing the deleterious effects of global warming and
climate change. The Company has undertaken various energy
efficient practices and is commicted to become an
environment friendly organisation. The dedicated team of
professional is focusing on energy conservation across all
manufacturing sites.

Identification and replacement of old inefficient motors
with high efficient motors in the phased manners.

Identification and replacement old copper chock
tubelites wich energy efficienc fluorescent tubelice with
electronic blast.

Transparenc sheets has been fixed at che reof top in the
plants to improve the day light availability and reduce
the energy consumption.

Hot air is recycled in the oven at che coating line
to reduce the energy consumption, thereby
reducing the cost of production and increase the
profitabilicy.

PARTICULARS 2015-16 2014-15
A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION
. Electricity
a.  Purchased
Unics (KWH) 1,02,39,176.50 88,50,765
Total Amount (Rs. in Lacs) 73142 572.02
Rate /Unit {Rs. /IKWH) 7.14 6.46
b. Own Generation (Through Diesel Generator)
Unics (KWH) 5,76,503 6.23.667
Unit per liter of Diesel Oil 3.10 3.14
Cost/Unit (Rs. /KVWH) 16.90 18.62
2. High Speed Diesel (HSD)
Quantity (KL) 186.20 198.49
Total Cost (Rs. in Lacs) 974| I16.12
Average Rate (Rs./KL} 52,313 58,501
3. Coal
Quantity {Kg) | 1,406,540 1,21,80,895
Total Cost (Rs. in Laes) 85481 984.47
Average Rate (Rs./Kg) 749 8.08
B. Consumption per Linear Meter of PU/PVC Synthetic Leather
Electricity Purchased {KVWH/Lacs Linear Meters) 42,201 38,357
HSD (KL/Lacs Linear Meters) 0.77 0.86
Coal {Kg/Lacs Linear Meters.) 47,013 52,789
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTICN

Particulars with respect to technology absorption are given
in Form —B' given below:

FORM ‘B’

Farm for Disclosures of Particulars with respect to
Technology Absorption:

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D})

The R&D facus remains on development of safe and
efficacious environmenc friendly products for che cleaner
and greener environment to meec cuscomer demand.
Research & Development has played a majer role in the
success of Mayur aver a long time.The R&D department is
equipped with latesc and modern proto type product
development facilities and has sophisticated analytical facilicies
to analyze the new developments. The R&D team works on
time bound prcjects which are reviewed periodically. In
addition to new technologies and formulation, innovacions
R&D has increased the consumer value of existing products,
product cost raduetion and packing innovaticns.

+  Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company:

JeepTop using high tear strength fabric and low shrinlcage
to sustain high winds at driving ac high speed, VWarter
repellenc, anti microhial property.

Car seating product with very low fog, Low Volatile
emissions and low heavy metal content.

Product for door trims and seac applications meeting Bolster,
DEL-5348 Specification meeting Eurcpean reach norms.

Benefics derived as a resulc of the above R&D:

R&D is committed cowards continuous improvement
and development of coating line process to become one
of the lowest cost synthetic leacher producer worldwide.
Qur acdivities in this area continue to concentrace on
lowering the rejection, reducing the wastages, increasing
productivity, lengthening the plant life and improving the
produce yield. R&D has also resuleed Mayur to be the
preferred supplier to the Automotive OEM Markec in
USA and Europe. Mayur R&D facilities has enabled its to
the development of various new products for car
interiors of Chrysler, GM and lsuzu.

Future Plan of Accion:

In che forthcoming years R&D will continue che zbove
mentioned programs for developing the new
formulations, cost concrol, and Mayur will continue to
commercialize its innovations.

Expenditure on R&D:

In terms of Capital: Rs. 65.15 Lacs (Rs. 153.04 Lacs)
Recurring nature:Rs.560.19 Lacs (Rs.584.50 Lacs) Toral:
Rs. 625.34 Lacs (Rs 737.54 Lacs)

B. TECHNOQLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION
AND INNOVATION

a)

Efforts in brief made towards technology
absorption, adaptation and innovation:

The Company realizes that in order to stay competitive
and avoid obsolescence, Tt will have to invest in
technology acrass multiple product line and have to
introduce the new praducets in line with the demand of
the customer. In order to maintain its position of
leadership, your Cempany has continuously and
successfully developed state-of-the-art technology and
methods for absorbing, adapting and effeccively
developing new products,

Hence, the Company is making every effort to develop
products to meet the changing demand of the public at
large.

. Efforts made towards technology absorption,
adaptation and innovation: Company lays greater
emphasis on cechnology ahsorprion and
innovations as the Company is engaged in the
business marked with rapid technology changes
and obsolescence. Comparny strives to keep pace
with the rapid changes adopt new technologies
periadically to be in line with competitive market
conditions, The Company has installed the state of
art fully automatic 6™ coating line from ISCTEX,
lealy in addition to the fully automatic Kitchen,
Laboratory, embossing machine, inspection ac the
Dadhsar. Plant which has resulted in reduction
the cost of production The Company continucusly
strives to adope latest technology for improving
productivity, quality and reducing consumption of
scarce raw material, energy and other inputs.

. Benefits derived as a resulcs of che abeve efforts:

The adoption of the latest cechnology and
innovative ideas has enabled your company to have
an edge on others due to highly productivity, better
services and increased consumer confidence. It
also has enabled the so as to explore new areas of
generating the revenue.We have able to save huge
cost on power and fuel, wastage, better inventory
management and reduce one process. It has also
lead to reduction in the wacer and air pollution.

In case of imported technology {imported during the
last five years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year}, following information may be furnished:

Technolagy imported N.A
Year of imported N.A.
Whether technology been fully absorbed N.A.
If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not

taken place, reasons thereof and plans of action N.A
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(Rs. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS 2015-146 2014-15

Earnings

Exports at FOB value 13057.06 12,711.00
OUTGO

CIF value of imported capital goods and spares 328.27 487 48
CIF value of imported raw material 11551.55 12,313.59
Traveling abroad 22,23 68.04
Commission 421.05 34241
Ochers 463.14 3187.65
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ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

India’s economy is the fastest grawing economy in the World.
Powerad by a sharp rise in manufacturing and gains from
benign crude oil prices, the Indian economy has grown above
the expectation in the current financial year 2015-16.Thanks
to the benign global crude oil prices and the Centre’s decision
to reduce subsidy payours, the overall subsidy bill is expected
to decline this fiscal, thereby improving the GDP numbers.
The Indian ecanomy has grown by 7.4% approx. says the
Central Statistics Office. Manufacturing, presumably bucyed
by a significant fall in input costs following the collapse of
global commodity prices, registered a sharp pickup in the
third quarter: India is now just close to $2 crillion ecanomy
in 2016-17.

The need is to be maintained so that the foundations of
stable and sustainable growth are strengthened. Structural
reforms in che forthcaming Union budget chat boest grawth
while controlling spending will create more space for
monetary policy to support growth, while alse ensuring thac
inflation remains on the projected path of 5% by the end of
2016-17.

India’s economy is buoyant in the global context, but from a
domestic perspective, it may require same supporc to revive
rural demand and rejuvenate public sector banks.

It is expected that in the years to come. India’s growth rate
will overtake chat of china. Though very encouraging in icself,
this growth rate has to be much higher to achieve paricy
with China, considering that the size of China GDF at present
is abouc five times thac of India.

India’s share of worldwide footwear market is only about
7% as compared to China which cacers to 72% of toral werld
footwear market. There is scope for significanc growth of
this industry in India. The scope of creating additional
employment opportunity in this industry is also greater than
even the automotive industry. All chac is required is proper
thrust in this direction by the governmenc.

One of India's scrongesc initiatives to gain a global footpring,
“Make in India” which is providing momenwum and renewed
focus to manufacturing in India through skill development.

The Government of India multidimensional reforms being
taken far “Ease of Doing Business” through its procedural
reforms in areas such as roads, power, ship-building, railways
and civil aviation and has towards simplifying envircnmental
clearances, digitalization, single window clearances and
decentralization of operations.

The Digital India initiative consolidates multiple dimensions
such as online procedures, e-governance, education and
infrastructure provision to take to the next trajectory of [T
enabled growth which helps to manufacturing industries. Your
company believes in proactively harnessing technology,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

processes inhovation and opportunity for process improvement
adds tangible benefit to boch Customer and Company.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Despite a wealc demand, being a market leader in artificial
leather, the Company has reported scrong operational
performance in the financial year 2015-16.Wich the footwear
industry not doing well, wa have focused maore an autamobile
and furnishing. The Company’s also focus on the export
market has started yielding good results.

The falling crude prices reduced the prices of the raw
materials like PV.C. Resin plasticizer and synchetic yarn used
in manufacturing of synthetic leather which has benefited
the Company.The benefit of this reduction was passed on to
the customers’ resulting in less realization.Yet the Company
was able to achieve a PAT Growth of 25.21%.

Your Company is planning to enter into the new markets
where its presence is less as well as developing the new
products.

Mayur is set to faray into the manufacturing of PU synthecic
leacher, given its closer resemblance to natural leather and
higher realizations v/s PYC synthetic leather. India has a huge
market for PU synthetic leather, which is largely catered to
by imports given che dearth of large, organized manufaccurers
in the country. Mayur plans to set up a greenfield PLJ plant
near its existing facilicies in Rajasthan with a capacity of 0.6mn
linear meters per month. India imports 5-6mn meters of PU
every manth, mainly from China.

The Company is also seeking approval for usage of
ground water in che water-deficic state of Rajasthan, given
the large quanticy of water required for operating a PU
plant. Since with usage of ground water ac the plant
location not permitted, hence the Company has
appreached the State Government to use waste water
from nearby town Rengus.We are also approaching other
states for the better opportunities and ease for secting
up the PU Plant.

The Company plans to hire a team of experts from abroad,
who would later train domestic manpower for future
operations. The managemenct believes its extensive
experience in PVC synthecic manufacturing will lead
successfully to sec up and operate the PU plant, which
will emerge as a long-term growth catalyst for the
Company and will lead it co the next phase of high
growth.

India’s synthecic leacher market has grown at a 14% CAGR
over FY12-FY 15 to Rs. 40bn led by rising demand from major
user segments {automotive and foorweai}. The trend is
expected to continue, and Mayur being the largest arganized
player with clients across segments, is set co furcher
consolidate its position in chis growing market.
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Key end users of synthetic leathers include the footwear
industry and automobile seats; both sectors together account
for 70-75% of toral induscry demand with footwear
commanding a lion’s share. Ocher user industries include
furnishing, sports goods, ladies” bags, fashion accessories
etc. key footwear clients include names such as Bata, Relaxo,
Action, VKC group and Paragon.

Automobile seats are another major demand driver for the
synthetic leather industry. Mayur supplies to leading OEMs
in the domestic market such as Maruci, Tata Motors, Eicher
Mators, Ford {India), General Motors (India), M&M, Honda
Motorcycles and Scooters India.

India’s artificial leacher market is expected to see healthy
growth going for forward due to rising domestic demand
and higher exports. Many glabal arcificial leather players are
looking ac making India their manufacturing hub, which should
boost demand for synthetic leather,

Mayur has been focusing on the domestic replacement markec
for automobile seats, a high-growth user segment for the
synthetic leather industry, marked by the presence of several
unorganised players. However, the trend has been changing
with organized players witnessing high growth, and Mayur is
emerging as a big beneficiary in its segment

Mayur also exports synthetic leacher for use in furnishing
and fashion products to markets such as the Midedle East, the
UK, Russia, Europe, USA and Sri Lanka. The Company focuses
new markers with plans co enter some new geographical
areas which should lead co high growth.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Over the years, the Company has devoted significant
resources cowards its research and development
activities. The Company's research and developmenc
activities focus on product development, environmental
technelogies. The Company’s R&D Centre is engaged in
the development of new processes and suitable
formulations for known synthetic leather industry and
value-added & differentiated products by leveraging our
unigue technologies.

The Company believes thac it has established a strong
position in the Indian automobile industry by launching
new preducts, investing in research and development,
strengchening its finzncial position and expanding its
manufacturing and distribution network. The Company has
increased its presence in the global automotive markets
and enhanced its praduct range and capabilities. The
Company aims to position itself as a2 major international
synthetic Leather company by offering products across
various markets by combining its engineering and other
screngths.

The Company’s research and development focuses on
developing and acquiring the cechnology, core competence
and skill set required for the timely delivery of its envisaged
future product portfolio with industry-leading features.
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Company has enhanced its technological strengths through
extensive in-house research and development activities.

Mayur R&D team laid significant emphasis on various areas
such as:

a) Development of the new products according the
specifications of the customers, introduction of the
new products in the market, replacement of the old
products and morecver the prime focus is on the
reduction in the cost of the product with the use of the
alternative raw material.

b) Adoption of the new technologies.

¢) Promoting the in house research and development
facilities,

d)  Environment change is one of the major issue the world
is facing today and Mayur want to the part of this solution
Our R&D Division concentrates to:-

i} reduce emissions in the short to medium term, in
line with current technology;

i) Invest in che research and development for long
term breakthrough in technologies;

i) Develop new products and services that reduce
£O2 emissions through the lifecycle;

iv} Product for the hospitality, Restaurant and office
seating application meeting the high level of flame
recard with low smoke and low toxicity.

These efforts of R&D division have enabled us to sustain and
increase the dominance of Mayur as a brand in the synthetic
leather market, supported by buoyancy in sales bath in
domestic and export market,

BUSINESS OUTLOOK:

The artificial Leather Industry holds a prominent place in che
Indian economy. Synthetic leather, also known as ardificial
leather, which is made by coating polyvinyl chloride (PVC)
on fabric and is four-five times cheaper than natural leather.
It's used to make footwear, accessories such as bags and
purses, furnishings and car upholstery. The Company is
planning to make PL! artificial leather, which is mainly made
by China, and in India, very small quantity is produced. About
5-6 million mecers are imported per month and we need a
bulk of investment here. However, the realisation is much
better than PYC. So we will be the first company in India to
produce it in bulk.

Mayur now intends to increase its reach in the domestic
furnishing market which is characterized by high margins and
limited organised competition. The Company plans o appoint
discributars across all state capitals with a distributor
netwark of 50 by FY18.

Mayur always hold a betcer position over its competitors.
Mayur’s key customers are recession resilient, and the
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Company caters players like Ford (USA), Chrysler (USA),
Ford {India), General Motors {India), Mahindra, Maruti, Honda
Motorcycles and Scooters Pyve, Limived, Tata Motors, Eicher
Motors among automotives, Bata, Action, Lancer, Relaxo,
Paragon,VKC Group, among footwear as its clients, This has
enabled Mayur to enjoy the dominant position in the industry.
In the pasc few years the quality has improved tremendously
- in design, cexcure, colour matching, tensile screngeh, abrasion
tolerance, ete.

As the rise in the living standard is taking place, che demand
for the premium and value added products will continue ta
rise, Mayur being a prominent player in leather industry
capicalize che same and deriving 50% revenue from the
footwear segment.

After the footwear segment the automotive segment
including the replacement Market generates the revenue
after footwear. This segmenc derives almost 35% of the
revenue of Mayur,

The auro replacement marker in India is a vary big markec
and had tremenidous growth opporunities. The strong auto
sales performance will also act as a catalyse for Mayur's growth
Synthetic leather is used in furnishings, sports goods, ladies’
bags , and a number of fashion accessaries and this being
fashion Industry is very fast changing and will continue to
grow with the rise in the per capita income and urbanization.
This segment demands the premium product with the high
value addition and here Mayur's strong R&D team gives an
edge on its competitors.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Mayur puts great emphasis on human resource by personnel
develapmental in¢luding training, both technical and
managerial, are regularly conducted to enhance human
potential. An integrated talent management process becomes
the Foundation of how we manage and develop lent to
ensure a strong leadership pipeline,

The managemenc has always carried out systematic appraisal
of performance and imparted training at periodic intervals,
The Company has always recognized talent and has judiciously
followed che principle of rewarding performance.

We value our employees therefore a structured process to
analyses feedbacks, brainstorm action plans and implement
them through dedicaced teams was setup. The objective was
to create a cohesive work culture.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statemencts in the Management Discussion and Analysis and
Direccors Report describing the Company’s strengths,
strategies, projections and estimates, are forward-looking
statements and progressive within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Accual results may vary from chose
expressed or implied, depending upon ecanomic conditions,
Government Policies and other incidental factars., Mayur
will not be in any way responsible for any action taken based
on such stacements and undertakes no obligation ca publicly
updace chese forward-looking statements, to reflect
subsequent events or circumstances,
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report for the year ended on 315 March
2016

In accordance with Regulation 27 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the report containing the deails of corporate
governance systems and processes at Mayur Uniquoters Limiced
(Mayur) is as follows:

The Company has a defined policy framework for ethical conduct
of businessas. Ve believe that any business conduct can be ethical
only when it considers customer value, ownership mindset,
respect, integricy, one team and excellence. Corporate governance
is all about maintaining a valuahle relationship and trust with all
stakeholders. We consider stakeholders as partners 'n our
success, and we remain committed to maximizing stakeholder's
value, be it shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers,
investors, communities or policy makers. This approach to value
creadion emanates from cur belief that scund governance system,
based on relationship and trust, is integral ro creacing enduring
value for all.

B COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance shows a set of systems and practices
to ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed in a
manner which ensures accountability, transparency and
fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. The objective
is to meet stakeholder’s aspirations and societal
expectations. Good governance practices generates from
the dynamic culture and positive mindset of the organization.
This is described in sharehelder returns, high credit ratings,
goverhance processes ahd an encrepreneurial performance
focused work environment.

Mayur is committed to conduct its business based on the
highest standard of corporate governance. At Mayur,
corporate governance has been an integral part of doing our
business since inception. Mayur, being a value-driven
organization for all the stakehoclders, ic has always worked
towards building trust with shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders based on the
principle of good corporate governance Viz. integricy, aquity,
transparency, fairness, disclosure accountability and
commitment o values. These main drivers together with
the Company's outgoing contribution te the local communities
through meaningful corporate social responsibility initiatives
will play a pivotal role in fulfilling our vision o be the most
admired and competitive company in our industry and our
mission to create the value for all our stakehelders. These
practices have been fallowed since inception and have lead
to the sustained growth of the Company.

At Mayut; it is our belief that as we move closer towards our
aspirations of becoming a stupendous corporation, our
corporate governance standards must be planetary
benchmarked. This gives us the confidence of having put in
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the righc building blocks for future growth and ensuring thac
we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and sustainable manner.

APPROPRIATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
WITH DEFINED ROLES AND RESPONSIEBILITIES

The Company has puc in place an internal governance
scructure with defined roles and responsibilities of every
constituent of the system. The Company has established
systems and procedures to ensure that its board of directors
s well informed and well-equipped to fulfill their overall
responsibilities and to provide the management wich the
strategic direction needed to create long term sharehalder
value.

The Company has a mulci-tier management structure,
comprising the board of directors at the top and fellowed
by Managing Director, Executive Directors, divisional heads
and departmencal heads and executive officers. Through this,
It is ensured that

+  Board provides strategic supervision;
. Risk is suitably evaluated and dealt with;

= QOperational management remains focused on
implementacion;

= Making of leans and investment of surplus funds is
adequate;

= Annual operating plans of businesses and budgets
including capital budgecs and any updates;

= Financial and operating control and integrity are
maintained at an optimal level;

= Control and implementation of company’s strategy is
achieved effectively; and

= Diversify the business of the Company whenever
required.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board composition and category of Directors

The Company's policy is to maincain optimum combination
of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 3 | March,
20186, the board of the Company consisted of Six (6) directors
comptrising of three (3) Execucive Directors and Three (3)
Mon-Executive Directors. All the Three Non Executive
Directors are independent and are highly experienced,
competent and renowned persans from their respective
fields. The Board of the Company is headed by Execucive
Chairman. The board is responsible for achieving the vision
and mission set for the Company through its teams and for
the overall performance and growth of the Company.

The compaosition of the Board and category of Directors
are as on 31* March 2015 is as follows:
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Name Category Designation No of committees Position No of
in other caompanies Directorship in
Chairperson Member | other companies
Mr. Suresh Kumar Executive, Chairman and Nil Nil Nil
Poddar Promoter & CEQ Managing Director
Mr. Manav Poddar*® Executive and Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Mr. Arun Kumar Executive and Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
Bagaria Promoter
Mr. Kanwarjic Singh Non Execurive & Direcror Nil Nil Nil
Independent
Mr. Rameshwar Non Execucive & Direcror 2 &
Pareek** Independent
Mr. B. L. Bajaj Non Execurive & Direcror Nil Nil
Independent
Ms. Tahuja Agarwal Non Execurive & Direcror Nil Nil Nil
Independent

* Mr. Manav Poddar ceased asg a director wee.f. 01.05.2014 and was appointed as an additional director w.e.f - 09.06.2016

# Mr. Rameshwar Pareek ceased as a director wef [3.08.2015

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10
Commiccees or Chairman of more than 5 commictees (as specified
in Regulation 26 of SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015) across all
public limited companies in which he is a director.

The Company had issued formal letters of appointment to
independent directors ih che manner as provided in the Companies
Act, 2013,

The terms and conditions of appointment are disclosed on the
website of che Company.

The Company has always ensured that all the provisions of
corparate gavernance as stipulated under of SEBl {LODR)
Regulations, 2015, are complied with.

Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors

The Board members are provided with necessary documencs,
reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize with
the Company’s procedures and practices.

The Campany has conducted programmes for familiarization of
Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilicias in the Company, nature of the industry in which
the Company operates, business model, legal macters under
various Regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India viz.
PIT.SAST, LODR, Relaced Party Transaction, Companies Act, 2013
and other related marcters under the guidance of Consulcants and
Top Managemenc and more than 15 hours has been spent on it
These programmes have been devised under the guidance of
consultants and Top Management.

The decails of such familiarization programmes for independent
directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be
accessed ac www.mayuruniguoters.com.

Meeting of Independent Directors

During che year under review, the independent direccors met on
29.03.2016 incer alia, to discuss:

*  Bvaluation of the performance of Mon-independent Direcrors
and the Board of Direcrtors as a whole.

«  BEvaluation of the performance of che chairman of che
Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and
Non-executive directors.

«  Bvaluaticn of che quality, contenc and timeliness of flow of
information between the management and the board that is
necessary for the board co effectively and reasanably perform
its duties.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The code of conduct has been circulated to all the members of the
board and senior management personnel and they have affirmed
their compliance with the said code of conduct for cthe financial
year ended 3 [* March 201 6. The cede of conduct has been pasted
on the Company’s website: -www.mayuruniquoters com

This code ensures compliance with the provisions of Regulacion
27 of SEBI (LODR) Regulaticns, 201 5. A declaration to this effect
signed by Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, Chalrman & Managing
Director & CEO of the Company is annexed to the Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND notice to meet the Company requirement,

PROCEDURES
Seven board meetings were held during the year and the gap
Board Meecings between two was not more than one hundred and twenty
) ) days. The dates on which the board meetings were held are as
The board generally meets 4 (Four} times during the year. follows:
Additional board meetings are convened by giving appropriate
Name of Atcendance at the Board Meetings held on Attendance
Director at the AGM
30.04.2015]12.05.2015]| 12.06.2015] 13.08.2015]02.11.2015 (09.02.201 6| 14.03.201 6 held on
31.07.2015
Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Manav Poddar* MNa No No No No Yes Yes No
Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Kanwarijit Singh Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No
Mr. Rameshwar Pareek™ Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A N.A, N.A. Yes
Mr. B.L. Bajaj Yes Yas No Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Ms. Tanuja Agarwal Mo No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Neo

* Manav Poddar ceased as a director w.ef. 01.05.2016 and was appointed as an additional director w.e.f - 09.06.2016
#* Mr, Rameshwar Pareek ceased as a director wed, 13.08.2015

B Board Committee Meecings and Procedures

A) AUDIT By NOMINATION AND C.) STAKEHOLDER'S
COMMITTEE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
D.) CSR E) RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE*

*Risk Management Committee was dissolved w.ef. 09.02.20] 6.

A.) AUDIT COMMITTEE The Committee’s composition meets with requirements of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation |18 of

The audit committee continued working under Chairmanship of SEBI {LODR) Regulacions, 2015. Members of the audit committee

Mr. B.L. Bajaj with Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, Mr. Kanwarjic Singh ~ possess financial / accounting expertise / exposure.

and Mrs.Tanuja Agarwal as members as on 3|* March, 2016.During

the year, the committee met on Six occasions i.e, 30.04.2015,

12.05.2015, 12.06.2015, 13.08.2015, 02.11.2015 and 09.02.2016.

The composition of the audic commiteee as on March 31%, 2016
and details of the members participation at the meetings of the
commictee are as under:

Name of Director Category Acttendance at the Committee Meetings held on
30.04.2015(12.05.2015]12.06.2015[13.08.2015|02.11.2015]09.02.201 6
Rameshwar Pareek® Chairman Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A, N.A,
B.L. Bajaj** Membher/Chairman Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes
Kanwarijit Singh Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Tanuja Agarwal Member No No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Suresh Kumar Poddar Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

# Mr. Rameshwar Pareek ceased as a Directar wef. 13.08.2015.

*% Mr. B.L. Bajaj appointed as Chairman of the Audit Commictee w.ef. 13.08.2015
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Terms of Reference of Audit Commictee

9.

10.

Owversight of the Company’s financial reporcng process and
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms
of appointment of auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment to statutory audicors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial
staternents and auditor’s report thereon before submission
to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s
Responsibility Scatement to be included in the Board’s
reportin terms of clause (¢} of sub-section 3 of section
|34 of the Campanies Act, 2013

b. Changes,if any, in accounting policies and practices and
reasons for the same

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on
the exercise of judgment by management

d.  Significant adjustmencs made in the finzncial statements
arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to financial statements

f.  Disclosure of any related party transactions
g.  Qualifications in che draft audit report

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses /
applicacion of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, erc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds
of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

Review and monitor che auditor’s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent madification of transactions of
the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter~corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,
wherever it is necassary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk managemenc
systems;
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|2, Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory
and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

(i) Reviewing the adeguacy of internal audit function, if any,
including the scructure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading che
department, reporting structure caverage and frequency
of internal audit;

(iii) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

(iv) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by
the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of 2 material nature and reporting the
matter to the board;

(v} Discussion with scatutory auditors before the audic
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
cancern;

(vi) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the
payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
sharehelders {in case of non-paymenc of declared
dividends) and creditors;

(vii) To review che functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

(viii) Approval of appointment of CFO {i.e., the whole-time
Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after
assessing cthe qualifications, experience and background,
ete. of the candidate;

B.) NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nemination and Remuneration Committee continued
warking under Chairmanship of Mr. Kanwarjit Singh with Mr.B.L.
Bajaj and Mrs.Tanuja Agarwal as members as on 3 1= March, 2016.
During the year, the committee met only once occasions e,
13.08.2015

The terms of reference of the committee, inter alia, include the
following:

- Succession plamning of the Board of Directors and senior
management employees;

- ldentifying and selection of candidates for appointment as
directors / independent directors based on certain laid down
criceria;

- ldentifying potential individuals for appointment as Key
Managerial Personnel and to other senior management
positions;

- Formulate znd review from time to cdme the policy for
selection and appoincment of directors, key managerial
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persannel and senior management employees and their
remuneration;

- Review the performance of the Board of Directors and senior
management employees based on certain criteria as approved
by the Board.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as on March 31°, 2016 and derails of the Members
participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of Category Attendance of
Director Commiccee Meeting
held on 13.08.2015

Rameshwar Chairman Yes

Pareek®

Kanwarjit Singh**| Member/ Chairman Yes

B.L. Bajaj Member Yes

Tanuja Agarwal Member Yes

Manav Poddar®** Member No

* Mr. Rameshwar Pareek ceased as a Direcror w.ef. 13.08.2015.

#¥ My. Kanwarjic Singh, appoinced as Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee we.l. [3.08.2015

## Mr, Manav Poddar ceased as a member of the committee we.f.
13.08.2015

Details of Appointment and Remuneracion paid co
Direcctors and Key Managerial Personnel during the
financial year 2015-146

During the financial year 2015-16, Mr. Gumanmal Jain was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Cempany wef
13.08.2015 and che remuneration of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel have baen given in MGT 9 forming the
part of Board’s Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee determines and recommends the
board, the amount of the remuneration including the performance
benus and perquisites payable to cthe Chairman and Managing,
Execucive Directors and KMPs of the Company.

The details of remuneration {including perquisites and retirement
benefits) paid to the directors including the sitting fee paid to
independent directors for the financial year 2015-16 has been
given in MGT-9 forming part of Board’s reporc.

C.) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 & Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the
board has constituted the committee as “Stakeholders
Relationship Committee”. Ms Tanuja Agarwal, Independenc
Director of the Company is Chairperson of the Committee. Mr
Nikhil Saxena Company secretary act as the Compliance Officer.

The Stakeholders Relationship Caommittee is empowered to
perform following functions:
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. transfer/ftransmission of shares/debentures and such other
securities as may be issued by the Company from time to
time;

= issue of duplicace share certificates for shares/ debentures
and other securities reported lost, defaced or destroyed, as
per the laid down procedure;

- issue new certificates againsc subdivision of shares, renewal,
split or consolidacion of share cercificates / certificates
relating to other securities;

= issue and allot right shares / bonus shares pursuant to a
rights issue / bonus issue made by the Company, subject to
such approvals as may be required;

. to grant employee stock options pursuant to approved
employees’ stock option scheme(s), if any, and to allot shares
pursuant to options exercised;

- to issue and allot debentures, bonds and ocher securities,
subject to such approvals as may be required;

*  to approve and moenitor dematerialization of shares /
debentures / other securities and all matters incidencal or
relaced chereto;

«  toauthorize the Company secretary and Head compliance /
other officers of the share department to attend to matters
relating to non-receipt of annual reports, notices, non-
receipt of declared dividend / interest, change of address for
correspondence ecc. and to monitor action taken;

+  monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders
grievances;

. all ocher maccers incidental or related to shares, debenture

The compositicn of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
as on March 31%, 2016 and details of the Members participation at
the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of Category Meeting | Meeting

Direccar Held |Attended
Rameshwar Pareek*|  Chairman 27 12
Tanuja Agarwal* Member/ 27 15

Chairperson

B.L. Bajajte Member 27 |
Kanwarjit Singh*** Member 27 0
Suresh Kumar Poddar Member 27 27
Manav Poddar#### Member 27 0

* My Rameshwar Pareek ceased as a Director wef. 13.08.2015.

** Mrs. Tanuja Agarwal appointed as Chairperson of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee welf. 13.08.2015

*Mr, B.L. Bajaj and Mr. Kanwarijic Singh appointed as member of
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee w.ef. 13.08.2015

*08¥ Mr. Manav Poddar ceased co be the member of the Commiccee
we.f. 13.08.20(5
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During the financial year 2015-16, 15 complaints were received
and processed.As on 3| March 2018, no complaints were pending.
The details regarding the complaints received from the investors/
shareholders are reproduced in the cable given below:

Particulars Qrt-1 | Qrt-2 | Qre-3 | Qrt-4 | Total
From Shareholder 6 0 & | 13
From BSE/NSE 0 0 0 0 0
SCORE-Beetal 0 | 0 | 2
Total é 1 & 2 15

D.) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
COMMITTEE

Mayur has a long and cherished tradition of commendable
initiacives, insticurionalized programmes and practices of
Corporate Social Responsibilicy which has played a laudable role
in the upliftment of several underdeveloped peoples.

CSR of Mayur is broadly framed taking into account and our CSR
activities are essentially guided by project based approach in line
with the guidelines issued by the Companies Act, 201 3 and Ministry
of Corporate Affairs of the Government of India. The CSR
iniciatives of Mayur were marked by unrelenting commitment to
several large-scale key projects as well as inidation of several
new projects identified.

As part of ics iniciatives under “Corporate Social Responsibilicy”
the Company has undertaken project in area of healch, educacion,
skill development programme, sanitation & environment, women
empowerment. Mayur supported national programme mission
clean India and placed duschin at all the school and public places in
Dhodsar village. Increasing awareness on sanitation and regular
cleaning of village.

The compaosition of the CSR Committee as on March 31=, 2016
and details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the
Committee are as under:

Name of Category Actendance at che
Direccor Committee Meetings held on
12.06.2015 24.06.2015 02.11.2015

Rameshwar Pareek” Chairman Yes Yes N.A,
Tanuja Agarwalt* Chairperson Yes Yes Yes
Kanwarjic Singh Member Yes No Yes
B.L. Bajaj Member No No Yes
Suresh Kumar Poddar Member Yes Yes Yes

* Mr. Rameshwar Pareck ceased as a director wef. 13.08.2015

**Mrs. Tanuja Agarwal was appointed as Chairparson of CSR Cammittes in the Board Meeting hald an 13.08.2015

E.) Risk Management Committee

Business risk evaluation and management is an on-going process
wichin the organization. The Company has a robusc risk
management framework to idendfy, monitor and minimize rigks
as also identify business opportunities.

The abjectives and scope of the Risk Management Committee
broadly comprises:

+  Oversight of risk management performed by che executive
management;

+  Reviewing the -BRM policy and framewaork in line with local
legal requiremencs and SEBI guidelines;

+  Reviewing risks and evaluate treacment including initating
mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-defined cycle;

. Defining framework for identificacion, assessmenc,
maticaring, mitigadon and reportng of risks.

The Risk Managemenc Committee conscituted in che previous
financial year being not mandacory under SEBI {LODR) Regulations,
2015 has been dissolved in the Board of Directors meeting held
on 02.11.2015. However, the necessary measures has been taken
that the risks associated with the operations of the Company are
adequately taken care of.

B GENERAL BODY MEETINGS ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Company convenes Annual General Meeting within five
months of the close of the carporate financial year. The decails
of Annual General Meeting held in last three years are as
under:
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Financial Year Day, Date and Time of AGM Venue Special Resalution Passed
2012-2013 20™ AGM held on Saturday, Registered Office| |. Re-appointment of Mr. Manav Poddar as the
24% August, 2013 at 12.00 Noon Whole Time Director of the Company
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria as
the Whole Time Direccor of the Company.
3. Alteration in the Article of Association of
the Company.
2013-2014 21" AGM held on Tuesday, Registered Office| No Special Resolution was passed in the Meeting
| 6% September, 2014 ac 10.00 AM
2014-2015 22 AGM held on Friday, Registered Office| No Special Resolution was passed in the Meeting
31=July, 2015 at 11.00 AM

B POSTAL BALLOT

During the Financial Year 2015-146 no resolution was passed by
the Postal Ballot.

B DISCLOSURES
I. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Company has followed all the relevant accounting standards
to the extent applicable,

Il. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS

All Relaced Party Transactions were entered into during che Financial
Year were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company. There is no materially significant relaced
party transaction made by the Company with promoters, directors,
key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company ac large.
All relaced party transactions are placed before the audit committea
and also for the board approval.

The policy on related party transactions as approved by the board
is uploaded on the Company's website i.e. www.mayuruniquoters.com
as per Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

. TRANSACTION WITH NON EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

There are no pecuniary relationships or transaction with Non
Executive Director vis-d-vis the Company which had any potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

IV. DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE
COMPANY, PENALTIES, AND STRICTURES
IMPOSED ON THE COMPANY.

No penalties and strictures have been imposed either by SEBI or
by the Stock Exchanges or any other statutory authorities on any
matter related to the capital market during the last three years.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH RECOMMENDATORY AND

OTHER MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

. The Company follows the guidelines as recommended fram
time to time by Institute of Company Secretaries of India
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{ICSI). One such instance T¢ the adoption of secretarial
standards in respect to preparation and recording of minutes
and other statutory records and registers.

In respect to audit qualifications, if any the Company is making
conscious efforts to remain into a regime of unqualified
financial statements.

lll.  The board has already set up a Remuneration Committee,
the details of which have already been provided in this

Report.

Vi. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a whistle blawer policy, which also
incorporates a vigil mechanism in terms of the SEBI {LODR)
Regulations, 2015 for directors and employees commensurate to
the size and the business of the Company to promote ethical
behaviour in all its business activicies and to report concerns and
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of our
code of conduct and echics. Under the said mechanism, the
employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and
regulations and the code of conduct. It also provides for adequate
safeguards against the victimization of persons who use such
mechanism.The managemenc hereby affirms that ho employee of
the Campany has been denied access to the audit committee.

B MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

+  The quarterly, hali-yearly and annuzl financial statements are
communicated through a press. Newspaper advertisements
in prominent national and regional dailies like Business
Standard (National), Economic Times {Mumbai Edition) in
English and Samachar |agac, in Hindi (vernacular).

«  The Company’s results and other corporate announcements
are regularly sent to the BSE Limited. Mumbai and National
Scock Exchange of India Limited {NSE).

- The financial statements, and other relevanc infermation are
also displayed on the website of the Company
www.mayuruniquoters.com

«  The official press releases and presentation made to
institutional investorfanalyst is also made available on
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the Company’s website and the Company has not made June Quarter Ending Results | Within 45 days from end of
any formal presentations to institutional investors cr quarter.
analysts.
September Quarter Within 45 days from end of
B GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION Ending Results quarter.
i Annual General Meeting December Quarter Within 45 days from end of
Date :Wednesday, the 27” day of July, 2016 Ending Results quarter.
Time: 11:00 AM. (I5T) March Quarter/Year Within 60 days from end of
Venue : Registered office of the Company Ending Results quarter.
Mayur Uniquoters Limiced
Village : Jaicpura, |aipur-Sikar Road, Tehsil: Chomu, Distt.: v. Dividend Paymenc Date
ipur-303 704 (Rajasthan), India Phone Na: 91-1423-224001,
lell)p(fjgl-|423-2(241a23 an).ndia Phone No The final dividend, if approved by the shareholders in the
We.bSitE: wrereayURURiqUOLeFs.com elTsufil:ng_Angual General Meeting, shall be paid/credited on
CIN: LI810IR]1992PLC006952 Email: info@mayurbiz or after 01" Augusc, 2016,
ii.  Financial Year vi. Listing on Scock Exchanges
€ Anypi 5 Mo BSE Limited {BSE)
1= April 2016 to 31* March 2017
pri ° are Phiraze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
fii. Date of Book closure Scrip Code 522249
Narcional Stock Exchange of India Limited {NSE}
The register of member.s and the share cransfer bd?oks of “Exchange Plaza”, Bandra- Kurla Complex,
the Company shall remain Erh:|c:cS(-3C| from Tuesday, 05 day o.f Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 Scrit Code - MAYURUNIQ
July 2016 to Wednesday, 04 July, 2014, {both days inclusive) ISIN: INEO40D0 1038
for purpose of the Annual General Meeting and for the
payment of the final dividend if approved by the shareholders The Company has paid the listing fee for the Financial Year
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 2016- 2017 to the aforesaid Stock Exchanges.
iv. Tentative Financial Calendar (For 2018-17) vii, Scock Market Data
The centative schedule of Financial Results of the Campany The monthly high and low quotations at BSE and NSE during
is as follows: 2015-16 is given below:
Table Showing Monchly High and Low {Prices) Month Scock Prices vis BSE Prices
Manth Stock Prices BSE SENSEX
High Price (Rs) Low Price (Rs) High Low
April-15 514.60 417.20 29,094.61 24,897 54
May-15 447.00 405.80 28,071.18 26,423.99
June-15 438.80 376.00 27,968.75 26,307.07
July-15 432.60 399.60 28,578.33 2741639
August-15 452.00 390.00 28.417.59 25,298.42
September- | 5 439.20 393.70 26,471.82 24,833.54
Ocraber-15 448.00 404 .80 27.618.14 256,168.71
Naovember-15 455.00 410.60 26,824.30 25451, 42
December-15 478.10 416.00 26,256.42 24,867.73
January-16 475.60 411.70 26,197.27 23,839.76
February-16 479.90 392.80 25,002.32 22,494.61
March-16 417.10 394.50 25,432.94 23,133.18
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Month Scock Prices vis NSE Nifcy (Prices)

Month Scock Prices NSE NIFTY
High Price {Rs) Low Price {Rs) High Low

April-15 514.80 415,05 8844.80 814475
May-15 445.65 407.00 848%.55 7997.15
June-15 426.45 378.40 8467.15 7940.30
July-15 432.30 395.20 8654.75 8315.40
August-15 453.00 395,40 8621.55 766715
Sepcember-15 440.00 392.00 8055.00 7539.50
Ocrober-15 448.45 404.10 8336.30 793045
November-15 455.00 411.00 8l16.10 7714.15
December-13 478.20 415,05 7975.30 7551.05
January-16 476.50 412.00 7972.55 7241.50
February-14 480.00 39350 7600.45 682580
March-16 419.00 3839 7745.40 7035.10

viii. SHARE PRICES OF MAYURV/S BSE SENSEX AND NIFTY FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR 2015-16

Share Performance of the Company vis-a-vis to Sensex:

Mayur Uniquoters Limited vs Sensex
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Mayur Uniquoters Limited v/s Nifty
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Mis Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Limited, New
Delhi is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent {RTA) of the
Company for handling both electronic and physical shares
transfers. The address and contact detail of che RTA which is
given below:

Mis Beetal Financial & Computer Services {(P) Limiced Beertal
House, 3rd Floor, %9 Madangir; Behind Local Shopping Centre,
Near Data Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi- 110062, India.

Phone: 91-11-29961281, 91-11-29361282, Fax: %1-11-
29951284

Share Transfer Syscem in Physical Mode

Physical share transfer requests are processed by the R&T
agent i.e. Beetal Financial and Computer Services (P) Limited
within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt if the
documents are correct, valid and complete in all respect. As
required under Regulacion 40{9) & (10) of SEBI {LODR)}
Regulations, 2015 entered into by Mayur with stock exchange,
a certificate is required to be obtained from a practicing

Company Secretary within one month of the end of each
half of che financial year, certifying that all certificaces have
bzen issued within fifteen days of the date of lodgment for
transfer, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, exchange or
endorsement of callsfallotment monies. The certificate in
this regards has been obtained from M/s.V. M. & Associaces,
Practicing Company Secretaries and the same has been
forwarded to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.

SEBI vide its circular dated 07* January 2010 has made it
mandatory co furnish the PAN copy in the following cases:

*  Deletion of the name of the deceased shareholder(s)
where the shares are held in the name of cwo or more
sharehslder,

+ Transmission of share to the legal heir(s), where the
deceased shareholder was the only shareholder of
shares.

*  Transposition of shares — In the case of change in the
order of names in which physical shares are joindy held
in the name of two or mare shareholders,
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xi, Distribution of Shareholding range analysis as on 31* March 2014

Category No. of Shares Percentage
Indian Promoters 2,82,84918 6112
Foreign Promoters Nil Nil
Person Acting in Concert Nil Nil
Mucual Funds & UTI 26,592,338 582
Banles, Fls, Insurance Companies {Centralf Stace Govt. Institutions/
Non- Govt. Institutions) 25,262 0.05
Foreign Inscicutional Invescors 39,8%,752 8.62
Foreign Companies/ Foreign Nationals 29,73,200 6.42
Private Corporate Bodies 8.78,34% 1.90
Indian Public 65,36,722 14.13
NRIs/ OCB 7,010,137 1.52
HUF 1,645,938 0.36
Any Other (Clearing Members Demac Transit) 25,986 0.06
GRAND TOTAL 4,62,77,600 100.00

Distribution Schedule as on 31% March, 2016
The shareholding pattern of the equity shares as on 31 March, 2016 is given below:

NOMINAL VALUE OF EACH SHARE/UNIT RS, 5/-

Share Holding of No. of % of Total No. of shares Amounc % of Tocal
Nominal value of Rs shareholders Shareholders {in Rs.) shares
UPTO 5000 9,366 58.26 3,68,651 18,43,255 0.79
5001 TO 10000 1,715 10.67 277,938 1389,690 0.60
10001 TO 20000 1,700 10.57 524,173 26,20,865 1.13
20001 TO 30000 660 4,11 3,30,602 16,53,010 0.71
30001 TO 40000 993 6.18 7,70,375 38,51,875 1.66
40001 TO 50000 239 1.4 226,510 11,32,550 0.49
50001 TO 100000 817 5.08 12,54,390 62,71,950 271
100001 AND ABOVE 587 3.65 4,25,24,96| 21,26,24,805 91,89
TOTAL 16,077 100.00 4,62,77,600 23,13,88,000 100

xii. Depository System

Shareholders can wrade in the Company’s shares only in electronic form.The process for getting the shares dematerialized is as
follows:

(A) Shareholder submits the shares certificate along with Dematerialization Request Form (DRF) to Depository Participant
{DP).

(B} DP processes the DRF and generates a unique Dematerialization Request No.

(C) DP forwards DRF and Share Certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA).
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{D) RTA after processing the DRF confirms or rejects the request of Depositories.
{E} If confirmed by the RTA, depositories give credit to shareholder in his account maintained with DP.

*  Physical shares received for demarterialization are processed and dematerialized within the stipulaced period, provided the
same are in arder in all respect. Bad Deliveries are immediately returned co the DP

xiii. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Mayur equity shares can only be traded in dematerialized form, it is advisable that the shareholders who have shares in physical
form get their shares dematerialized. As on 31= March 201 6,4,47,99,529 shares of Rs. 5/- each comprising 96.81 % of the toral paid
up share capical were held in dematerialized form.

xiv. Dividend History

Following are the details of Dividend declared, paid and unpaid as on 3 I” March 2016:

FinancialYear Dividend Declaration Dividend Race Unclaimed Amounc
2015-16 (4™ Interim Dividend) 14.03.2016 17.00% 16,46,829.95
2015-16 (3% Interim Dividend) 09.02.2016 17.00% | 1,65,467.30
2015-16 (2™ Interim Dividand) 02.11.2015 16.00% 8,39,878.40
2015-16 (1" Interim Dividend) 13.08.2015 16.00% 12,09,876.80
2014-15 (Final Dividend) 31.07.2015 16.00% 7,65,721.60
2014-15 (3" Interim Dividend) 12.02.2015 16.00% 7.95,904.80
2014-15 (2™ Interim Dividend) 12.11.2014 15.00% 7,02,303.00
2014-15 (1* Interim Dividend) 12.08.2014 14.00% 6,13,038.00
2013-14 {Final Dividend) 16.09.2014 17.00% 7,64,648.10
2013-14 (3% Interim Dividend} 12.02.2014 28.00% 6,44,712.60
2013-14 (2™ Interim Dividend) 12.11.2013 25.00% 5,59,500.00
2013-14 {1* Interim Dividend) 12.08.2013 22.50% 5,13,600.75
2012-13 (Final Dividend) 24.08.2013 35.00% 7,35,028.00
2012-13 (3rd Interim Dividend) 11022013 22.50% 5.16,638.25
2012-13 {2 Interim Dividend) 08.11.2012 22.50% 5,34,278.25
2012-13 (1= Interim Dividend) 31.07.2012 15.00% 2,20,655.00
2011-12 {Final Dividend) 23.07.2012 50.00% 5,47,070.00
2011-12 (3" Interim Dividend) 31.01.2012 50.00% 5,62,525.00
201 1-12 {2 Interim Dividend) 22.10.201 1 20.00% 3,10,926.00
2011-12 {1I** Interim Dividend) 28.07.2011 15.00% 2,16,708.00
2010-11 (Final Dividend) 25.06.201 1 45.00% 5,62,900.50
2010-11 {3™ Interim Dividend ) 31.01.2011 25.00% 4,03,620.00
2010-11 (2 Interim Dividend) 30.10.2010 15.00% 2,28,754.50
2010-11 {1* Interim Dividend) 12.08.2010 15.00% 2,53,161.00
2009-10 {Final Dividend) 17.07.2010 30.00% 5,01,957.00
2009-10 (Interim Dividend) 23.11.2009 20.00% 3,57,514.00
2008-09 {Final Dividend) 14.08.2009 20.00% 3,48,620.00
2008-09 {Interim Dividend) 09.03.2009 15.00% 2,61,808.50
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xv, Dividend Revalidation Process

The dividend warrant remains valid for three months from
the date of warrants and after the expiry of three month, the
same needs to be revalidated. The Company issues demand
drafts in lieu of stale warrants surrendered ta the Company
for revalidation. Shareholders are advised to quote Folio
MNumber/Client 1D while doing any correspondence,

i. Dutstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or Any

Convertible Inscrumencs

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrancs or any
other instruments, which are convertible into equity shares
of the Company during the financial year 2015-16 and no
ADR/ GDR/ warrant convertible into equity share are pending
for conversion as on 31* March 201 6.

ii. Plant Location

Unit-I

Four coating lines situated atVillage: Jaitpura, Jaipur-Sikar Road,
Tehsil: Chomu, District: Jaipur- 303 704 {Rajasthan)

Phane Na: 91-1423-224001, Fax: 21-1423-224420
Website: www.mayuruniquoters.com

CIN: LISI0OIR]JI1592PLCO06952 Email: secr@mayurbiz

Unic-11

Textile Division and Fifth & Sixth Coating Line sicuated ac
Village: Dhodsar, Khajroli Link Road

Near Racan Devi College, Jaipur-Sikar Highway, Tehsil: Chomu,
Districc: Jaipur {Rajasthan)
WWebsite: www mayuruniquoters.com Email: secr@mayur.biz

xviii. Address for Correspondence

Shareholder’s correspondence relating to transfer/
transmission/issue of duplicate shares or for any queries or
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grievances should be addressed to the Company’s RTA at
the address mentioned below:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Mr. Punit Mittal, General Manager

M/s Beetal Financial & Compucer Services (P) Led.
BEETAL House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir

Behind Local Shopping Centre

Near Dara Harsukhdas Mandir New Delhi-1 10 062 (India)
Tel: 91 —11-29961281,91-11-29961282,

Website:- www.beetalfinancial.com

Email:- investor@beetalfinancial.com

For any further assistance, the shareholders may contact:

Correspondence office:
Mayur Uniguoters Limited

28, Fourth Floor, Lakshmi Complex M.l. Road, |aipur
{Rajasthan), India Phone No.: 91-141-2361132

Fax No : 91-141-2365423 Email: secr{@mayur.biz
Websita: www.mayuruniquoters.com

Registered office:

Mayur Uniquoters Limited Village: Jaicpura, Jaipur-5ikar Road
Tehsil: Chomu Distt.: Jaipur-303 704 {Rajasthan}, India
Phone No.: 91-1423-224001

Fax No : 91-1423-224420

Website: www.mayuruniquoters.com

Email: secri@mayurbiz

In Compliance of Regulacion of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has designaced exclusive Email 1D for redressal of
Investor Grievances i.e. secr@mayur.biz. Sharehclders halding
shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence
to their respective Depository Participant.
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To
The Board of Directors
Mayur Uniquoters Limited

Sub.: Annual Certification with respect to Compliance with che Code

I, being a member of the Board of Directors/Management Personnel of Mayur Uniquoters Limiced (hereinafter refer to as “the
Company”) hereby confirm and submit thac:

I. I have received, read and understood the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board/ Management Personnel of the

Company.
2. | have complied with the provisions enumerated/stipulated in the said Code during che financial year 2015-14.
3. lalso submic chat there is no case of non-compliance in my knowladge with respect to the said code during the financial year

ending 3 1= March 2014.

Suresh Kumar Paddar
Designation: Chairman and Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00022395

Jaipur
27* May, 2015
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

To,

The Board of Directors,
Mayur Uniquoters Limited,

Jaitpura, Jaipur

We, Suresh Kumar Poddar, Chairman and Managing Director & CEO and Guman Mal Jain, Chief Financial Officer of Mayur Uniquoters
Limiced, to che best of knowledge and belief, cercify thac:

I.  We have reviewed financial statements {Balance Sheet, Statement of Profic & Loss and all the schedules and notes on accounts) and
the Cash Flow Staremenc and Board's Report for the year and based on our knowledge, belief and informacion:

i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement, omit any material fact, or contain any statement that may
be misleading.

ii. These statements and other information included in this annual report present 2 true and fair view of Company’s affair and
are in compliance wich currenc accoundng standards, applicable laws and regulation.

2, There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent,
illegal or voilative of the Company's code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reperting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control system of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Audicors
and the Audic Comimnittee, deficiancies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken cr propose to take to ratify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audic Committee:
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during che year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
stataments; and

iii. instance of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having a significanc role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Suresh Kumar Poddar Guman Mal Jain
Chairman and Managing Director & CEOQ Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00022395

Place : Jaipur
Date : 27 May, 2016
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

To
The Members of Mayur Uniquoters Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Mayur Uniquoters Limited {“the Company”), for the
year ended on March 31,2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (“Listing Agreemenc’) cf the Company with the Stock
Exchanges for the period of [*April, 2015 to 30* November, 2015 and as per the relevanc provisions of Securities and Exchange Board
of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 {“Listing Regulations™) as referred to in Regulation 15(2)
of Listing Regulations for the period |** December, 2015 ca 31* March, 201 6.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limiced to a
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopred by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of aur information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the condidons of Corporate Governatice as scipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreement/ Listing Regulacions,
as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company,

For Madhukar Garg & Company
Chartered Aceountants
FRN 000866C

Place : |aitpura, Jaipur Manish Suri
Date : 274 May, 2016 Partner
M.No.-074998
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED
Reporc on the Standalone Financial Stacements

We have auditad the accompanying Standalone financial stacements of MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED ("tha Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31* March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for che Financial Scatements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible far the matters staced in Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Seccion |33 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accouncs) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate acecounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of che assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operacing effeccively for ensuring che accuracy and completeness of the accouncing records, relevanc to the
preparation and presencation of the financial scatements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misscatement, whether
due to fraud or error;

Audicor's Responsibilicy

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on chese financial stacemencs based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Acr, the accounting and auditing standards and mateers which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made there under

We conducted our audic in accordance with the Scandards on Audicing specified under Section 143(10} Of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial scatements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audic also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe thac the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for Our audit opinion on the
financial statements,
Opinion

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the stace of affairs of the Company as at 31*" March, 2016, and its profic and ics cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) ordar, 2016 {" the order™}, issued by the Central Government of India in cerms of
sub-section (|1} of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 we give in the Annexure 'B' a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report chat:

(a) We have sought and obrained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books,;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stacements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as an 31* March, 2016 taken an record by the Board
of Directors , none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 {2) of the Act; and

With Respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such Controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 'A'.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule || of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our infarmacion and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its financial statements - refer
Note No. 21{i) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by che Company during the year ended March 31, 201 6.

For Madhukar Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000886C

{Manish Suri)

Place : Jaipur {Partner)
Date : May 27,2014 {(Membership No. 074598)
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in para {f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independenc Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Mayur Uniquoters Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014.

Report on che Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section |43 of che Act

. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mayur Uniquoters Limited ("the Company") as of
March 31, 2016 in conjuncdon with our audit of the standalone financial scatements of the Company for the year ended on chat
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's managemenc is responsible for escablishing and maintaining internal financial concrols based on cthe internal
control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {(ICAl). These responsibilicies include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequace
internal financial controls chat were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficiant conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detecticn of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Audicor's Responsibilicy

3 QOur responsibilicy is to axpress an opinion an the Company's internal financial contrals aver financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting {the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by the |CAl. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obrain reasonable assurance abouc whether adequace internal financial controls aver financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all macerial respects.

4. Cur audit invalves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence abour the adequacy of internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal financial control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selecced depend on che audicar's judgement, including the assessment of che risk of material
misstatemenc of the financial scatements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. Wve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's incernal financial cantrols system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Concrols over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial control aver financial reporcing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabilicy of financial reporting and the preparacion of financial stacements for excernal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that {|} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary te permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and chat
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial stacemencs.
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Inherenc Limitations of Internal Financial Concrols over Financial Reporting

7 Because of the inherent limitations of incernal financial concrols over financial reporting, including che passibilicy of collusion or
improper management override of concrols, material misstatemencs due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the polices or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls syscems over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal
contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essendal components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Madhukar Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0008646C

{Manish Suri)

Place : Jaipur {Partner)
Dace : 27 May, 2016 {Membership No. 074998)
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
For the Year Ended on 31 March, 20146

Referred to Para "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our Report of even date:

(i (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quanticative details and situation, of fixed
asgets.
(b) Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. No material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The dtle deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 12 1o the financial statements on fixed assets, are held in
the name of the Company.

(i) The physical verification of inventory including scocks with third parties have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year. The discrepancies naoticed an physical verification of inventory as compared ta book records were
not material and have been appropriately dealt wich in the books of accounts.

(i)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liabilicy Partnerships or ather
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3 (iiN{a), {iilb} and {jii){c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  Inour opinion and according to the informacdion and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provision of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ih respect of the loans and investmencs made, and guarantees and security provided by
it. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or pravided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section |85 of the Companies Act, 2013,

v As informed to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any ather relevant
pravisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi)  The Cenctral Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of manufaccuring activity of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records of the
Company in this connection and are of the opinion, that prima facie, the prescribed accouncs and records have been made and
maincained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate ar complete.

(vii}  (a) According to the books and records as produced and examined by us in accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices in India and also based on Management representations, undisputed statucory dues including Pravident Fund,
Employees' state Insurance Dues, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custam Duty, Excise Duty,Value added tax, Cess and
Other material Statutory dues have generally been regularly deposiced, by the Company during the year with the
appropriate authorities in India. According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were cutstanding as at March 3 1%, 2016 for a period of more than six manths
from the date of becaming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise and Value Added Tax, as at March
31, 2016 which have not been deposited on accounc of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount {Rs. In Lacs) Forum where dispute is pending
Textile Committee {Cess) | Textle Committee Cess 71.69 Textile Cess Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai
Rules, 1975
Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax {GTA) .76 Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate

Tribunal, New Delhi
Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax (GTA) 204 Central Excise & Service Tax Appellace
Tribunal, New Delhi
Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax (Export) 237 Commissioner {Appeals), Service Tax
Division, Jaipur
Income Tax Ace, 1961 Incame Tax 124,56 Commissioner {Appeals) lll, Income Tax,
Jaipur

62




(xi}

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

{xvi)
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Aceording to the records of the Company examined by us and che Information and explanation givet to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial insticution or bank or Government as at the balance sheet date.
The Company has hat issued any debentures during the Year.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). The
Company has taken cerm loans from bank for Rs. 99.70 Lacs during che year and che same was applied for the purpose for which
ic was obtained.

During the course of our examinaticn of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with che generally
aeccepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neicher come across
ahy instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during che
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

Aceording to the records of the Company examined by us and the informadon and explanation giveh to ug, the Campany has
paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read wich ScheduleV to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the provisions of Clause 3{xii} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According o the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
entared into cransactions wich related pardes in compliance with the provisions of Secdons 177 and 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party cransactions have been disclosed in che financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS)
18, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 201 4.

The Company has not made any preferential allotmenc or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debencures
during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions wich its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
the provisions of Clause 3{xv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required tc be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the
provigions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY
Charcered Accountancs
FRN 000866C

MANISH SURI

Place : Jaipur { Partner )
Date : 27% MAY, 2016 M.NO.074598
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2014

{Rs. in Lacs )

PARTICULARS Note AS AT ASAT
No. 31.03.2015 31.03.2015

| EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
| Shareholders’ Funds

a) Share Capital 3 2,313.88 8,109.28
b} Reserves and Surplus 4 31,897.22 20,157.69
) Money Received Against Share Warrancs = -
2 Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
3 Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-Term Botrowings 5 905.44 1,375.19
b} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) [ 498.49 47642
c) Other Long-Term Liabilities - -
d) Long-Term Provisions 7 33.16 2693
4 Current Liabilities
a) Short-Term Borrowings 8 1,114.52 2,352.03
b} Trade Payables 9 3,752.60 519042
) Other Current Liabilities 10 2,517.78 2,720.31
d} Short-Term Provisions I 1,042.23 702.54
TOTAL 44,075.32 41,110.81
] ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Fixed Assets 12
i) Tangible Assets 13,250.80 13,646.69
ii} Intangible Assets 212.35 344
iii) Capical waork-in-progress 786.26 364.17
iv) Intangible Assets under development - 25342
b} Non-Current Investments 13 11.40 6.57
o) Deferred Tax Assecs (Net) - -
d} Long -Term Loans and Advances 14 13281 14229
e} Other Non-Current Assets - -
2 Current Assets
a) Currenc Investments 15 9,694 45 7.575.51
b} Inventories 16 5,039.04 5.610.48
c) Trade Receivables 17 12,382.09 9,068.67
d} Cash and Bank Balances 18 41221 2,655.10
e} Short-Term Loans and Advances |9 550.08 862.79
f) Other Current Assets 20 603.13 91766
TOTAL 44,075.32 41,110.81

The Notes No. | to 49 are an incegral part of these financial stacements

For and on behalf of the Board As per our repert of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

FRN 000866C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
(Chairman & Managing (Director) {Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer) {Partner)
Direccor & CEO} DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-00022355

Place : Jaitpura {Jaipur)
Dated : 27 May2016
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 20156
(Rs. in Lacs)

PARTICULARS Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
| Revenue from Operations {Gross) 24 56.206.62 5576872
Less: Excise Duty 5,104.62 5137.06
Revenue from Operations {Net) 51,102.00 50,631.66
Il Other Income 25 578.65 594.12
Il Total Revenue {I+II} 51,680.45 51,225.78
v EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 29,189.72 32,450.41
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - -
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, 27 {23.55) 150.26
‘Work-in-progress and Scock-in-Trade
Employee Benefit Expenses 28 2,842.20 2,426.19
Finarce Costs 29 339.88 259.55
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 30 l,611.61 [,186.02
Other Expenses 31 5,554.45 542721
Total Expenses 3951431 41,900.34
v Profit Before Exceptional and Extra 12,166.34 9,325.44
Ordinary ltems and Tax {IlI-1V)
VI Exceptional ltems - -
VIl Profit Before Extraordinary ltems and Tax (V-VI) 12,166.34 9,325.44
VIl Extraordinary lcems - -
IX  Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII) 12,166.34 9,325.44
X  Tax Expenses
Current Tax 32 3,892.98 2,640.00
Deferred Tax 22.07 95.34
Xl Profit!(Loss) for the period from continuing 8,251.29 6,590.10

operations {(IX-X)
Xl Profic/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations - -
Xl Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations - -

XIV  Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations - -
(Afeer Tax) (XI-XII

XV Profit/{Loss) for the period {XI+XIV) 8,251.29 $,590.10
XV| Earning per Equity share of face value of Rs. 5/- each 33

1 Basic (in Rs.) 17.14 1522
2 Diluted {in Rs.) 17.14 14.31

The Notes Na. | co 49 are an integral part of chese financial scatements

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Charcered Accountants

FRN 000866C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
(Chairman & Managing {Director) (Company Secretary} (Chief Financial Officer) (Partner)
Director & CEO) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-00022395

Place : Jaitpura {Jaipur)
Dated : 27" May2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 20146

{Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.20146 31.03.2015

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profic Before Tax 12,166.34 9.325.44
Depreciation & Amortisation 1.611.61 1,186.02
Interest (Net) 77.19 95.64
Provision for Leave Encashmenc 18.10 30.52
Provision for Gratuity 70.48 36.83
Lazs on Sale of Tangible Assets 16.16 1.09
Loss/(Profic) on Redemption of Currenc Invastments 12.70 (28.84)
State Subsidy on Interest (93.89) -
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments 215 -
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain)iLoss (28.34) (35.79)
Dividend Received {412.62) (477.15)
Operating Profit Before Warking Capital Changes 13,439.88 10,133.74
Trade and Othear Receivable (3.303.61) {2.327.53)
Inventories 571.44 766.84
Trade and Other Payables {1,539.29) (882.88)
Loans & Advance and Otcher Assers 643.80 145.85
Cash Generated from Operation 9,812,22 7,836.08
Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) {3,280.11) {2,506.80)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 6,532.11 5.329.28

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase ! Acquisition of Tangible Assets {1,803.10) (3,168.52)
Purehase / Acquisition of Intangible Assets (24.36) (257.18)
Sale of Tangible Assets 16.43 |40
Investment in Subsidiary {6.98) -
Purchase of Current Invescnencs {18,112.76) (22,038.90)
Rederption of Current Investiments 15,981.12 15,470.22
State Subsidy on Interest 93.8% -
Interest Income %6.75 86.96
Dividend Income 412.62 477.15
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3,346.38) {9,428.87)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/Repayment of Borrowings (Net) {1,685.04) 144,75
Proceeds from issuance of CCPPS - 6,999.95
Inceresc Paid (97.47) (177.25)
Dividend Paid {2,148.63) {1,404.77)
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (446.77) (265.32)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (4,377.91) 5,297.38
Effect of Foreign Currency Translation of Cash and Cash Equivalents (5.34) {0.50)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (1,197.52) 1,197.25
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,048.73 851.48
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 851.21 2,043.73
Reconciliation of Cash & Bank Balances
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalencs as above 851.21 2,048.73
Add : Balance in Unpaid Dividend Accounts 167.90 121,94
Add : Fixed Deposits Maturity 3 to 12 Months 393.80 488.43
Closing Balance of Cash & Bank Balances {Refer Note No. | 8) 1,412.91 2,659.10

*(Figures In brackets represent sucflow)

**(Figures for previous year are regrouped and rearranged wherever cansidered necessary)

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date

For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000B66C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA  GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
(Chairman & Managing {Director) {Company Secreatary) (Chief Financial Officer) {Partner)
Direccor & CEO) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-00022355

Place : Jaitpura {Jzipur)
Daced : 27" May2016




Notes to the Financial Statements

(A)

(B}

(©)

(D)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

General Information

Mayur Uniquoters Limited {the Company), is engaged in
the business of manufacturing of Coated Textile Fabric. The
Company is the leading manufacturer of Coated Textile
Fabric in India. The Company has its manufacturing units
situated at village Jaitpura and Dhodsar, Jaipur (India). Knitted
Fabric manufactured in Dhodsar plant is consumed largely
as captive consumption. The products of the Company i.e.
Coated Textile Fabric are widely used in different segments
such as Footwear, Furnishings, Automotive OEM,
Automotive replacement market, and Automotive Expores.
The Company is selling its products directly to OEMs and
other manufacturers, wholesalers in India and is also
exporting ta various councries including US & UK, The
equity shares of the Company are presently listed with
BSE Limited {BSEYand Mational Stock Exchange of India
Limited {NSE)

Summary of significanc accounting policies
Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the generally accepred accounting
principles in India under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared
to comply in all material aspects with the accounting
standards notfied under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 ,read with Rule 7 of the Companies{Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

All assers and liabilities have been classified as current or
non-currenc as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and ocher criteria set out in the Schedule lll te the
Companies Act,2013

Tangible Assets:

Tangible assets are stated at cost which includes cost of
acquisitions, installation, direct costs and borrowing costc
incurred up to the date of commissioning.

Intangible Assecs:

Intangible assets are staced at cost which includes cosc of
acquisitions, installacion, direct coscs and borrowing cost
incurred up to the date of commissioning.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided at the
Soraighe Line Method on the basis of useful life of assets as
prescribed in part C of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act,2013.

DCepreciation on addicions and deledion during the year has
been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the dare
of addicion and deletion. Land & Sice development has not
bzen depreciated.

Depreciation has been provided on Triple Shift Basis - For
all coating lines at Jaitpura unic

(E)
(i

(ii)

(i)

F)
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- For Knitting & Process and one coating line for Textile
Div.at Dhodsar unit.

Depreciation has been provided on Single Shift Basis -For
one coating line at Dhadsar unic.

From the date Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 comes
into effect,the carrying amount of the assets as on that date
after retaining the residual value has been depreciated over
the ramaining useful life of the assets ac per this Scheduls;

Intangible assets {Computer Software} are amortised over
the period of four years as per provision of AS-26

Foreign Currency Transaccions:

Cost of imparted material is converted to Indian
currency at the rates applied in Bill of Entry for custom
purposes.

The expenditure in Fareign Currency is accounted at the
rates prevailing on the date of transacdion.

The export sales are accounted for ac the actual races
prevailing at the time of cransaction.

Exchange fluctuation arising on repaymenc of long term
liability incurred for che purpose of acquiring fixed assets
is charged to Profit & Loss Account as per the provisions
of AS-11.

Balances of monetary items in foreign currency outstanding
at the close of the year are convertad in Indian currency at
the appropriate rates of exchange pravailing on the date of
the Balance Sheet,

Exchange rate difference between the prevailing rate on
the date of transaction and on the date of settlement as
also on conversion of menetary icems in current assets
and current liabilities at the end of the year are recognized
as income & expense as the case may be in Profit & Loss
Account.

Inventories:

Raw material,stores,spares & maintenance items,
consumable goods, work-in-process and other goods are
valued at lowear of landed cost and nec realizable value. The
cosc formula used is Weighted Average Cost.(The average
has been calculated on each additional shipmenc is
received.)

Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value,
whichever is lower.

The cost of imported raw material includes custom duties
and other direct expenditure.

The cost of finished goods comprises of raw material cost
(proportionate of selling price), manufaccuring expenses,
payment to & provision for employees, depreciation on
Plant & Machinery and factory building {as cost per liner
meter on produccion).
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(G)

(H)
o

(i)

n

)

(K)

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured
and it is reasonable co expece ultimate collection. Dividend
income is recognized when right to receive is established.
Incerest income is recognized on tme proportion basis
taking into accounc the amount outscanding and race
applicable. Sales wichin India are exclusive of sales tax buc
inclusive of dxcise duty & net of trade discount. Cut off
date for accounrting export sales is based on the date of Bill
of Lading. Export sales are accounted for on FOB basis.

Employees Benefits:

The Company has defined concribution plan for its
employaes' retirement benefits comprising of Provident Fund
& Employees’ State Insurance Fund.The Company and eligible
employees make monchly contribution to the above
mentioned funds at a specified percentage of the covered
employees salary.The Company recognizes its contribution
as expense of the year in which the liabilicy is incurred,

The Company has defined benefit plan comprising of
Gratuity Fund & Leave Encashment. The Company
contributes to the Gracuity and Leave Encashment Fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporacion of India under
its Group Gracuity {Cash Accumulation} Scheme and Group
Leave Encashment Scheme.The liabilicy for Gratuity & Leave
Encashment is determined on the basis of independent
actuarfal valuation done at year end. Plan assets are measured
at fair value as ac Balance Sheer dace.

Borrowing Coscs:

General and specific borrowing casts directly attributable
to the acquisition ,construction or production of qualifying
assecs, which are assets that necessarily take a subscantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing cost ate recognized in stacemenc
of Profit and Lass in che period in which chey are incurred.

Taxacion:

Income tax provision comprises current tax and deferred
tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made on
the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the
relevant assessment year. The deferred tax assec and liahility
is calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred tax assets arising mainly on accounc of unabsorbed
depreciation under tax laws are recognized, only if there is
a virtual certainty of its realization, supporced by convincing
evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of other timing
differences are recognised,only to the extent there is a
reasonable certainty of its realization. At 2ach Balance Sheec
date, the carrying amount of deferred assets is reviewed to
reassure realization.

Impairment:

The Carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date if there Is any indication of impalrment based on

(L)

(M)

(N)

(O)

(P}

(Q)
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internal as well as external factors. An impairment loss
will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
assets exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is greater of the Assets net selling
price and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present
value at the Weighted Average cost of capital. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the assets over the remaining useful
life. Previously recognized impairment loss is further
provided or reversed depending on changes in
circumstances.

Provisions, Contingenc Liabilities and Contingent
Assets:

The Company recognizes a provision where there is a
present obligacion as a result of a pasc event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimace
can be made of the amounc of the obligation. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is
a possible obligation or a presenc obligation that che
likelihood of outflow of resources is remate, no provision
or disclosure is made. Contingent assecs are neither
recognized nor disclosed. Provisions, concingent liabilicies
and contingenc assets are reviewed ac each Balance Sheet
date,

Lease Transaccion:

For assets caken oh operatdng lease,lease rentals payable
are charged to revenue.

Investments:

Investments are valued at cost, provision for diminution in
the value of long term investments is made,only if such
decline is other than temporary.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial scacements requires estimates
and assumptions to be made that affect the repeorted amount
of assers and liabilities on the date of financial statements
and the reported amount of ravenues and expenses during
the reporting pericd.Difference between the actual results
and estimates are racognized in the period in which the
results are known/materialized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, demand depesits with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original macurities
of three months or less,

Research and Development:

All revenue expenses pertaining to research and
development are charged to profit and loss account in the
year in which they are incurred and expenditure of capital
nature is capitalized as fixed assets, and depreciated as per
the Company's palicy.
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3. Share Capital {Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Auchorised:

5,00,00,000 Equiry Shares of Rs. 5/- each (5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each) 2,500.00 2,500.00

15,25,000 Compulsory Convertible Participating Preference Share of Rs. 400/- each 6,100.00 6,100.00

Issued ,Subscribed and Paid Up:

462,77,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (433,05,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each) 2,313.88 2,165.28

(14,86,000 Compulsory Caonverdble Participating Preference Share of Rs. 400/- each) - 5,944.00

Total 2,313.88 8,109.28

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity Shares:

Na. of Shares No. of Shares ASAT ASAT
Ascat31.03.2016 Asac3].03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,33,05,600 216,52,800 2,165.28 2,165.28
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year {1:1) - 216,52,800 - -
Add: 14,86,000 CCPPS Converted inte Two 29,721,000 - 148.60 -
Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each.
Balance as ac che end of che year 4,62, 77,600 4,33,05,600 2,313.88 2,165.28
Preference Shares:
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14,86,000 - 5,544.00 -
Add: CCPPS issued during the year - 14,86,000 - 5,544.00
Less:-CCPPS Converted into Equity Shares 14,86,000 - 5,544.00 -
Balance as ac che end of che year - 14,86,000 - 5,944.00

(b} Rights, preferences and rescriccions attached co shares

Equity Shares: The Company has ohe class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.5/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharehalders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after discribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding.

Preference Shares: The Company has one class of preference shares i.e. Compulsory Convertible Participating Preference Share
{CCPPS} having face value of Rs. 400/- each converted into two equity shares on 30.04.2015. These CCPPS sharehaolders have no voting
right. The CCPPS shareholders have been paid the dividend @ 5% per- annum on preferential basis on conversion in addition (o dividend
paid to them during pendency of conversion.

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders halding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company.

No. of Shares No. of Shares
Asatc31.03.2014 Asat31.03.2015

Equity Shares:

Suresh Kumar Paddar 1,56,87,324 1.61,14,312
(33.90%) (37.21%)

Suresh Kumar Poddar -HUF 31,010,600 31,01,800
(6.70%) {7.16%)

Manav Poddar 72,65912 7265912
(15.70%) (16.78%)

Westbridge Crossover Fund, LLC 29,72,000 -
(6.42%) -

DSP Black Rock Balanced Fund 23,98,095 -

(5.18%) -
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{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
4. Reserves and Surplus
General Reserves
Balarice as at the beginning of the year [,172.40 1,602.94
Add: Transferred from surplus in stacement of Profit and Loss during the year - 655.10
Less: Utilised for issue of bonus shares - 1,082.64
Balance as at the end of the year 1,179.40 1,179.40
Security Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year [,055.95 -
Add: On conversion of CCPPS ihto 29,72,000 Equity Shares @ Rs. 195/- each
{On issue of 14,86,000 CCPPS @ Rs. 71.06 each) 5.795.40 1,055.95
Balance as at the end of the year 6,851.35 |1,055.95
Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 17,922.34 13,424.33
Add: Profic for the year 8.251.29 6,590.10
Add: Impact of Transitional Provision of Schedule 1
- Deferred Tax Liabilicy Reversed - 210.28
- Depreciation Reversed - 42.03
26,173.63 20,266.74
Less: Appropriations
: Preference Dividend @ 5% on CCPPS 297.20 -
: Interim Dividend for the year 1,527.16 1,041.24
: Proposed Dividend for the year 92.56 370.22
: Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend @ 5% on CCPPS 60.50 -
: Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed and Interim Dividend 329.74 27384
:Transfer to General Reserve - 659.10
Balance as at the end of the year 23,8656.47 17,922.34
Tocal 31,897.22 20,157.69
5. Long-Term Borrowings
Secured:
Term Loans:
From Banks:
CANARA BANK
Term Loan Accounc Ne. 0362773000013 3344 68.50

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 85 equal monthly installments of
Rs. 3.00 Lacs beginning from Feb. 2011.

Term Loan Account No. 036277300001 3 0.92 458

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 90 equal monthly installments of
Rs. 0.31 Lacs beginning from Dec. 2009,

Nacure of Securicy

Term loan from canara bank are secured against EMT of Land & Building situated atVillage-
Jaitpura, Jaipur and first pari -passu charge on movable and immaovable assets both present
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
and future situated atVillage-Jaitpura, Jaipur with exclusive charge of bank on fixed assets
financed. The term loans from canara bank are furcher secured by hypochecation of raw
material, work-in-process and finished goods and other currenc assets of the Company
on residual basis.
IDBI BANK LIMITED
Term Loan Account No. 142673200000806 - 3012

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments of
Rs. 50.00 Lacs beginning from June 2015.

Nature of Security

Term loan from IDBI bank is secured by way of exclusive charge on Land & Building
situated at Khasra No. 772,723 & 724 Village-Dhodsar, Singod -Khejroli Road Diste. |aipur
and exclusive charge on assets acquired from disbursement.

ICICI BANK LIMITED
Term Loan Account Mo. M157303001 311.31 490.59

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installmencs of
Rs. 44.83 Lacs beginning from July 2013.

Term Loan Account Mo, M157303001 334.09 52499

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installments of
Rs. 47.73 Lacs beginning from Sept. 2013.

Term Loan Account No. M157303001 225.68 256.41

Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installments of
Rs. 31.82 Lacs baginning from Mar. 2014.

Nature of Security

Term Loan frem ICICI Bank Ltd. are secured against EMT of Land & Building situaced at
Khasra No. 721/1,726,72712097,728/2,72%/2,7271 ,726/2093 Village-Dhodsar, Singod-
Khejroli Road Discr. Jaipur and firsc & exclusive charge on movable fixed assets {Planc and
Machinery) of the Dhodsar unit financed by ICICI Bank.

Total 905.44 1,375.19

4. Deferred Tax Liability {Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreaciation 644.33 571.48
Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for doubcful debts and advances 22.24 21.85
Cther timing differences 123.60 73.21
Total 498.49 476.42

7. Long Term Provisions

Pravision for Employees Benefits

Provision for Gratuity (Net of fair value of plan assecs) 29.37 4.58
Provision for Leave Encashment {Net of fair value of plan assets) 3.79 2235

Total 33.16 26.93
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{Rs.in Lacs)

AS AT ASAT

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
8. Shart -Term Borrowings
Secured:
From Banks :
IDBI BANK LIMITED
CC/ODBD Limic - 1,272.02
Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 44548 191.00
Nacure of Securicy
Secured against second par? -passu charge on movable assets i.e. plant & machinery etc.
situated at Village Jaitpura Jaipur Sikar Road, Disct, Jaipur  and further secured by first
pari-passu charge on current assets of Company.
ICICI BANK LIMITED
Export Bills Discounted 86.08 -
Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 399.90 681.14
Nacure of Securicy
Secured against first pari-passu charges on currenct assets of the Company and further
secured by mortgage of Land & Building and structures thereon, fixtures, fittings and all
plant and machinery atcached to cthe earth bath present and future ,situated at Khasra No.
72171,726,727/2097,72812,729/2,72711,726i12093 Village- Dhodsar, Tehsil Chamu, Dist.
Jaipur,
Unsecured:
From Banks :
CITI BANK N.A-Buyer's [ Suppliers Credit against LOU - 207.87
YES BAMNK LTD.-Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 183.06 -
Total 1,114,52 2,152,03
9. Trade Payables
Trade Payables-Due to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises - -
Others 3,752.60 5,190.42
Toral 3,752.40 5.190.42
10. Other Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long term debt {refer note no. 5)
Term Loan from Banks
ANDHRA BANK
Term Loan Account No 026930100001796 - 2.82
CANARA BANK
Term Loan Account No 0362773000013 36.00 36.00
Term Loan Account No 0362773000010 3.66 l.65
IDBI BANK LIMITED
Term Loan Account No. |42673200000639 - 14.77
Term Loan Account No.|142673200000804 30.12 200.00
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
ICICI BANK LIMITED
Term Loan Account No. M157303001 179.30 179.32
Term Loan Account No. MI57303001 190.91 190.92
Term Loan Account No. M157303001 127.28 127.28
Unpaid Dividends 167.30 121.94
Other Payables
Employee Benefits Payable 289.84 201.87
Advance from Customers 361.38 280.63
Security Deposit from Contractors 30.07 5242
Security Deposit from Employees 1.97 16.07
Statutory dues including prevident fund and Tax deducted at Source 185.93 149.90
Creditors for Capital Goods 86.90 31533
Creditors for Expenses 511.48 51558
Others 315.04 311.80
Total 2,517.78 2,720.31
Il. Short-Term Provisions
Other Provisions
Provision for Proposed Dividend 92.56 37022
Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed Dividend 18.84 75.37
Provisian for income Tax [Net of Advance Tax paid Rs 10,139.19 Lacs (Rs. 6,861.02 Lacs )] 930.83 253.00
Pravision for Wealth Tax - 3.95

Total 1,042.23 702.54
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12. FIXED ASSETS
{Rs.in Lacs )
NAME OF ASSETS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
AS AT ADDITIONS |DEDUCTIDNS| RS AT AS AT FORTHE |ADJUSTMENT| RS AT AS AT RS AT
01.04.2015 DURING DURING 3.03.206 | 01.04.2015 YEAR 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.20n5
THEYEAR | THEYEAR

A) TANGIBLE ASSETS
OWN ASSETS:
LAND & SITE DEYELOPMENT 606.74 606.74 606.74 | 606.74
BUILDINGS 4,242.45 175.24 4417.68 407.71 130.17 537.88 | 4,879.81 | 3.834.74
PLANT & MACHINERY (IMPORTED]} 8,009.86 268.01 8,277.87 | 2,364.48 B36.87 3,201.35 | 5,07652 | 5545.38
PLANT & MACHINERY {INDIGENOUS] 2420.72 173.74 2,603.45 738.63 250.06 1038.88 | 1,664.77 | 1,641.08
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION & EQUIPMENTS| 1,401.63 108.81 1,610.44 288.51 144.83 433.44 | 1,077.00 | 1,113.12
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 420.71 28.37 445.08 187.01 38.80 235.81 213.27 223.70
MOTOR YEHICLES 528.11 335.91 43.29 810.73 73.23 71.71 11.37 133.57 67716 | 454.88
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 114.38 12.52 0.53 126.37 67.42 18.17 0.31 83.28 43.09 46.96
COMPUTERS AND DATA PROCESSING UNITS]  241.34 86.83 6.01 322.16 161.28 54.02 5.56 208.72 112.44 40.08
TOTAL:{A) 17,994.84 | 1,173.43 49.83 119,124.54 | 4,348.25 | 1,542,713 12.24 | 5873.74 | 13,250.80 | 13,648.69
PREYIOUS YEAR 12,979.93 | 5026.47 11.45 | 17,984.84 | 3,213.54 | 1,185.71 h1.00 | 4,348.2b | 13,646.69 [ 9,/66.38
B) CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS-
JAITPURA UNIT
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION & EQUIPMENTS 0.33 11.78 12.12 0.33
BUILDINGS 9.12 14.85 22.36 1.61 1.61 4.12
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 14.97 9.45 .52 5.52
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.08 0.09
PLANT & MACHINERY {INDIGENOUS) £.50 6.50
TOTAL: 9.45 48.20 50.52 7.13 .13 9.45
EXPANSION PROJECT-TEXTILE DIV.
{DHODSAR)
PLANT & MACHINERY (INDIGENOUS) 187.20 132.54 34.36 34.36
PLANT & MACHINERY (IMPORTED} 188.77 189.77
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION & EQUIPMENTS 5.31 43.59 285 46.05 46.06 .31
BLILDINGS 346.34 431.56 151.09 526.91 526.91 348.34
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 3.07 £3.42 1.72 53.77 58.77 3.07
OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 13.04 13.04 13.04
TOTAL: 35472 | 4908.68 | 484.27 7749.13 77913 | 354.72
TOTAL: (B) 364.17 956.38 534.79 186.26 786.26 | 36317
PREYIOUS YEAR 2,655.55 | 2,220.14 | 4,511.52 364.17 364.17 | 2,685.50
Gl INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COMPUTER SOFTWARES 3.77 277.77 281.04 0.31 £8.88 £4.19 212.3b 3.46
TOTAL: i) 3.77 277.11 281.54 031 6§.38 69.19 212.35 3.46
PREYIOUS YEAR 3.77 3.77 0.31 0.31 3.46
D) INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER
DEVELOPMENT
COMPUTER SOFTWARES 253.42 83.59 34711 25h3.42
TOTAL: {0 253.42 93.69 341 253.42
PREYIOUS YEAR 253.42 253.42 253.42
GRAND TOTAL: {(R+B+C+D) 18,616.30 | 2,507.77 931.73 [20,192.34 | 4,348.56 | 1.611.61 17.24 | 5,942.93 | 14,249.41 [ 14,267.714
PREYIQUS YEAR 15,635.48 | 750380 | 4.522.95 [18,6816.30 | 3213564 [ 1,188.02 51.00 | 4,348.06 | 14.267.74 | 12,431.94

Note: Addition in Fived Assets includes Rs 65.15 Lacs (Rs. 153.04 Lacs } far Research and Develapment Equipment and Machinery.
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{Rs.in Lacs)

ASAT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

I3. Non-Current Investments
Trade Investment
EQUITY SHARES (UNQUOTED)
Investment in Subsidiary
I.MAYUR UNIQUOTERS CORP.USA 6.98 -
(Fully paid-up 11000 Equity Shares of US$. |/- each)
OTHERS INVESTMENTS {(valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
EQUITY SHARES (QUOTED)
I.CANARA BANK 1.43 1.43

{4100 Fully Paid Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each ac a premium of
Rs. 25/- per Equity Share }

1, ANDHRA BANK 5.14 5.14

{5707 Fully Paid Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a Premium of
Rs. 80/- par Equity Share )

Less:-Provision for Diminution in Value of Nan-Current Investments. 215 -
25% 504

Total 11.40 6.57

Aggregace amount of unquoted investments 6.98 -

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 6.57

Market value of quoted investments 10.77 19.59

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments 215 -

14. Long-Term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, considered goad (unless otherwise stated)

Capital Advances 3365 60.49
Security Deposits with Gove./Semi Gove. Departments 90.44 73.05
Security Deposits with others 8.72 8.75
Total 122.81 142.2%

I 5. Current Investments

Investment in Mutual Funds-Quoted

IDFC Ukra Short Term Fund-Daily Dividend-{Regular Plan) - 573.29
Number of Units Nil {(57,22,577.014)

IDFC Cash Fund-Daily Dividend-(Regular Plan) 372.04 533.19
Number of Units 37,187,155 {53,294.518)

IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 300.00 -
Number of Units 14,19,090.554 (Nil)

ICICI Prudencdial Ulcra Shore Term -Regular Plan-Daily Dividend - 216,57
Number of Units Nil (21,41,565.398)

Birla Sun Life Shorc Term Fund-Monthly Dividend -Regular Plan 1,133.93 |,068.41
Number of Units 96,00,448.386 (90,41,648.741)

Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund Opportunities Fund-Growth-Regular Plan 200.0C -
Number of Units 8,09,906.780 {Nil)

BAG Birla Sun Life Balanced' 35 Fund-Growth-Regular Plan 90.00 -
Number of Units 16,616.811 (Nil)
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Franklin India Low Duration Fund-Monthly Dividend 1,216.08 90| 44
Number of Units 1,16,09,954.917(86,21,551.023)
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund-Daily Dividend 246.74 23194
Number of Unics 24,55,438.843 {23,08,514.074)
Franklin India Balanced Fund-Growth 160.00 -
Number of Units 1,79,929.772 {Nil)
HDFC Short Term Opporcunities Fund-Fortnightly Dividend 561.40 531.61
Number of Units 55,59.581.641{52,64,660.712)
HDFC Shore Term Opportunities Fund-Growth Plan 15554 15554
Nurmber of Unics 10,29,173.366 (10,29,173.366)
HDFC CMF -Treasury Advancage Retail-Growth Plan 262.35 -
Number of Units 8,33,507.000 (Nil}
ICICI Prudential Liquid Daily Dividend -Regular Plan 567.46 53224
Number of Unics 5,67,097.904 (5,31,905.565)
ICICI Prudential Regular Income Fund -Growth Plan 32473 -
Number of Units 22,48,983.510 {Nil}
IDFC Money Manager Fund -Treasury Plan-Daily Dividend 460.34 53344
Number of Unics 45,71,499.022 (52,97,343.792)
Kotak Balance-Dividend Regular Plan 100.00 -
Number of Unics 6,95,313.586 (Nil}
Kortak Floater Short Term-Daily Dividend {Regular Plan) 5159.50 53423
Number of Units 51,353.8591(52,809.494)
Reliance Floating Rate Fund Short Terim-Monchly Dividend - 446.01
Number of Units Nil (43,15,322.330)
Reliance Short Term Fund -Growth Plan - 200.00
Number of Units Nil (7,6%,550.429)
Reliance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Daily Dividend Option 101.00 -
Number of Units 2,751.033 (Nil)
Reliance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Growth Option 628.45 -
Number of Units [7,115.285 {Nil)
Reliance Short Term Fund -Dividend Plan - 967.58
Number of Units Nil {88,89,610.470}
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Series 9 Plan-Growth 450.00 -
Number of Unics 45,00,000.000 {Nil}
Reliance Banking & PSU Debt Fund-Growth Plan 1,397.65 -
Number of Units 1,37,00,683.626( Nil )
DSP Black Rock Focus 25 Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 76.29 -
Number of Unics 4,92,602.550 (Nil}
DSP Black Rock Money Manager Fund-Regulat Plan-Growth 0.95 -
Number of Units 47.129 (Nil)
DSP Black Reck Opportnities Fund-Regular Plan-Growth 170.00 -
Number of Unics 1,27,262.655 (Nil}
SBI Bluechip Equity Fund 50.00 -
Number of Unics 3,02,876.112 {Nil}
SBl Magnum Gilt Fund Long Term -Growth Plan 150.00 150.00
Number of Units 4,93,789.771(4,93,789.77 1)
Total 9,694.45 71,575.51
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 9,694.45 7,575.51
Quoted value of quoted investments 9,848.47 7.58997
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
16. Inventories
At lower of cost or nec realizable value
Stores and Spares {Includes Goods in Transit Rs. 0.44 Lacs (Nil) 189.79 147.40
Fuel and Coal 18.48 4592
Raw Materials [Includes Goods in Transit Rs 674.44 Lacs (Rs. 893.97 Lacs )] 3,524.14 4,134.08
Work-in-progress 681.75 528.08
Finished Goods [Includes Goods in Transit Rs. [46.63 Lacs (Rs. 154.12 Lacs )] 624.88 755.00
Total 5,039.04 5,610.48
17.Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Oucstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment 400.52 194,38
Others 11,981.57 8,874.29
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceading 6 months from the date they are due for payment 64.28 64.28
Others - -
12,446.37 9.132.95
Less:- Provisions for Doubtful Debts 64.28 64.28
Total 12,382.09 9,068.47
18. Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash-on- hand 8.43 5.55
Cheques-on- hand 91.47 12328
Bank Balances
In Current Accounts 606.58 1,661.87
Fixed Deposits (Less than 3 months maturicy) 144.73 258.03
[Out of which FDR pledged with bank as margin money Rs 42.00 Lacs (Rs. 36.61 Lacs )
851.21 2,048.73
Other Bank Balances
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 167.90 121.94
Fixed Deposits with maturity motre than 3 months but Less than 12 months 393.80 488.43
[Out of which FDR pledged with bank as margin money Rs 160.67 Lacs {Rs. 102.18 Lacs)]
561.70 61037

Total 1,412.91 2,659.10
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT ASAT

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
19. Short -Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, cohsidered good, unless otherwise staced
Other Loans & Advances
Advance Against Expenses 82.02 86.39
Advance to Trade Payables 198.05 16194
Prepaid Expenses 7977 4721
Deposits/Balances with Excise Authorities 49.25 244,13
CENVAT Receivable 140.99 323.12
Total 550.08 8462.79
20. Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Accrued Interest 20.57 35.32
Claims Receivable 547.34 79213
Duty Draw Back Receivable 574 84.63
Demand Under Dispute 29.48 5.58
Total 603.13 917.66
21. Contingent Liabilities
{i) Demand Under Dispute-
{a) Textile Committee Cess 7.69 769
{b) Service Tax Demand 8.68 11.03
{Out of which deposited Rs. 2.50 Lacs { Rs. 3.60 Lacs )
{c) Income Tax Demand 151.54 |.98
{Out of which deposited Rs. 26.98 Lacs (Rs. 1.98 Lacs)
{The Company has filed appeal against these demands)
(i) Letter of Credic/Bank Guarantee 2,557.20 2,214.28
22. Capital and Other Commitments
{a) Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (het of Advance) 107.75 105.69
{b) Other Commitments - -
23. Proposed Dividend
The final dividend propased for the year is as follows:
On 4,62,77,600 (4,33,05,600) Equicy Shares of Rs. 5/- each 9256 346.44
{On 14,86,000 CCPPS Convertible inta 29,72,000 Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each
{in Proportion |:2) issued on 30.04.2014 and Convertible on 30.04.2015.) - 2378
Total amount of dividend proposed 92.56 37022
Dividend per Equity Share 0.20 0.80
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{Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
24, Revenue
Sale of Products
Finished Goods
Exports 13,260.12 12,834.34
Domestic 41,989.14 41,477.34
55,249.26 54,311.68
Less:- Excise Duty on sale of products 5,050.08 5,075.07
50,199.18 4923661
Other Operaring Revenue
Export Incentives 314.04 774.61
Serap Sales and Others 643.32 682.43
957.36 |,457.04
Less:- Excise Ducy on scrap and other sales 54.54 61.9%
902.82 1,395.05
Total 51,102.00 50,631.46
Details of Sales {Finished Goods)
Coaced Textile Fabric {Net of Excise Duty) 50,199.18 49,236.61
25. Other Incame
Other Non Operacing Income
Dividend ot Equity Shares 0.55 0.19
Dividend on Mutual Funds 412.07 476.96
State Subsidy on Interest 93.89 -
Interest Income 82.01 83.58
Liabilicies written back to che extent no longer required 2.83 4.55
Profit onh sale of current invescments {12.70) 28.84
Total 578.65 594.12
26. Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Stock 4,134.08 4,791 .84
Add:- Purchase of Raw Marerial 28,579.78 31,792.65
32,713.86 36,584.49
Less:- Closing Stock 3.524.14 4,134.08
Total 29,189.72 32,450.41
(a) Decails of Raw Materials Consumed
Release paper 1,434.27 1,326.40
Fabric 8,474.74 8,874.85
Chemicals 18,491.44 21,378.90
Consumable & Packing Material 789.27 870.26

Total 29,189.72 32,450.41
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{Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
{b)Value of imported and indigenous material consumed
Imported 12,481.66 12,814.38
42.76% 39.49%
Indigenous 16,708.06 19,636.03
57.24% 60.51%
Total 29,189.72 32,450.41
27. Changes in inventories of finished goods, worl¢-in -progress
QOpening Stock
Finished Goods 755.00 916.04
Work-in-Progress 528.08 517.30
1,283.08 143334
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods 624.88 755.00
Work-in-Progress 681.75 528.08
1,306.63 1,283.08
{Increase)!/ Decrease in finished goods and work- in- progress (23.55) 150.24
28, Employees Benefits Expenses
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 2,079.06 1,847 .55
Bonus and Ex-Gratia 180.86 3308
Contribution ta ESI (Refer Note (a) below) 7.55 763
Contribution to Provident Fund (Refer Note (a} below) 41.19 2849
Directars' Remuneracion 325.42 32624
Expenses on Director's Facilities 6.85 674
Gratuicy (Refer Note (b} below) 70.48 36.83
Staff & Labour Welfare 112.69 104.11
Leave Encashmenc (Refer Note (b) below } 18.10 30.52
Total 2,842.20 2,426.19

Gratuity and Other Post Employment Beneifit Plan
a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has defined concribution plan for its employees' retirement benefits comprising of provident fund & employees' state
insurance fund. The Company and eligible employees make monthly contribution to the above mentioned funds at a specified percentage
of the covered employees salary.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has defined benefic plan comprising of gratuity fund & leave encashmenc. The Company contributes to the gratuity and
leave encashment fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India under its group gracuicy {Cash Accumulztion) scheme and
group leave encashment scheme.

Defined benefit plans as per accuarial valuadion as on 31st March 2016.
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{Rs.in Lacs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave
Encashment
Assumptions

Discount Rate 8.00% 8.00%
(8.00) (8.000
Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00%
(8.00) (8.000

Table showing changes in present value of obligacion as on 31.03.2014
Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 145.87 53.40
{11383 (25.95)
Interest cost 11.67 427
(8.89) (1.81)
Current service cost 27.02 9.27
{25.98) (8.55)
Benefit paid (8.47) (6.48)
-{(4.80) -(3.07)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 3179 4.56
{1.97) (20.16)
Present value of obligations as at end of year 207.87 65.02
{145.87) (53.40)

Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.20146
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 141.29 31.18
{102.22) (23.48)
Expected return cn plan assets 14.06 4.98
(11.77) (2.67)
Contributions 3163 31.56
(32,10 (4.65)
Benefits paid (8.47) {6.48)
-(4.80) -(3.07)

Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 178.50 61.23
{141.29) (31.05)
The amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present value of obligations as ac the end of year 207.87 65.02
(145.87) (53.40)
Fair value of plan assecs as at the end of the year 178.50 61.23
(141.29) (31.05)
Nec Liabilicy {Asset) Recognized in Balance Sheet 29.37 3.79
(4.58) (22.35)

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 27.02 927
{25.98) (8.55)
Interesc cost 11.67 427
(8.89) {1.81)
Expected return cn plan assets {14.06) {4.98)
-{11.77) -(2.67)
Net Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the year 3L7e 4.56
(1.97) (20.16)
Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and Loss {Net of interest received) 56.42 13.13

(25.07) (27.85)
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(Rs.in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
29. Finance Cost
Interest Expenses
Term Loan 7379 153.21
CC Limits 0.87 0.45
Others 21.54 2356
Interest on shortfall of advance income tax 63.00 2.00
Net Loss/(gain) on foreign currency transaction and translation 21.83 {48.65)
Other Borrowing Cost 158.85 128.98
Tocal 339.88 259.55
30. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 1,542.73 1,185.71
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 68.88 0.31
Total 1,611.61 1,186.02
31. Other Expenses
A) Manufacturing Expenses
Consumable Tools 77 34.82
Power & Fuel Charges | ,684.40 1,672.461
Job Labour Charges 958.74 81055
Contribution to ESI (Job Labour) 18.47 21.38
Contribution to Provident Fund {Job Labeour) 37.79 3371
Quality & Sample Testing Charges 25.50 30.05
Excise Durty * {10.67) 41.70
Repairs to : Plant & Machinery 248.13 293.79
: Buildings 67.87 63.62
Total (A) 3,058.15 3,002.23
B) Administracive Expenses
Books and Periodicals & Membership Fee 1628 | 4.04
Courier, Postage and Telegrams 23.02 2946
Insurance Premium 48.20 43.21
Legal and Professional Expenses 8%.73 288.21
Miscellaneous Expenses 36.48 29.68
Net Loss/{gain} on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation {158.88) {273.64)
Office Maintenance Expenses 122.73 93.87
Payment to Auditors:
As Auditor
Audit Fee 385 3.70
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{Rs.in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Tax Audic Fee 0.87 0.80
Other Services 283 2.53
Printing and Stationery 25.06 2716
Repairs to Furniture and Fixeures and Office Equipments 4.63 574
Telephone and Fax Charges 30.56 31.24
Travelling and Conveyance 251.87 285.88
Vehicle Maintenance 8.49 429
Rent, Rates and Taxes [including Wealth Tax Rs. Nil (Rs. 3.95 Lacs )] 55.05 56.46
Charity & Donation 5.71 31.06
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 70.03 44.54
Human Skill Development Expenses 6.05 45.54
Computer! Software Maintenance Expenses 37.99 5.45
Directars' Sitting Fee 377 298
Recruitment Expenses 6.07 25.01
Pravision for Diminution in Value of Non-Current Investments 2,15 -
Security Charges 97.77 74.57
Prior Period Expenses 782 10.17
Miscellaneous Balances Written Off 1.00 093
Loss/{Profic) on Tangible Assets Sold / Discarded 16.16 1.09
Total {B) 815.29 883.97
C) Selling Expenses
Commission on Sales 439.19 444724
Discount & Rebare 424.07 35246
Freight and Cartage Durwards 313.18 305.13
Sales Promotion Expenses 148.15 14326
Export Expenses 356.42 296.62
Total {C) 1,681.01 1,541.71
G.Total (A+B+C) 5,554.45 5,427.91
* Excise Ducy shown under expenditure reprasants the differance between
excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished goods,
32, Current Tax
Provision for income tax (current year) 3,893.00 2,640.00
Less: Excess provision of taxation for the earlier years written back 0.02 -

Total 3,892.98 2,640.00
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(Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.20156 31.03.2015

33. Earning Per Share
Basic
Profit after tax {After Dividend & Dividend Distribution Tax for
CCPPS Holders for Rs. 357.70 Lacs ) 7.893.59 6,590.10
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 46,042,114 43,305,600.00
Basic EPS (in Rs.) 17.14 1522
Face Value 5 5
Diluted
Profit after tax 8,251.29 6,590.10
Weighted average number of equity share oucstanding 46,277,600 46,041,468.00
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 17.83 1431
Restricted to Basic EPS 17.14 -
Face Value 5 5
34, Research and Development Expenditure
Capital Expenditure 65.15 153.04
Revenue Expenditure 560.19 584.50
Total 615.34 737.54
35. CIFValue of Imports
Capital Goods and Spares 32827 487.48
Raw Material I1,551.55 12,313.59
Total 11,879.82 12,801.07
36. Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travelling 2223 68.04
Commission 421.05 34241
Others 463.14 387.65
Total 9046.42 798.10
37. Earning in Foreign Currency
Revenue from Exports on FOB Basis 13,097.06 12,711.00
Total 13,097.06 12,711.00
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38. In che opinicn of the managemenc and to the besc of their knowledge and belief che value of realization of advances and other
current assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount ac which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

39. Expenditure on Corparate Social Responsibility Activities as per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Schedule VI
thereof;

{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year:-2% of Rs. 8,081.03 Lacs, (Rs. 6,585.30 Lacs) (Average net
profic of che Company for chree immediace preceding financial years) i.e. Rs. 161.62 Lacs (Rs. 131.71 Lacs)

{b) Amounc spent during the yaar on:
{Rs.in Lacs)

Particulars In Cash Yet co be Paid in Cash Total
{i)  Constructionfacquisition Nil Nil Nil
of any assect (Nily {Nil) {Nil)

{i)  On purpose ather than (i} above
| Promoting health care including preventdng health care 9.50 Nil 9.50
(7.27) {Nily (7.27)
2 Promotion of education 57.27 Nil 5727
(33.32) {Nil) (33.32)
3 Ensuring environmental sustainabilicy 1.70 Nil 1.70
{1.20) {Nily (1.20%
4 Sanitacion Nil Nil Nil
{1.05) {Nil) {1.05)
5  Employment enhancing vocational skills Nil Nil Nil
{1.37) {Nily {1.37)
6  Promoting gender equality and empowering women Nil Nil Nil
(0.33) {Nil) (0.33)
7 Promotion of rural sports 1.17 Nil 1.17
(Nily (Nily (Nil
8 Rural development project 0.39 Nil 0.39
(Nil) (NIl (Nil)
Total 70.03 Nil 70.03
{44.54) (Nil) {(44.54)
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Dividend relating to the year Ist Interim | 2nd Interim | 3rd Interim | 4th Interim Final
2015-14 2015-14 2015-14 2015-16 2014-15

No of Non-Resident Shareholders 747 76l 799 219 817
(280) {354) 4186) (Nil} {280)

No of shares held by them 7,377,669 7,363,862 7.521,783 7,607,472 7,668,814
(666,563) (670,086) (699,939) (Nil} {666,563)

Amount of Dividend (Rs.in Lacs) 59.02 58.91 60.14 64.66 65.18
{4.67) {5.03) {5.60) (Nil} (5.67)

Amount Remicted in Foreign Currency] Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
{Nil) (Nil) (Nil) (Nil} {NiD)

The Company is engaged in production of Coated Textile Fabric hence there is no reportable business segment and the
Company has no accivity outside India except exporc of Coated Textile Fabric manufactured in India. Therefore no geographical
segment and no segment wise information is reporced.

Related Party Disclosures
Related party information
1y Relacionship
(a) Whelly owned subsidiary
Mayur Uniquoters Corp. USA

{b) Enterprises over which person described in {c} alongwith their relatives are able to exercise significanc influence,
directly or indirectly, where transaction has taken place.

Fucura Textiles Inc.

Mayur Leather Products Limited

) Key management personnel

Suresh Kumar Peddar ({Chairman & Managing Director)

Manav Poddar {Executive Director)

Arun Kumar Bagaria {Executive Director)

Prahalad Sahay Jangid {Chief Financial Officer ) Upto 13.08.2015

Guman Mal Jain {Chief Financial Officer) w.ef. 13.08.2015
Nikhil Saxena (Company Secretary)

2) Transactions with related parties

{Rs.in Lacs)

Particulars Related Parties
| (a) | (b) I ()
Expenses
Salary & Remuneration (Including PE Nil Nil 164.00
Contribution & Expenses on Director's Facilities) {Nil) {Nil) (348.20)
Sale of Vehicle (Car) Nil Nil 15.90
(Nil) {Nil (Nil)
Sale of Goods (Including Taxes) 5,076.93 1,235.06 (Nil)
{Nil) {1.115.85) Nil
Freight Recovered 278.20 47.99 (Nil)
{(Nil) (57.11) Nil
Reimbursement of Expenses 3.87 Nil Nil
(Nil) (Nil) (Nil)
Balance Receivable 3,086.91 [,348.11 {Nil)
(Nil) {1,097.32) Nil
Investment in Shares 6.98 Nil {Nil)
{Nil) {Nil) Nil
Invescment ac year end 6.98 Nil (Nil)
(Nil) (Nil) Nil
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Leases

As a Lessee

Finance/QOperating Lease

Thete is no finance/operating lease taken by the Company during che year

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more chan 45
days at the Balance Sheet date. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Ace, 2006 has been determined to the excent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
wich the Company.

Pursuant to the AS-29 - provisions, contingenc liabilicies and condingent assets ,the disclosures relating to provisions made in the
accounts for the year ended 3 st March, 2016 are as follows

(Rs.in Lacs )

Provisions Current year  Previous year
Income Tax

Opening Balance 7.114.02 4472.02
Addicions during the year 3,956.00 2,642.00

Utdilizations during the year - -

Reversals during che year o -

Closing Balance 11,070.02 7,114.02
Wealth Tax

Opening Balance 395 221
Addicions during the year - 3.95
Utdlizations during the year (3.93) {2.21)
Reversals during the year (0.02) -
Closing Balance - 3.95
Proposed Dividend

Opening Balance 370.22 39336
Additions during the year 92.56 370.22
Udilizations during the year (370.22) {393.36)
Reversals during the year - -
Closing Balance 92.54 370.22
Tax on Dividend

Opening Balance 7537 66.85
Addicions during the year 18.84 75.37
Utilizations during the year {75.37) {66.85)
Reversals during che year - -
Closing Balance 18.84 75.37
Leave Encashment

Opening Balance 22.35 248
Addicions during the year 18.10 30.52
Udlizations during the year 6.48 307

Reversals during the year - -
FairValue of plan assets (30.18) {7.58)
Net Provision 3.79 22.35
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(Rs.in Lacs )

Provisions Current year Previous year

Gratuity

Opening Balance 4.58 1.6l
Additions during che year 70.48 356.83
Utilizacions during the year 8.48 4.80
Reversals during the year - -
Fair Value of plan assets (37.21) (39.06)
Net Pravisian 29.37 4.58

Diminution in Value of Non-Current Investment

Opening Balance - -
Additions during che year 2.15 -
Utilizacions during the year - -

Reversals during the year s -

Closing Balance 2.15 -
Doubtful Debts

Opening Balance 6478 64.78
Additions during che year s -
Utilizacions during the year s -
Reversals during the year s -
Closing Balance £4.28 §4.28

46 Balance of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Advances are subject to confirmation.
47  The Company did not have convertible partly convertible debentures as on 31st March, 2014
48  Figure in brackets denotes figures for pervious year ended on 31.03.2015.

49  Figures far previous year are regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary.

For and on behalf of che Board As per our report of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

FRN 000866C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
{Chairman & Managing {Directar) (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer) {Partner)
Director & CEO) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-000223%5

Place : Jaitpura {Jzipur)
Daced : 27" May2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED, JAIPUR
Report on the Consolidaced Financial Stacements

We have audited che accompanying consolidated financial scatements of Mayur Uniquoters Limited, |aipur {hereinafter referred to as
“"the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary {the Holding Company and its subsidiary cogether referred to as "the Group”) comprising
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3 Ist March, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement far the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accouncing policies and other explanatory informacion
{hereinafter referred to as “the Consclidated Financial Statements”).

Management's Respansibility for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of
the requirements of che Companies Ace, 2013 (hereinafter referred co as "the Act™) that give a crue and fair view of che consolidared
financial position, conseolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounding Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates and
jointly controlled encicies are responsible for maincenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; cthe selecdon and applicacion
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates cthat are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial concrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accouncing records, relevanc to the preparation and presentacion of the financial scatements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;, which have been used for che purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Direccors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial stacemencs based on our audit. While conducting the audit,
we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and macters which are required to be
included in the audit reporc under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made chere under.

We conducted our audic in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply wich ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obrtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obraih audit evidence abourt the amounts and the disclosures in the congolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial scatements, whether due to fraud or arror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial concrol relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the consclidated financial statements thac give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures thac are appropriate in the circumstances, but noc for the purpose of expressing an
opinian on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting in palace and the
operating effectiveness of such concrols. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriaceness of che accounting policies used and the
reascnableness of the accounting escimaces made by che Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statemenrs,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid cansolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a crue and fair view in conformity with the
accouncng principles generally aceepred In India, of the consolidated scate of affaits of the Group as ac 31sc March, 2016, and cheir
consolidated profic and their consolidated cash flow for the year ended on that dace.

Other Maccer

We have audited che financial statements of one subsidiary {Mayur Uniquocers Corp., USA), whose financial stacemencs reflects total
assers of Rs. 333546 Lacs as ar March 31, 2016, total revenues of Rs. 3534.64 Lacs and net cash flows amounting to Rs, 515.90 Lacs for
the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This reporc does not include a stacemenc on the matters specified in the Companies {Auditor's Report) order, 2016 {"the order"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of cthe companies Act, 2013, since the said order
is not applicable to auditor's report on consolidated financial statements.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report thac

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necassary for che purposes of our audic of the aforesaid consolidaced financial scatements;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of accounc as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of thase books;

{c) The Consclidated Balance Sheet, the consclidated Scatement of Profit and Loss and the Consclidated Cash Flow Stacement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

{d) In our opinicn, the aforesaid consolidated financial statemencs comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the bagis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as on 31st March, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company, none of the directors of the group is disqualified as on 31st March,
2014 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{0 With Respect to the adequacy of the internal financial concrol over financial reporting of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such Controls, refer co our separate repart in Annexure 'A'.

) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule |1 of the Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to che explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements have disclosed the impact of pending litigation if any, on its financial position in
ics financial statement - refer Note No. 21{i) to che financial statements;

(ii} The Group did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts hence, the question of any material
foreseeable losses does not arise;

(il  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred tc the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group during che year ended March 31, 201 4.

For Madhukar Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000866C

Place: Jaipur {Manish Suri)
Date: 27.05.2016 Partner
M.No.-074998
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in para {f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent Auditor's Report of even
date to the members of Mayur Uniquaters Limiced on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201 6.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

I.  Inconjunction with our audic of the consaolidated financial staternents of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018,
we have audiced the internal financial concrols over financial reporting of Mayur Uniquoters Limited (hereinafter referred to as
"the Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies, its associace companies and joincly concrolled companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Concrols

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals
based on the internal concral over financial reporting criceria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls thac were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibilicy

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial cantrols aver financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ({the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable co an audic of internal finanhcial eoncrols, both applicable to an audic of internal financial eontrols and both issued
by the KZALThose standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requiremencs and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and mainained and if such caontrols operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Ouwr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal financial contrels system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrels over financial reporcing included
obrtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal financial control based on the assessed risk. The
proceduras selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statemencs, whether due to fraud or error

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinian on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabilicy of financial reparting and the preparadion of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.A company’s internal financial cantrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (I} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the wransactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with auchorisations of managemenc and direccors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use or disposition of the company's
assers that could have a marterial effecc on che financial statements.

Inherent Limitacions of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporcing

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the incernal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thac the degree
of compliance with the polices or procedures may deceriorace.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systems over finandial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporcing were operating effectively as ac March 31, 2016, based on che internal control over
financial reporting criceria established by the Company considering the essendal components of incernal control staced in the Guidance
Note on Audic of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repaorting issued by the Insticute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Madhukar Garg & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000866C

Place: Jaipur {Manish Suri)
Date: 27th May, 2016 (Partner )
(Membership No. 074398)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2016

{Rs.in Lacs)

PARTICULARS Note ASAT
No. 31.03.2016

| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| Shareholders' Funds

a) Share Capital 3 2,313.88
b} Reserves and Surplus 4 31,245.05
c) Money Received Against Share Warrancs -
d) Minarity Interest -
2 Share Application Money Pending Allotment 0
3 Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-Term Borrowings 5 905.44
b} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 4 49849
) Other Long-Term Liabilities -
d} Long-Term Provisions 7 3316
4 Current Liabilities
a) Short-Term Borrowings 8 111452
b} Trade Payables 9 3,752.60
<) Odher Currenc Liabilities 10 2,57729
d} Short-Term Provisions I 1,095.36
TOTAL 43,539.7%
] ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Fixed Assets 12
i Tangible Assets 13,250.80
i} Intangible Assets 21235
iii) Capital work-in-progress 786.26
iv) Intangible Assets under development -
b} Non-Current Investments 13 442
c) Deferred Tax Assets {Net) -
d) Long-Term Loans and Advances 14 132.81
&) Other Non-Current Assets -
2 Current Assets
a) Current Investments 15 9,694.45
b} Inventories 16 6,49|.34
) Trade Receivables 17 9,870.75
d) Cash and Bank Balances 18 1,92881
e) Short-Term Loans and Advances ] 564,48
f) Other Current Assets 0 603,12
TOTAL 43,539.79

The Notes Na. | ta 43 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of cthe Board As per our report of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

FRN 000866C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
{Chairman & Managing {Directar) {Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer) {Partner)
Director & CEO) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-000223%5

Place : Jaitpura {Jzipur)
Daced : 27" May2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016
(Rs.in Lacs)

PARTICULARS Note No. Year Ended
31.03.2014
| Revenue from Operations {Net) 24 49,559.71
Il Other Income 25 578.65
i Total Revenue (1111} 50,138.36
v EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 29,189.72
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 3481
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 27 (1,475.86)
Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 0
Employee Benefit Expenses 28 2,842.20
Finance Costs 29 340.40
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 30 l.611.61
Other Expenses 31 5,908.01
Total Expenses 38,450.89
v Profit Before Exceptional and Exura I1.687.47
Ordinary ltems and Tax {lI-1V)
Vi Exceptional ltems -
Vi Profit Before Extraordinary ltems and Tax (V-VI) |'1.687.47
Vil Extracrdinary lems -
IX Prafit Before Tax (VII-VIII) 11,687.47
X Tax Expenses
Current Tax 32 3.946.11
Deferred Tax 2207
Xl Profit/(Loss) for che period from concinuing 7,719.29
operations (IX-X)
pdll Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operatians -
Xl Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations -

XIV  Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations -
(Afeer Taxg) (XI-XINNY

XV  Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI+XIV) 7,719.29
XVl  Earning per Equity share of face value of Rs. 5/- each 33

| Basic {in Rs.) 15.99
2 Diluted (in Rs.) 15.99

The Notes No. | to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and an behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

FRN 000886C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
(Chairman & Managing {Director) {Company Secretary} (Chief Financial Officer) (Partner)
Director & CEQ) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-00022395

Place : Jaitpura {Jaipur)
Dated : 27" May2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2014
{Rs.in Lacs)

Year Ended
31.03.2016
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profic before Tax I1,687.47
Depreciation & Amartisatich 1,611.61
Incerest (Nert) 77.19
Provision for Leave Encashment 18.10
Provision for Gratuity 70.48
Lazs on Sale of Tangible Assets [6.16
(Profit) /Less on Redemption of Current Investmant 12.70
State Subsidy on Interesc (93.89)
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain)/Loss (144.51)
Dividend Received (412.62)
Provision for diminution in Value of Investments 2,15
Operating Profit Before Warking Capital Changes 12,844.84
Trade and Othear Raceivable (792.27)
Inventories (880.87)
Trade and Other Payables {1.479.78)
Loans & Advance and QOther Assets 62921
Cash Generated from Operation 10,321.13
Taxes paid {Net of refunds) {3,280.1 1)
Nac Cash from Operating Activicies 7.041.02
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase ! Acquisition of Tangible Assets {1,803.1Q)
Purchase / Acquisition of Intangible Assets (24.36)
Sale of Tangible Assets |6.43
Purchase of Current Investmencs (18,112.78)
Redemption of Currenc Investments 15,981.12
Srate Subsidy on Interest 93.89
Interest Income 96.77
Dividend Income 412.82
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (3,339.39)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/Repayment of borrowings (Net) {1.685.04)
Interest Paid (97.47)
Dividend Paid {2,148.,63)
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (446.77)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 4,3772.91)
Effecc of foreign currency cranslation of cash and cash equivalencs {5.34)
Nert Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (681.62)
Opering Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,048.73
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,3587.11
Reconciliation of Cash & Bank Balances
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalencs as above 1,367.11
Add : Balance in Unpaid Dividend Accouncs 167.90
Add : Fixed Deposits Maturity 3 to 12 Months 393.80
Clasing Balance of Cash & Bank Balances (Refer Note No. 1 8) 1,928.81
*(Figures 'n brackets represent outflaw)
For and on behalf of cthe Board As per our report of even date

For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

FRN 000866C
SURESH KUMAR PODDAR

(Chairman & Managing TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
Director & CEQ) {Director) {Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer) {Partner)
DIN-00022395 DIN-00269942 M.No. 74998

Place : Jaitpura {Jzipur)
Daced : 27" May2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Scatements for the year ended 31* March 2016

General Information

Mayur Uniquoters Limited (the Company), is engaged in the
business of manufacturing of Coated Textile Fabric. The Company
is the leading manufacturer of Coated Textile Fabric in India. The
Company has its manufacturing units situated at village Jaitpura
and Dhodsar, Jaipur (India). Knitced Fabric manufacturad in
Dhodsar planc is consumed largely as captive consumption. The
products of the Company i.e. Coated Textile Fabric are widely
used in different segments such as Footwear, Furnishings,
Automortive OEM, Automotive replacement marketr and
Automative Exports. The Company is selling ics produccs directly
to OEMs and other manufacturers, whalesalers in India and is
also exporting to various countries including US & UK. The equity
shares of the Company are presently lisced wich BSE Limited
{BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

v} The CFS have been prepared by using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances and are presented to
the extent possible, in the same manner as those of
the parant company's independenc financial statements
unless stated otherwise.

{vi) The operations of foreign subsidiaries have been
considered by the management, as non integral
operations as described in Accounting Standard-1 |
revisad (“Accounting for the effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates™).

{vii) The difference between the cost to the Company of
its investmenc in the subsidiaries and its portion of
equity of subsidiaries at the dates they became
subsidiaries, is recognizad in the financial stacements

1y  Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.
Scatements {CFS) This is based upon determination of pre-acquisition
The CFS relates to MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED, profit/losses and of nec worth on the date of the
JAIPUR (‘the holding company’) and its Subsidiary acq‘msmon d‘etern_'\med by Fhe managemem‘: on the
company (together referred co as ‘Mayur Group) have basis of ceraain estimates which have been relied upon
been prepared in compliance wich the applicable by the audicors.
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the {viii) The goods lying in invenctory of any entity may include
Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies certain goods which have been processed in and
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“The Act™) and other transferred from one or more group entity. For the
pronouncement of the Inscicuce of Chartered purpose of consclidation, the amount of unrealized
Accountants of India, on relevant provisions of the Act, profits included in the value of such goods lying in the
applicable guidelines issued by the Securities Exchange inventory of any entity as at the end of the financial
Board of India (SEBI) and generally accepted accounting period, have been eliminated to the extenc of
principles applicable in India {GAAP). The accaunting percentage of net profic of the same financial period
policies have been consistently applied except where a of the entity from whaom these goods have been
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or procured.
a revisiop to an exis:ir"lg acr:c?unl:irlg stanrjlar'd requires (ix) For non integral foreign operation, the assets and
changes in the accounting policy hitherta in use. liabilities are translaced at the closing rate. Income

2}  Summary of significant accounting policies and expense items of the non incegral foreign operation

(A) Principles of consolidacion are translated at exchange rate at the date of the

(i  The CFS has been prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standard-2 1, “Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

{iiy The CFS of Mayur Group have been consolidated
on a line-by-line basis by adding together the books

transaction and all resulting exchange differences are
accumulated in a foreigh currency translation reserve
on consolidation until che disposal of the net
investment,

(B} The Subsidiaries and Associates considered in the

CFS are:

value of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, aftar - - -
fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group Nam.e .of.the .Country.of Ownership | Financial
transactions resulting in un-realized profits or Subsidiaries Incotporation Intet‘est! Y;al'
lossas. vating ends on
. ) . power {%)
{iii} The consolidated financial scatement are presenced, -
to the extant possible, in che same format as that D"Fe“:t‘ .
adopted by the Company for its standalone financial Subsidiaries
statements. Mayur Uniguoters
cory T USA 100% 31=March
{iv) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of orp.
acquisition, being the dace on which the Group obrains Step-down NIL
contrel, and concinue to be consolidaced undl the Subsidiaries
date such control ceases. .
Associates NIL
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{C) Addicional information, as required under schedule 11l of the Companies Acc 2013, of enticy consolidaced as

Subsidiary { Joint ventures ! Associates

Net assets i.e. total assets
minus total liabilities

Shares in profit or loss

As % of
cohsolidated
net assets

Name of company

Amaount
(Rs. In Lacs)

As % of
consolidated
profit and loss

Amounc
{Rs. In Lacs)

Parent Company
Mayur Uniquocers Led.
Subsidiary Campany

Foreign

Mayur Uniquocers Corp.

Associates

{Invesement as per the equity method)

Joint Ventures

{As per Proportionate
Consolidation/ Investment)

As per the equity Methed

101.94%

India -

0.40%

Minority Interest in all Subsidiary -

Indian -

Foreign -

Indian -

Foreign -

34211.10 106.89% 8251.29

135.91 3.18% 245.09

TOTAL

102.34%

34347.01 110.07% 8496.38

Less: Inter company eliminations and

consolidation adjustment

-2.34%

-784.08 -10.07% -777.09

TOTAL

1040.00%

33562.93 100.00% 7719.29

(D)

(E)

(F)

Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis. These financial statements have been
prepared o comply in all material aspects with che
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or
nan-current as per tha Company's normal oparating cycle
and ather criteria sec out in the Schedule lll to the
Companies Act, 2013

Tangible Assets:

Tangible assets are staced at cost which includes cost of
acquisitions, installadon, direct costs and borrowing cost
incurred up to the date of commissioning.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost which includes cost of

(G)
(i)

(i)

{iii)

{iv)

acquisitions, installation, direce costs and borrowing cosc
incurred up to the date of commissioning.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided at the
Straight Line Method on the basis of useful life of assets as
prescribed in part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013.

Depreciation on additions and deletion during the year
has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the
date of addition and deletion. Land & Site development
has not been depreciated.

Depreciation has been provided on Triple Shift Basis
- For all coating lines at Jaitpura unit.

- Knitting & Process and ane coating line for Textile Div.
at Dhodsar unic.

Depreciation has been provided an Single Shift Basis
- For one coating line at Dhodsar unic.

From the date Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
comes into effect, the carrying amounc of the assets as on



)

(H)

(i)

(i)

(v}

)

(vi}

M
{0

{ii)
(i)

(v}

V)

the date after retaining the residual value has been
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the assets as
per chis Schedule.

Incangible assecs {Computer Software) are amertised over
cthe period of four years as per provision of AS-26.

Foreigh Currency Transactions:

Cost of imported marterial is converted to Indian
currency ac the rates applied in Bill of Encry for cuscom
purposes.

The expendicure in foreign currency is accounted at the
rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

The export sales are accounted for ac the actual rates
prevailing at the dme of transaction.

Exchange fluctuation arising on repayment of long term
liability incurred for the purpose of acquiring fixed assets
is charged to Profit & Loss Account as per the provisions
of AS-11.

Balances of monetary items in foreign currency outstanding
at cthe close of the year are converted in indian curtency ac
the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of the balance sheet.

Exchange rate difference between the prevailing race on
the dace of transaction and on the date of sectlemenc as
also on conversion of menetary items in current assets
and current liabilities at the end of the year are recognized
as income & expense as the case may be in Profit & Loss
Account.

Invencories:

Raw material, stores, spares & maintenance items,
consumable goods, work-in-process and other goods are
valued at lower of landed cost and net realizable value.
The cost formula used is Weighted Average Cost. (The
Average has been Calculared on each additional shipment
is received.)

Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value,
whichever is lower

The cost of imported raw material includes custom ducies
and other direct expenditure,

The cost of finished goods comprises of raw material
cast (proportionate of selling price), manufacturing
expenses, payment to & provision for employees,
depreciation onh planc & machinery and factory building {as
cost per liner meter on production).

Revenue Recoghition:

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably
measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimace
collection. Dividend income is recognized when right to
receive is established. Interest income is recognized on
time proportion basis taking into account the amaunt
outstanding and race applicable. Sales within india are
exelusive of sales tax but Inclusive of excise ducy & net of
trade discount. Cut off date for accounting export sales is
based on the dace of Bill of Lading. Exporc sales are
accounced for on FOB basis.

(K)

L

(M)

(N)

23" ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

Employees Benefits:

The Campany has defined contribution plan for ics
employees' retirement benefits comprising of Provident
Fund & Employees' Stace Insurance Fund. The Company
and eligible employees make monthly contribution to the
above mentioned funds at a specified percentage of the
covered employees salary. The Company recognizes its
contribution as expense of the year in which the liability
is incurred.

The Company has defined benefit plan comprising of
Graruity Fund & Leave Encashmenc. The Company
contributes o the Gratuity and Leave Encashment Fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India under
its Group Gratuicy {Cash Accumulation) Scheme and
Group Leave Encashimene Scheme. The liabilicy for Gracuity
& Leave Encashment is determined on the basis of
independent actuarial valuacion done at year end. Plan
assets are measured at fair value as at balance sheet dace.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs directly actributable
to the acquisition, construction or productian of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added co the cost of those assets, uncil such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized in
statement of Profic and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Taxation:

Income tax provision comprises current tax and deferred
tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made
on the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to
the relevant assessment year. The deferred tax asset and
liability is calculaced by applying tax rate and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheer date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account
of wunabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are
recognized, only if there is a virtual certainty of its
realization, supported by convincing evidence, Deferred
tax assets on account of other timing differences are
recognised, only to the extent there is a reasonable
cercaincy of its realization. At each balance sheet dace,
the carrying amount of deferred assets is reviewed to
reassure realization.

Impairment:

The Carrying amount of assets are reviewed ar each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal as well as excernal factors. An impairment
loss will be recognizad wherever the carrying amount of
an assets exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is greater of the assets net selling
price and value in use. In assessing che value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present
value at the weighted average cost of capital. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the assets over the remaining useful
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(©)

(P)

(Q)

life. Previously recognized impairment loss is further
provided cr reversed depending on changes in
circumstances.

Provisions, Cantingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets:

The Company recognizes a provision where there is a
present obligation as a result of a past event thac probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can
be made of che amount of the abligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation that may, buc probably will nor,
reguire an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible
obligation or a presenc obligation that the likelihaod of
oudlow aof resources is remote, na provision or disclosure
is made. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed. Provisions, contingent liabilides and contingent
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Lease Transaction:

For assets taken on operarting lease, lease rentals payable
are charged to revenue.

Investments:

Investmencs are valued at cost, pravision for diminucion

3. Share Capital

(R)

(5)

(M

A Texture For Every Idea

in the value of long term invescments is made, only if such
decline is ather than cemporary.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates
and assumptions to be made chat affect the reporced
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenseas during che reporting period. Difference between
the actual results and estimaces are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/materialized,

Cash and Cash Equivalencs:

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturicies of three months or less.

Research and Development:

All revenue expenses pertaining to research and
development are charged to profic and loss accouncin the
year in which they are incurred and expenditure of capital
nature is capitalized as fixed assets, and depreciated as
per the Company's policy.

{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT
31.03.2016
Authorised:
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 2,500.00
15,25,000 Compulsary Convertible Participating Preference Share of Rs, 400/- each 6,100.00
Issued ,Subscribed and Paid Up:
462,77,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 2,313.88
Total:- 2,313.88
{a) Reconciliation of number of shares
No. of Shares ASAT
Asat31.03.2016 31.03.2016
Equity Shares:
Balance as ac the beginning of the year 4,33,05,600 218528
Add: 14,86,000 CCPPS Converted into Two 29,72,000 148.60
Equity Shares of Rs, 5/- each,
Balance as at the end of che year 4512,77,600 2,313.88
Preference Shares:
Balance as ac the beginning of the year 14,86,000 5,944.00
Add: CCPPS issued during the year - -
Less:-CCPPS Converted into Equity Shares 14,86,000 5,944.00

Balance as at the end of cthe year

{b} Rights, preferences and restrictions atcached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 5/- per share, Each shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
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the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their share
holding.

Preference Shares: The Company has one ¢lass of preference shares i.e. Compulsory Convertible Participating Preference
Share (CCPPS) having face value of Rs. 400/- each converted inta two equicy shares on 30.04.2015.These CCPPS Shareholdears
have no voting right. The CCPPS shareholders have been paid the dividend @ 5% per annum on preferental basis on conversion
in addition to dividend paid to them during pendency of the conversion.

(¢) Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregace

Shares in the Company.

No. of Shares
As at 31.03.2016

Equity Shares:
Suresh Kumar Paddar 1,56,87,324
(33.90%)
Suresh Kumar Poddar -HUF 31,010,600
(6.70%)
Manav Poddar 72,65512
(15.70%)
Westbridge Crossover Fund, LLC 29,72,000
{6.42%)

DSP Blackrock Balanced Fund 23,98,095
{5.18%)

{Rs.in Lacs)

AS AT
31.03.2016

4. Reserves and Surplus
General Reserves

Balance as at the beginning of the year [,179.40
Add: Addition During che year -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,179.40
Security Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year [,055.95
Add: On conversion of CCPPS into 29,72,000 Equity Shares (@ Rs.195/- each 5,795.40
Balance as at the end of the year 4,851.35
Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 17.922.34
Add: Profit for the year 7,719.2%
25,641.63
Less: Appropriations
: Preference Dividend @ 5% on CCPPS 297.20
¢ Interim Dividend for the year 1,527.1&
¢ Proposed Dividend for the year 92.56
: Dividend Distribution Tax on Preference Dividend @ 5% on CCPPS 60.50
: Dividend Discribution Tax on Proposed and Interim Dividend 329.74

:Transfer to General Reserve -

Balance as ac che end of che year 23,334.47
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year -
Add /{Less) : Movemenc during the year (116.17)
Balance as ac che end of che year (116.17)

Total 31,249.05
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{Rs.in Lacs)

AS AT
31.03.2014

5. Long-Term Borrowings:
Secured:
Term Leoans:

From Banks:
CANARA BANK

Term Loan Account No. 0362773000013 33.44
Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 85 equal monthly installments of Rs. 3.00 Lacs beginning from Feb. 2011.

Term Loan Account No. 0362773000013 0.92
Terms of Repaymenit : Repayable in 90 equal monthly installments of Rs. 3.00 Lacs beginning from Dec. 2009,

Nature of Security

Term Loan fram Canara Bank are secured against EMT of Land & Building situated atVillage-Jaitpura, Jaipur and
first pari-passu charge on movable and immovable assecs both present and future sicuated at Village-Jaitpura,
Jaipur wich exclusive charge of hank on fixed assets financed. The term loans from Canara Bank are further
secured by hypothecadion of raw marterial, work-in-process and finished goods and other current assets of
the Company on residual basis.

ICICI BANK LIMITED

Term Loan Account No. M157303001 311.31
Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 44.83 Lacs beginning from July 2013,

Term Loan Account No. M157302001 334.09
Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 47.73 Lacs beginning from Sept. 2013,

Term Loan Account No. MI157301097 225.68
Terms of Repayment : Repayable in 22 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 31.82 Lacs beginning from Mar. 2014.

Nature of Security

Term Loan from ICICI Bank Ltd. are secured against EMT of Land & Building situated at Khasra No. 721/
1,726,72712097,728/2,729/1,72711,726/2093 Village-Dhodsar, Singod-Khejroli Road Distt. Jaipur and first &
axclusive charge on movable fixed assets (Plant and machinery) of the Dhodsar unic financed by ICICI Bark.

Tocal 905.44

6. Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 644,33
Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances 224
Other Timing Differences 123.60
Tocal 498.49

7. Long Term Provisions

Provision for Employees Benefits

Provision for Grawity {Net of fair value of plan assets) 29.37
Provision for Leave Encashment {Net of fair value of plan assets) 3.79
Total 33.15
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{Rs.in Lacs)

AS AT
31.03.2014

8. Short -Term Borrowings

Secured

From Banks:

IDBI BANK LIMITED

Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 445.48
Nacture of Securicy

Secured against second pari-passu charge on movzble assets i.e. plant & machinery etc. situated ac Village
Jaitpura Jaipur Sikar Road, Distt. Jaipur and further secured by first pari-passu charge on current assets of

Company.

ICICI BANK LIMITED

Expeort Bills Discounted 86.08
Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 399.90

Nature of Security

Secured against first pari-passu charges on current assets of the company and further Secured by morcgage
of land & building and scruetures thereon, fixtures, fictings and all planc and machinery attached to the earth
both present and fuwure, sicuated at Khasra No., 721/1,726,727/2097,728012,729/2,727/1,726/2093 Village-
Dhodsar, Tehsil Chomu, Dist. Jaipur.

Unsecured

From Banks

YES BANK LTD.-Buyer's / Suppliers Credit against LOU 183.06
Total 1,114.52

9. Trade Payables

Trade Payables-Due to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises -
Others 3,752.60
Total 3,752.60

10. Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (refer note no. 5)

Term Loan from Banks

CANARA BANK

Account No. 0362773000013 36.00
Account No. 0362773000010 3.66
IDBI BANK LIMITED

Account No.|42673200000806 30.12
ICICI BANK LIMITED

Account No. M157303001 179.30
Account No. M 157302001 190.91
Account No. M157301097 127.28

Unpaid Dividends {Refer Note (a) below) 167.90
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{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT
31.03.2016
Other Payables
Employee Benefits Payable 289.84
Advance from Customers 361.38
Security Deposit from Contractors 30.07
Security Deposit from Employees .97
Statutory Dues including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source 185.93
Creditors for Capital Goods 86.90
Creditors for Expenses 570.99
Others 315.04
Total 2,577.29
I'l. Short-Term Provisions
Provision for Proposed Dividend 92.56
Provision for Dividend Discribution Tax on Propased Dividend 18.84
Provision for Income Tax [Net of Advance Tax paid Rs 10,138.84 Lacs ] 983.96
Total 1,095.36
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12. FIXED ASSETS
{Rs.ih Lacs )
NAME OF ASSETS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
AS AT ADDITIONS |DEDUCTIDNS| ASAT AS AT FORTHE |ADJUSTMENT| ASAT AS AT AS AT
01.04.2015 DURING DURING 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015 YEAR 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2014

THEYEAR | THEYEAR

Al TANGIBLE ASSETS

OWN ASSETS:

LAND & SITE DEVELOPMENT 606.74 - - 606.74 - - - - 606.74 606.74
BUILDINGS 4,242.45 175.24 - | 4417.69 407.71 130.17 - 537.88 | 3.879.81 [ 3,834.74
PLANT & MACHINERY IMPORTED} 8,008.86 268.01 -| 8,277.87 | 2,364.48 836.87 -| 3,201.356 | 5,076.52 | 5,64b.38
PLANT & MACHINERY {INDIGENQUS) 2,429.72 173.74 - | 2,603.48 788.63 250.08 -| 103888 | 1.564.77 | 1.641.08
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION & EQUIPMENTS | 1,401.683 108.81 - 1,510.44 288.51 144.83 - 433.44 | 1,072.00 [ 1,113.12
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 420.71 28.37 - 449.08 187.01 38.80 - 23581 213.27 223.70
MOTOR VEHICLES 528.11 325.81 43.29 810.73 73.23 71.71 11.37 133.57 677.16 454.33
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 114.38 12.52 0.53 126.37 67.42 16.17 0.31 83.28 43.08 46.85
COMPUTERS AND DATA FROCESSING UNITS 241.34 86.83 .01 322.18 161.26 54.02 h.bhé 209.72 112.44 80.05
TOTAL (4] 1798494 | 1.179.43 49.83 | 19.12454 | 4,348.25 | 154273 17.24 | 5.873.74 | 13,250.80 | 13.646.69

B) GAPITAL WORK-IN-PRDGRESS-
JAITPURA UNIT

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION & EQUIPRMENTS 0.33 11.78 12.12 - - - - - - 0.23
BUILDINGS 9.12 14.85 22.36 1.61 - - - - 1.61 4.12
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS - 14.87 9.45 5.52 - - - - 5.52

OFFICE EQUIPMENT - 0.08 0.09

PLANT & MACHINERY (INDIGENOUS) - 8.50 6.50

TOTAL: 8.45 48.20 50.52 1.13 - - - - 113 4.45

EXPANSION PROJECT-TEXTILE
DIV. (DHDDSAR)

PLANT & MACHINERY {INDIGENOUS) - 167.20 132.84 34.36 - - - - 34.36

PLANT & MACHINERY {IMPORTED} - 189.77 188.77

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIQN & EQUIPMENTS 5.31 43.59 2.3b 46.05 - - - - 46.05 5.31
BUILDING 346.34 431.88 151.09 626.91 - - - - 626.91 346.34
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS 3.07 £3.42 1.72 h8.77 - - - - h8.77 3.07
OFFICE EQUIPMENTS - 13.04 - 13.04 - - - - 13.04

TOTAL: 354.72 908.68 484.27 779.13 - - - - 779.13 354.72
TOTAL (B] 364.17 956.88 534.79 186.26 - - - - 136.26 364.17
C) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COMPUTER SOFTWARES 3.77 27147 - 281.54 0.31 £8.88 - 69.13 212.35 3.46
TOTAL {C] 3.1 27111 - 281.54 0.31 69.88 - 69.19 212.35 3.46

DI INTANGIBLE ASSETS
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

COMPUTER SDFTWARES 25342 83.89 34711 - - - - - - 253.42
TOTAL(D| 253.42 93.69 3411 - - - - - - 253.42
GRAND TOTAL [A+B+C+D) 18,616.30 | 2.507.77 931.73 | 20,192.34 | 4,34B.56 | 1.611.61 17.24 | 594293 | 14.249.41 | 14,267.74

Note: Additionin fixed assets includes Rs 65.15 Lacs for Research and Development Equipment and Machinery.
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{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT
31.03.2016
13. Non-Current Investments
Trade Investment
Equity Share (UNQUOTED)
Equity Share Quoted (valued at cost unless stated otherwise) 6.57
Less:-Provision for Diminution in Value of Non-Current Investments 2.15
Total 4.42
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 6.57
Market value of quoted investments 10.77
Agrregate provision for diminucion in value of investmencs 215
14, Long-Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good {unless otherwise stated):
Capital Advances 33.65
Security Deposits with Govt./Semi Govt, Departments 90.44
Security Deposits with Others 8.72
Total 132.81
I5. Current Investments
Invescment in Mutual Funds-Quoted 9.694.45
Total 9,694.45
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 9,694.45
Markec value of quoced investments 3,848.47
18, Inventories
At lower of cost or net realizable value
Stores and Spares {Includes Goods in Transic Rs. 0.44 Lacs) 189.79
Fuel and Coal 18.48
Raw Materials [Includes Goods in Transit Rs. 674.44 Lacs] 3,524.14
Work-in-progress 681.75
Finished Goods [Includes Goods in Transit Rs. 570.77 Lacs] 2,077.18
Total 6,491.34
17, Trade Receivables
Unsecured ,considered good
Ourstanding for a period exceading 6 Months from the date they are due for payment 400.52
Others 947023
Unsecured ,considered doubtful
Ourstanding for a period exceeding 6§ Menths from the date they are due for payment 64.28
Others -
9,935.03
Less:- Provisions for Doubtful Debts 64.28

Total 9,870.75
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{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT
31.03.2016
18. Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash-on-hand 843
Cheques-on-hand 91.47
Bank Balances
In Current Accounts 1,122.48
Fixed Deposits (Less than 3 months macuricy) 144.73
[Out of which FDR pledged with bank as margin money Rs 42.00 Lacs
1,367.11
Other Bank Balances
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 167.90
Fixed Deposits wich maturity more chan 3 months but less than |2 months 393.80
[Out of which FDR pledged with bank as margin money Rs [60.67 Lacs]
561.70
Total 1,928.81
19. Short -Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Other Loans & Advances
Advance against Expenses 96.62
Advance to Trade Payables 198.05
Prepaid Expenses 79.77
Deposits/Balances with Excise Authorities 49.25
CENVAT Receivable 140.99
Total 564.68
20. Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Accrued Incerest 20.56
Claims Receivable 547.34
Duty Draw Back Receivable 5.74
Demand Under Dispute 29.48
Total 603.11
21. Contingent Liabilities
(i) Demand under Dispute
(a) Textile Commitcee Cess 7.69
(b} Service Tax Demand 8.68
(Out of which deposited Rs. 2.50 Lacs)
(¢) Income Tax Demand 151.54
(Out of which deposited Rs. 26.98 Lacs)
{The Company has filed appeal against these demands)
(i) Leteer of Credit/Bank Guarantee 2,557.20
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{Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT
31.03.2016
22. Capital and Other Commitments
{a) Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounc (Net of Advance) 107.75
{b) Other Commitments -
23. Proposed Dividend
Final Dividend On 4,62.77.600 Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 9256
Dividend per Equity Share 0.20
24. Revenue
Sale of Products 48,656.89
Other Operating Revenue 902.82
Total 49,559.71
25, Other Income
Other Non Operating Income
Dividend on Equity Shares 0.55
Dividend on Mutual Funds 412.07
State Subsidy on Interesc 9389
Interast Income 82.01
Liabilicies written back to the extent no longer required 283
Profid/{Loss) on sale of Current Investments {12.70)
Total 578.65
24, Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Scock 4,134.08
Add:- Purchase of Raw Macerial 28,579.78
32,713.86
Less:- Closing Stock 3,524.14
Total 29,189.72
27. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress
Opening Stock:
Finished Goods 755.00
Work-in-Progress 528.08
1,283.08
Less:- Closing Stock
Finished Gaods 2,077.19
Work-in-Progress 681.75
2,758.94
{Increase)! Decrease in finished goods and worle-in-progress {1,475.848)
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{Rs.in Lacs)
ASAT

31.03.2016
28. Employees Benefits Expenses
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 2,079.06
Bonus and Ex-Gratia 180.86
Contribution to ESI (Refer note (a) below) 7.55
Conrtribution to Provident Fund (Refer note (a) below) 41.19
Directors' Remuneration 32542
Expenses on Directar's Facilities 6.85
Gracuity {Refer Note (b} below) 70.48
Staff & Labour Welfare 112.69
Leave Encashment (Refer Note (b) below ) 18.10
Total 2,842.20
Gratuity and other post employment benefit Plans
a) Defined Contribution Plan
The Company has defined contribution plan for its employees' retirement benefits comprising of provident
fund & employees’ state insurance fund. The Company and eligible employees mzke monthly contribution to
the above mentioned funds ac a specified percentage of the covered employees salary.
b) Defined Benefit Plan
The Company has defined benefic plan comprising of grawicy fund & leave encashment. The Company
contributes to the gratuity and leave encashment fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India
under its greup gratuity (Cash Accumulation) scheme and group leave encashment scheme.
Defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuacion as on 31sc March 2014 {Rs.in Lacs)
Particulars Leave Encashment Gratuicy
Assumptions
Discount Rarte 8.00% 8.00%
Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00%
Table showing changes in present value of abligacion as on 31.03.2014
Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 53.40 145.87
Interest cost 427 11.67
Current service cost 5.27 27.02
Beneafit paid {6.48) (8.47)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 4.56 3179
Present value of obligations as at end of year 65.02 207.87
Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2014
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 318 141.29
Expected return on plan assets 498 14.06
Contributions 31.56 3163
Benefits paid {6.48) (8.47)
Actuarial gainf{loss) on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 61.23 178.50
The amounts to be recognized in cthe Balance Sheet
Present value of obligations as ac the end of year 65.02 207.87

Fair value of plan assecs as ac the end of the year 61.23 178.50




M MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LTD

A Texture For Every Idea

{Rs.in Lacs)

Parciculars Leave Encashment Gratuity
Net Liability (Asset) Recognized in Balance Sheet 379 2937
Expenses Recognized in statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service cosc 9.27 27.02
Interesc Cost 427 I1.67
Expected return on plan assets {4.98} (14.06)
Net Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the year 4.56 379
Expenses recognized in statement of Profic and Loss (Net of interest Received) 13.13 56.42

{Rs. in Lacs)

Year Ended
31.03.2014
29. Finance Cost
Interest Expenses
Term Loan 73.79
CC Limits 0.87
Others 22.08
Inceresc on Shortfall of Advance income Tax 63.00
Net Loss/{Gain) on Foreign Currency Transaction and Transladon 21.83
Other Borrowing Cost 158.85
Total 340.40
30. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 1,542.73
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 68.88
Total 1,611.61
31. Other Expenses
A) Manufacturing Expenses
Consumable Tools In
Power & Fuel Charges 1,684.60
Job Labour Charges 964.87
Contribution to ESl (Job Labour) 18.47
Contribution to Provident Fund {Job Labour) 37.79
Quality & Sample Testing Charges 43.57
Excise Dury * (10.67)
Repairs to : Plant & Machinery 248.48
: Buildings 67.87
Total (A) 3,082.70
B) Administracive Expenses
Books and Pericdicals & Membership Fee 16.28
Courier, Postage and Telegrams 23.02
Insurance Premium 50.86
Legal and Professional Expenses 110.16
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{Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended
31.03.2016

Miscellaneous Expenses 36,48
Net Loss/{Gain) on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation {158.88)
Office Maintenance Expenses 122,74
Payment to Auditors:

As Audicor

Audit Fee 3.85

Tax Audic Fee 0.87

Other Services 2.83
Printing and Stationery 25.06
Repairs to Furniture and Fixwres and Office Equipment's 4.63
Telephone and Fax Charges 30.55
Travelling and Conveyance 251.87
Vehicle Maintenance 8.49
Rent, Rates and Taxes [including Wealch Tax Rs. Nil] 76.77
Charity & Donation 5.71
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 70.03
Human Skill Development Expenses 6.05
Computer/ Software Maintenance Expenses 4141
Directors' Sicting Fee 377
Recruitment Expenses 6.07
Provision for Diminution in Value of Non-Current Investments 2.15
Security Charges 97.77
Prior period Expenses 782
Miscellaneous Balances Writen Off 1.00
Loss/{Profit) on Tangible Assers Sold / Discarded 16.16
Total {B) 8463.52
C) Selling Expenses
Commission on Sales 439.19
Discount & Rebate 424.60
Freight and Cartage Durwards 593.43
Sales Promotion Expenses 148.15
Export Expenses 356.42
Total {C) 1,961.79
G.Tocal (A+B+C) 5,908.01
* Excise Duty shown under expenditure represencs the difference between excise duty on opening and
closing stock of finished goods.
32. Current Tax
Pravision for Income Tax (Current Year) 3.944.13
Less: Excess provision of taxation for the earlier years written back 0.02

Total 3,946.11
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{Rs.in Lacs)
Year Ended
31.03.2016
33. Earning Per Share
Basic
Profit after tax {(After Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax for CCPPS Holders for Rs. 357.70 Lacs) 7.361.59
Weighted average number of equity share oucstanding 46,042,114
Basic EPS (in Rs)) 15.99
Face Value 5.00
Diluted
Profit afcer tax 7.719.29
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 46,277,600
Diluted EPS {in Rs.) 16.68
Restricted to Basic EPS 15.99
Face Value 5.00
34. Research and Development Expenditure
Capital Expenditure 65.15
Revenue Expenditure 560.19
Total 625.34

35. In che apinien of the management and to the best of their knowledge and belief che value of realization of advances and ocher
currenc assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the ameount at which they are staced in the Balance Sheet.

36. Expendicture on Corporate Social Responsibility Accivities as per Section |35 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Schedule VIl thereof;

{a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year :- 2% of Rs. 8081.03 Lacs {Average net profit of the Company
for three immediate preceding financial years) i.e. Rs. 161.62 Lacs

{b) Amount spent during the year on: {Rs.in Lacs)
Particulars In Cash Yec to be Paid in Cash Total
{iy  Censtructionfacquisition Nil Nil Nil

of any asset
{iiy  On Purpose other than (i} above

I Promating health care including prevanting

healch care 250 Nil 9.50
2 Promation of education 57.27 Nil 57.27
3 Ensuring environmental sustainability |.70 Nil 1.70
4 Sanitatian Nil Nil Nil
5 Employment enhancing vocational skills Nil Nil Nil
& Promating gender equalicy and

empowering women Nil Nil Nil

Promation of rural sports .17 Nil 1.17
8 Rural development project 0.39 Nil 0.39

Total 65.00 Nil 70.03
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37 The Company is engaged in production of Coated Textile Fabric hence there is no reportable business segment and the Company
has na activity cutside India except export of Coated Textile Fabric manufactured in India. Therefore no geographical segmenc and
no segment wise information is reported.

38 Related party Disclosures
Related party information
I} Relacionship

a)  Enterprises over which person deseribed in {b) along with their relatives are able to exercise significant influence, directly and
indirectly, where cransaction has taken place.

Fucura Textiles Inc.
Mayur Leather Products Led.
b}  Key Managemenc personnel
Suresh Kumar Poddar (Chairman & Managing Director)
Manav Poddar {Execucive Director)
Arun Kumar Bagaria (Execucdive Directar)
Prahalad Sahay Jangid (Chief Financial Officer ) Upto 13.08.2015
Guman Mal Jain (Chief Financial Officer} w.ef.13.08.2015
Nikhil Saxena (Company Secretary)
Rajiv Pareel (Vice President)
2}  Transactions with Related Pardes
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Related Parties
| {a) 1 (b)

Sale of goods {including Taxes 1,235.06 Nil
Expenses:

Remuneration{ including PF contribution & expenses on Director's Facilities) Nil 364.00
Freight Recovered 47.99 Nil
Professional Fees Nil 14.87
Sale of Vehicle(Car) Nil 15.50
Balance Receivable 1,348.1 | Nil

39 Leases
As a Lessee:
Finance/Operating Lease

There is ne Finance/Operating Lease taken by the Company during the year
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40  Pursuanc to the AS-29 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Concingent Assets, the disclosures relating to provisions made in
the accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2016 are as follows:

Current year
Income Tax
Opening Balance 7.114.02
Additions during che year 4,009.13
Urtilizations during the year -
Reversals during the year -
Closing Balance 11,123.15
Wealth Tax
Opening Balance 3.95
Additions during the year -
Urtilizations during the year (3.93)
Reversals during the year {0.02)
Closing Balance -
Proposed Dividend
Opening Balance 370.22
Additions during the year 92.56
Urilizations during the year {370.27)
Reversals during the year -
Closing Balance 92.56
Tax on Dividend
Opening Balance 75.37
Additions during the year 18.84
Utilizations during the year {75.37)
Revarsals during the year -
Closing Balance 18.84
Leave Encashment
Opening Balance 22.35
Additions during the year 18.10
Urilizations during the year 6.48
Reversals during the year -
Fair Value of plan assets (30.18)
Net Provisicn 3.79
Gratuity
Opening Balance 4.58
Additions during the year 70.48
Urtilizations during the year 8.47
Reversals during the year -
Fair Value of plan assets (37.21)
Net Provision 29.37
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Current year

Diminution in Value of Nan-Current Investment
Opening Balance -
Addicions during the year 215
Ucilizations during the year -

Reversals during the year -

Closing Balance 2.15
Doubtful Debts
Opening Balance 64.28
Addicions during the year -

Ucilizations during the year -
Reversals during the year -
Closing Balance 64.28

41 Balance of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Advances are subject to confirmation.
42 The Company did rot have carvertible, partly convertible debentures as on 31st March,2016

43 The operation of wholly owned subsidiary company in USA is scarced during the financial year 2015- 18, Hence corresponding
consolidated previous year figures are not provided,

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For MADHUKAR GARG & COMPANY

Chartered Accouncants

FRN 000866C

SURESH KUMAR PODDAR TANUJA AGARWAL NIKHIL SAXENA GUMAN MAL JAIN MANISH SURI
{Chairman & Managing {Director) {Campany Secrecary) (Chief Financial Officer) (Parcner)
Direccor & CEO) DIN-00269942 M.No.74998

DIN-00022395

Place : Jaitpura {Jaipur)
Datad : 27th May2014
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NOTICE OF 23" AGM 2015-16

NOTICE OF THE TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given thac the 23rd Annual General Meeting
of Mayur Uniquoters Limited will be held on Wednesday 27 July
2016 ac | .00 AM.ac the registered office of the company situated
at Village: Jaitpura, Jaipur- Sikar Road, Tehsil: Chomu, Distt.: Jaipur
— 303704 (Rajasthan) to transact che following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
I.  To consider and adopt

{a) the audited scandalone financial statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2016,
together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon: and

{b) the audited consclidated financial statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31+, 2016
and auditor’s report thereon.

2. To declare final dividend of Rs.0.20/- per Equicy Share of Rs.
5/- each for the financial year 2015-16 and to approve the
payment of Interim Dividends of Rs. 3.30/- per Equity Share
of Rs. 5/- each, already paid during the year ended March
31,2016

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr Arun Kumar Bagaria
(DIN:00373862), who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment,

4. RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF THE
STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fic, to pass, the following resolution
as an Ordinary resolucion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
139,142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies {Audit and
Audicors) Rules, 201 4 (including any statutory modification(s)
o re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and
pursuant to the reseolution passed by the shareholders in [hg
21 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14
September, 2014, the appointment of Mfs Madhukar Garg &
Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 074998)
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hald office till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of Company to be
held in the calendar year 2017 be and is hereby ratified {for
the financial year 2016-17) and that che Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration payable o
them for the financial year 2016-17 as recommended by the
Audic committee in consultation wich che Auditors”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF THE
COST AUDITOR

To consider and if thought fi, to pass, the following resolution
as an Ordinary resolution:

M

(b}

)

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Secrion
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companles
Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactmenc(s) thereof, for the time being in force) the payment
of the remuneraticn of Rs. [,80,000 (Rupees One Lac Eighty
Thousand only} plus applicable Service Tax and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual to M/s.
Pavan Gupta & Associates, Cost Accountancs (Firm
Registration No. 101351) who were appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company,as “Cost Auditors” to conduct
the audit of the cost recerds maintained by the Company for
financial year ending 31™ March, 2017, be and is hereby ratified
and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorizad to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution”

Re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar,
Chairman and Managing Director as Executive
Chairman

To consider and if chought fit, to pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
196, 197, 198 and 203 read wich scheduleV and ocher applicable
provisions, if any, of the Cempanies Act, 2013 and the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereaf for the time being in foree) and
various other laws, rules, regulaticns as may be applicable,
from time to time, and subject to all other requisite approvals,
permissions and sanctions and subject ta such canditions as
may be prescribed by any of the concerned authoridies (if any)
while granting such approvals, the consent of the company be
and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr: Suresh
Kumar Poddar as Executive Chairman for a period of 3 (Three)
years w.e f.01 ﬂApriI 2017 (intent being chat the reappointment
will be in continuation with the current tenure wichcut any
break thereof) as per the under mentioned terms and
conditions with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and
vary the terms and conditions and / or remuneracion, subject
ta the same nhot exceeding the limits specified under Schedule
V af the Companies Act, 2013 and or any statutory
modification{s) or re-enactment(s) thereof or the ceiling as
provided in che said resolution:

Basic Salary : {a) Upto a maximum of Rs. 15,00,000/- p.m.
for the period of 017 April 2017 to 317 March, 2018

Upto a maximum of Rs. 16,00,000/- p. m. for the period of
01 April, 2018 to 31™ March, 2019.

Upto a maximum of Rs. 17,00,000/- p. m. far the period of
01 April, 2019 to 31™ March, 2020.
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Minimum Remuneratian:

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any
financial year during the period of his office as Execucive
Chairman , the Company has ho profits ot its profits are
inadequate, the Company may, subject to the requisite
approvals, pay Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar remuneration by
way of salary, allowances, perquisites not exceeding the
maximum limics laid down in Section Il of Part Il of Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to Para | of
Section Il of Part |l of Schedule XlI| to the Companies Act,
1956}, as may be agreed ta by che Board of Directors and Mr.
Suresh Kumar Poddar.

{II) Commission: 1% Commission on the net profit of the
Company, computed in the manner laid down in the
Companies Acg, 2013. The commission will be paid subject
to overall limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{lIl) Perquisices: In addidon o above the following perquisites
not exceeding the overall ceiling prescribed under schedule
W, annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to
the Executive Chairman:

CATEGORY (A)

a) Housing: Free furnished residential accommaodation with
gas, eleccricity, water, furnishing and maintenance charges. If
the Company does not provide residential accommodation,
he will be paid such house allowance as the Board may
decide from time to time subject to that the same does not
exceed 60% of the basic salary and expenses on gas, elecericity,
watet; furnishing and maintenance charges will be borne by
the Company.

by Medical Expenses Reimbursemenc: Reimbursemenc of
expenses actually incurred far self and family and / or
allowance will be paid as decided by the Board from time to
time.

c)  Llub Fees: Fees payable subject to a maximum of two clubs.

d)  LeaveTravel Concession: For self and family including dependencs,
once in a year, as decided by the Board from time to time.

e) Personal Accident Insurance:As per the rules of the Company.
fy  Servanc allowance: Not exceeding Rs. 24000/~ per annum.
CATEGORY (B)

In addition to the perquisites, Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar shall also
be entitled to the following benefits, which shall not be included
in the computation of ceiling on ramuneration mendoned above,
as permissible by law:

{iy Contribution to Provident Fund / Superannuation Fund or
Annuity Fund will not be included in the computation of
ceiling on perguisites to the extent these, either singly or
put cogether, are not taxable under the Income Tax Act,
1961.

(i) Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month’s basic salary
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for each compleced year of service.
{iii) Leave and Leave Encashment as per the rules of the Company.
CATEGORY {C)

a) Conveyance: Free use of the Company's car with driver
Personal use of car shall be billed by the Company.

b) Telephone: Free telephone facility at residence. Personal
long distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

¢} Reimbursemenc of Expenses: Apart from the remuneration
as aforesaid, Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, Executive Chairman
shall also be entitled te reimbursement of such expenses
as are genuinely and actually incurred in efficient discharge
of his ducies in connection with the business of the
Company.

d) Sitting Fee etc.: No sitting fee shall be paid to Mr. Suresh
Kumar Poddar, Executive Chairman for actending the
meetings of Board of Directors or any committee thereof.
He shall be liable to retire by rotation subject to necassary
alterations in Articles of Associations.

e]  Where in any financial year, the company has no profits or
its profits are inadequate, the foregoing amount of
remuneration and benefits shall be paid to Mr, Suresh Kumar
Poddar, Executive Chairman subject to the applicable
provisions of ScheduleV of the Companies Acc 201 3.

{IV}Other Terms & Conditions:

(in  Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar will perform the duties and
exercise the powers, which from time to time may be
assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

{(ii) Either party giving the ocher party one-month’s prior
notice in writing to that effect may terminate che
agreement,

{iii) If ac any dime Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar ceases to be
Director of the Company for any reason whatsoever,
he shall cease to be the Executive Chairman.

(iv) The terms & conditions as above including
remuneration, may be altered / varied from time to
time by the Board of Directors as it may, in its absoluce
discretion, deem fit within che maximum amount payable
to the appaintee in accordance with ScheduleV annexed
to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from
time to time or any ocher relevant Scatutory
enactment(s) theraof in this regard subject to that che
same does not exceed the ceiling as provided in the
said resolution.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any
statutory amendment, madification or relaxation by the
Central Government to Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013, the Bozard of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
vary or increase the remuneration including salary,
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commission, perquisites, allowances, ete. within such
prescribed limit subject to thac the same does not exceed
the ceiling as provided in the said resclution and the said
terms of reappointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar,
Executive Chairman of the Company, be suitably amended
to give effect to such modification, relaxation or variation
without any further reference to the members/sharehclders
of the Company in general meeting”.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be
necessary, praper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution”.

Re-appointment of Mr.Arun Kumar Bagaria asWhole-
time Director

To consider and if thought fit, ta pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVEDTHAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
196, 197, and 203 read with scheduleV and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel} Rules, 2014 (including any scatucory
meodification{s) or re-enaciment(s) for the cime being in
force) and various other laws, rules, regulations as may be
applicable, from time to time, and subject to all other requisite
approvals, permissions and sanctions and subject to such
conditions as may be prascribed by any of the concerned
authorities (if any) while granting such approvals, the consent
of the company be and is hereby accorded to the re-
appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria as Whole Time
Director for a period of 3 {Three) years w.ef. 01" August
2016 (intent being that the reappointment will be in
continuation with the current tenure without any break
thereof) as per the under mentioned terms and conditions
with liberty to the Board of Directors to alcer and vary the
terms and conditions and / or remuneration, subject to the
same not exceeding the limits specified under ScheduleV of
the Companies Act,201 3 and or any starucory medification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof or the ceiling as provided in the
said resolution:

Basic Salary:

Upto a maximum of Rs. 8,00,000/- p. m. for the period of
017 Augusc 2016 to 31 |uly, 2017

Upto a maximum of Rs. 09,00,000/- p. m. for the period of
017 August, 2017 to 317 July, 2018.

Upto a maximum of Rs. 10,00,000/- p. m. for the period of
017 August, 2018 to 317 July, 2019.

Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any
financial year during che period of his office as Whaole Time
Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company may, subject to the requisite
approvals, pay Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria remuneration by way
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of salary, allowances, perquisites not exceeding the maximum
limits laid down in Section Il of Part Il of ScheduleV to the
Companies Act, 2013 {corresponding to Para | of Section |l
of Part Il of Schedule XlIl to the Companies Act, 1956), as
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Arun
Kumar Bagaria as Whole Time Director

{II) Commission: 1% Commission on the net profit of the
Company, computed in the manner laid down in che
Companies Act, 2013. The commission will be paid
subject to overall limit prescribed under the Companies
Ace, 2013.

{111} Perquisites: In addition to above the following perquisites
not exceeding the averall ceiling prescribed under schedule
W, annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to
the Whole Time Director:

CATEGORY (A)

a) Housing: Free furnished residencial accommodation wich
gas, electricicy, water, furnishing and maintenance charges. If
the Company does not provide residential accommaodation,
he will be paid such house allowance as the Board may
decide from time to cime subject to that che same does not
exceed 60% of che basic salary and expenses on gas, electricicy,
water, furnishing and maintenance charges will be borne by
the Company.

b) Medical Expenses Reimbursement: Reimbursement of
expenses actually incurred for self and family and / orallowance
will be paid as decided by the Board from time to time.

c)  Club Fees: Fees payable subject to a maximum of two clubs.

d)  Leave Travel Concession: For self and family including
dependents, once in a year, as decided by the Board from
time to time.

e)  Personal Accident Insurance:As per the rules of the Company.
fi Servant allowance: Not exceeding Rs, 24000/- per annum,
CATEGORY (B)

In addition to the perquisites, Mr Arun Kumar Bagaria shall also
be entided to the following benefics, which shall not be included
in the computation of ceiling on remuneration mentioned above,
as permissible by law:

(it  Contribution to Provident Fund [ Superannuation Fund or
Annuity Fund will not be included in the compuration of ceiling
on perquisites to the extent these, either singly or put tagecher,
are not taxable under che Income Tax Acg, 1981,

(i} Gratuity payable shall not excead half a month’s basic salary
for each completed year of sarvice.

(iii}) Leave and Leave Encashment as per the rules of the Company.
CATEGORY (C)

a) Conveyance: Free use of the Company’s car with driver,
Personal use of car shall be billed by the Company.
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b}

c)

d}

Telephone: Free telephone facility at residence. Personal
long distance calls shall be billed by che Company.

Reimbursement of Expenses: Apart from the remuneration
as aforesaid,Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria asWhole Time Director
shall alsa be entitled to reimbursement of such expenses as
are genuinely and actually incurred in efficienc discharge of
his duties in connection with the business of the Company.

Sicting Fee ete: Mo sicting fee shall be paid te Mr. Arun
Kumar Bagaria as Whole Time Director for attending the
meetings of Board of Directors or any committee chereof.
He shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Where in any financial year, the company has no profits or
its profits are inadequate, the foregoing amount of
remuneration and benefits shall be paid to Mr Arun Kumar
Bagaria as Whole Time Director subject to the applicable
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,

(IV)Other Terms & Conditions:

(i) Mr. Arun Kurmnar Bagaria will perform the ducies and
exercise the powers, which from time to time may be
assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

{ii} Either parcy giving the other party one-month’s prior
notice in writing to that effect may terminate the
agreement.

(i) If at any time Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria ceases to be
Director of the Company for any reason whatsoever,
he shall cease to be the Whaole Time Director.

{iv) The cerms & condicions as above including
remuneration, may be altered / varied from dme to
time by the Board of Directors as it may, in its absolute
diseretion, deem fit within the maximum amaount payable
to the appoincee in accordance with ScheduleV annexed
to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from
time toe ctime or any other relevant Statutory
enactment(s) thereof in this regard subject to that the
same does not exceed the ceiling as providad in the
said resolution.

“RESOLYED FURTHER THAT in the event of any
statutory amendment, modification or relaxation by the
Central Government to Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
vary or increase the remuneration including salary,
cammission, perquisites, allowances, etc. within such
prescribed limit subject te that the same does not exceed
the ceiling as provided in the said resolution and the said
terms of reappointment of Mr.Arun Kumar Bagaria as Whole
Time Director of the Company, be suitably amended to give
effect to such modification, relaxation or variation without
any further reference to the members/shareholders of the
Company in general meeting”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be

M
a)

{b)

{c)
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necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution”.

Appointment of Mr. Manav Poddar as Whole-time
Director! Managing Direccor

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolucion as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to che provisions of
Sections 196, 197, and 203 read with schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 {including any statucory
modification{s) or re-enactment(s} for the time being in
force) and various other laws, rules, regulations as may be
applicable, from dme to time, and subjecc to all other requisice
apptovals, permissions and sanctions and subject to such
conditions as may be prescribed by any of the concerned
authorities {if any) while granting such approvals, the consent
of the company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment
as a director designaced as Whole Time Director {Execucive
Director) of the Company for tenure as under:

Whole Time Director - 22” June, 2016 to 31 March, 2017
(Extecutive Director)

Managing Directar - 017 April, 2017 to 21™ june, 2019

(incent being that the appointment will be in concinuation
with the current tenure wichout any break cherecf) as per the
under mentioned terms and conditions with libercy to the
Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions
and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the
limits specified under Schedule V of the Companies Acce, 2013
and or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s}
thereof or the ceiling as provided in the said resolution:

Basic Salary:

Uplja a maximum of Rs. 10.00 Lacs /- p.m. for the peried of
22" |une, 2016 to 31" March, 2017

Upto a maximum of Rs. 11.00 lacs/~ p.m. for the period of
017 April, 2017 to 317 March, 2018

Upto a maximum of Rs. 12.00 lacs - p.m. for the period of
017 April, 2018 to 217 June, 2019

Minimum Remuneration:

Netwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any
financial year during the period of his office as Whole Time
Director/Managing Director, the Company has no profits or
its profits are inadequate, the Company may, subject to the
requisite approvals, pay Mr. Manav Peddar remuneracion by
way of salary, allowances, perquisites not exceeding the
maximum limics laid down in Section Il of Parc |l of Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to Para | of
Section Il of Part |l of Schedule Xl co che Companies Act,
|956),as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr:
Manav Poddar as Whole Time Director/ Managing Director
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{II) Commission: 1% Commission on the net profit of the
Company, computed in the manner laid down in che
Companies Acg, 2013. The commission will be paid subject
to overall limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

{111} Perquisites: In addition to above the following perquisites
not exceeding the averall ceiling prescribed under schedule
V, ahhexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to
the Whole Time DirectorfManaging Director.

CATEGORY (A)

a) Housing: Free furnished residential accommaodation with
gas, electricicy, water; furnishing and maintenance charges. If
the Company does not provide residential accommodation,
he will be paid such house allowance as the Board may
decide from time to time subject to that the same does not
excead 60% of che basic salary and expenses on gas, electricicy,
watet, furnishing and maincenance charges will be borne by
the Company.

b) Medical Expenses Reimbursement: Reimbursement of
expenses actually incurred for self and family and / orallowance
will be paid as decided by the Board from time co time.

¢)  Club Fees: Fees payable subject to a maximum of two clubs.

d) LeaveTravel Concession: For self and family including dependents,
ohce ih a year; as decided by the Board from time to time.

e) Personal Accidenc Insurance:As per che rules of the Company.
fy  Servant allowance: Not exceeding Rs. 24000/- per annum.
CATEGORY (B)

In addition to the perquisites, Mr. Manav Poddar shall also be
entitled to the following benefits, which shall not be included in
the compucation of ceiling on remuneration mentioned above, as
permissible by law:

{  Contribution to Provident Fund / Superannuation Fund or
Annuity Fund will not be included in the computation of ceiling
on perquisites to the extent these, either singly or put together,
are not taxable under the Income Tax Acg, 1961

(i} Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a monch’s basic salary
for each completed year of service.

(iii) Leave and Leave Encashment as per the rules of the Company.
CATEGORY (C)

a) Conveyance: Free use of the Company's car with driver.
Personal use of car shall be billed by the Campany.

b) Telephone: Free telephone facilicy at residence. Personal
leng distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

¢)  Reimbursement of Expenses: Aparc from the remuneration
as aforesaid, Mr. Manav Poddar as Whole Time Direccorf

Place: Jaipur
Date: 22 June, 2016

Managing Director shall also be enticled to reimbursement
of such expenses as are genuinely and actually incurred in
efficient discharge of his duties in connection with the
business of the Company.

d} Sitting Fee etc.: No sitting fee shall be paid to Mr. Manav
Poddar as Whole Time Director / Managing Director for
actending the meetings of Board of Directors or any
committee thereof, He shall be liable to retire by rotation,

e}  Where in any financial year, the company has no profits or
its profits are inadequate, the foregoing amount of
remuneration and benefits shall be paid to Mr.Manav Poddar
as Whole Time Director/ Managing Director subject to the
applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.

{IV)Other Terms & Conditions:

(i) Mr.Manav Poddar will parform the duties and exercise the
powers, which from time to time may be assigned to ot
vested in him by the Board of Directors of the Company,

{iiy Eicher party giving the other party one-month’s prior
notice in writing to that effect may terminate the
agreement.

(iii) If at any time Mr.Manav Poddar ceases to be Direcror of
the Company for any reason whatsoever, he shall cease
to be the Whole Time Director/ Managing Director,

(iv) The terms & conditions as above including remuneration,
may be altered / varied from time to time by the Board of
Directors as it may, in ics absolute discretion, deem fic
within the maximum amount payable to the appointee in
accordance with Schedule V annexed to the Companies
Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time or any
other relevant Statutory enacctmenc(s) thereof in chis
regard subject o that the same does not excead the
ceiling as provided in the said resolution.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any
statutory amendment, modification or relaxation by the
Central Government to Schedule V of the Companies Acc,
2013, the Board of Directors be and is hereby autherized to
vary or increase the remuneration including salary,
cammission, perquisites, allowances, ete. within such
prescribed limit subjecc to that che same does not exceed
the ceiling as provided in the said resclution and the said
terms of appointment of Mr. Manav Poddar as Whaole Time
Director! Managing Director of the Company, be suitably
amended to give effect to such madification, relaxation or
variation without any further reference to the members!
shareholders of the Company in general meeting’.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be
and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedienc to give effect co this Resolution™.

By arder of the Board of Directors
Nikhil saxena
Company Secretary
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NOTES. 9. The dividend on Equity Shares of the Company if declared,
‘ will be made payable wichin 30 days of the date of declaracion

I. A member entitled to attend and voce at the Annual i.e. 27.07.2016 to those members whose names shall appear

General Meeting (the “Meeting/AGM”) is entitled on the Companys Register of Members and in respect of
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead the shares held in demarcerialized form, the dividend will be
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of paid to membears whose names are furnished by National
the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
in order to be effective, should be duly starmped, filled Services {India) Limited as beneficial owners as on that date.
1] ] 1]

signed and must, be deposited at the registered office 0
of the Company not less than forty-eight hours hefore

the commencementc of the Meeting.

. The Company has cransferred the unpaid or unclaimed
dividends declared up to financial years 2007-08 {Final
Dividend), from time to time on due dates, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (the |EPF) astablished by che
Central Government, Pursuant to the provisions of Investor
Education and Protection Fund {Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with
companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members nat
exceeding fifty and holding in che aggregace not more
than ten percent of cthe total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights.

A member holding more chan ten percent of the decails of unpzid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting Company on the website of the Company, as alsc on the
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such website of che Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

person shall not act as a proxy for any other person ar

shareholder: I'l. In arder to provide protection against fraudulent encashment

of dividend warrants, Members are requested to intimace

2. The Statement setting out matarial facts pursuanc to section the Company's Registrars & Transfer Agents particulars of
102{1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which sers out details their Bank Account viz. Name of Bank, Name of Branch,
relating to Special Business at the Meeting, it appended Complete address of the Bank with Pin Code Number,
hereto. Account cype — whether Saving Account or Current Account

and Bank Account Number.
3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized

reprasentatives to actend the Meeting are requested to send 2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI) has
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their mandaced the submission of Paermanent Account Number
representative to attend and vote on their behzalf at the (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
Meeting. holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested

. . ) to submit their PAN ta cheir Depository Participanes with
4. Members/Proxies/ Autharized represencatives are whotm they are maintaining their demac accounts. Members

requested to bring their Attendance Slip along with cheir halding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the
copy of Annual Report to the Meerting. Company /RTA.

5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 13
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote.

Members desirous of making nomination as permicted under
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
physical shares held by them in the Company, can make
nominatians in Form SH-13, which can be procured from
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s Beetal Financial
and Computer Services {F) Ltd. The Members holding shares
in demat form may contact their respective deposicory
participants for such nominations.

6. The Regiscer of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding maintained under section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which the Directors are interested
maincained under the section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the 14,

AGM Members whe held shares in physical form in multiple folios

in idencical names or joint accounts in the same order of
names are requested to send the share certificates to the
Company’s Registrars and transfer Agents, M/s Beetal
Financial and Computer Services (P) Ltd. (RTA), for
consolidation into a single folio.

7. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are
requested to write their Client ID and DP ID Numbers and
those who hold shares in physical form are requested to
wrice their Folio Number in the Accendance Slip for ateending

the Meeting. 5. It has been observed that some members have still not

surrendered their old Share Certificates for Equity Shares

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
of Rs. 10/- each for exchange with the then new Share

Company will remain closed from 05™ July, 2016 to 06 July, i '
2016 {both days inclusive) for annual closing and determining Certificates for Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each. The Members

the entitlement of the members to the dividend, if declared are once again reguested to surrender the old Share
at the AGM. Certificates for Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the RTA or




20.

21

22,

23,

24.

the Company to exchange for the Equity Shares of Rs. 5/-
each.

. With a view to using nacural resources, we request

Shareholders to update their e-mail addresses, with their
depository participants to enable Company to send
Communications electronically.

The Notice of the Meeting along with the Annual Report
2015-16 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members
whose e-mail addresses are regiscered with the Company/
Depositories, unless any Member has requested fara physical
copy of the same, For Members who have not registered
their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the
permicted mode.

As required under SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the
Stock Exchanges, the relevant details of Director reciring by
rotation and/or seeking re-appointment ac the ensuing AGM
are furnished as annexure to the Notice of AGM.

The documents referted to in the proposad resolutions are
available for inspection at che registered office of the
company during working hours between 10.00 A\M.and |.00
PM. except on holidays.

Queries, if any, on accounts and operations may please be
sent to the company 7 days in advance of the meering so that
the answers can be made available at the meeting.

A copy of Audited Financial Statements (scandalone and
consolidated) for the year ended 3|st March, 2016 together
with the Board's and Auditor’s Report thereon are enclosed
herewith.

8 Manoj Maheshwari, Practicing Company Secretary, Jaipur
has been appointed as a scrutinizer for the conduct of e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner and also for
polling at the time of 23" Annual General Meecding of che
Company.

Company’s website www.mayuruniquoters.com will be
uploaded with the above documents well before the
mandatory period and the copies of the aforesaid documents
will be available for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company also.

E-VOTING FACILITY

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies
{(Management and Administracion) Amendment Rules, 2015
and Regulation 44 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Diisclosures
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, Mayur Uniquoters Limiced
{(“*MUL™ is pleased to provide to the membars, facility to
exercise their right to vote at the AGM by electronic means
and the busihess may be transacted through e-Voting
Services. National Securities Depository Limited
{*NSDL") will provide the facility of casting the votes
by che members by using an electronic voting system
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from a place ather than venue of the AGM (*remote
e-voting”).

Mayur Uniquaters Limited has cherefore approached NSDL for
providing e-voting services through our e-voting platform. In this
regard, your Demat Account/Folio Number has been enrclled by
the Company for your participation in e-voting on resolutions
placed by the Company on e-Voting system.

The Notice of the AGM of the Company inter alia indicating the
process and manner of e-Voting process along wich printed
Actendance Slip and Proxy Form can be dewnloaded from the
link  hceps Uwww.evoting.nsdl.com or http:!!

WwWw.mayu runiquoter‘s.com

The e-voting period commences a¢ 10.00 A M. on Saturday,
23rd July, 2016 and ends at 05.00 PM. on Tuesday, 26™ July,
2016. During chis period shareholders of the Company, may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
for voting thereafrer. Once the vate on a resclution is cast by the
shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their
shares of the paid up equity share capical of the Company as on
the cuc-off dace i.e. 20¢ July, 2016.

The facility for voting chrough Ballot / Poll Paper shall be made
available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who
have not cast their vote by remote e-voting, can exercise their
right at the meeting through Ballot / Poll paper.

The procedure to lagin to e-Voting website is given below:

I. Open the zctached PDF file “MULnotice remote e-
vocing, pdf* giving your Client ID (in case you are holding
shares in demat mode) or Folio No. {in case you are holding
shares in physical mode) as password, which contains your
“Wser ID" and “Password for e-voting”. Please noce that the
password is an initial password. You will not receive chis
PDF file if you are already registered with NSDL for e-
voring

2. Launch internet browser by typing the URL https:/!
www.evating.nsdl.com

3. Click on “Shareholder - Login”.

4. Put User ID and password as initial password noted in step
(I} above and Click Login. If you are already registered with
NSDL for e-vating then you can use your existing user ID
and password. If you forgot your password, you can reset
your passward by using “Fargot User Derails/Password”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com

5. Password Change Menu appears. Change the password with
new password of your choice with minimum § digits/
characters or combination thereof.

6. Home page of remote “e-Voting” opens. Click on e-Voting:
Accive Voting Cycles.
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7. Select"EVEN" of “Mayur Uniquoters Limited”. Members can
cast their vote 10.00 AM. on Saturday, 23 July, 2016 and
ends at 05.00 PM. on Tuesday, 26™ July, 2016

Note: e-Vating shall nhoc be allowed beyond said time.
8. Now you are ready for “e-Voting” as“CastVote" page opens.

9. Last your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on
"Submic” and also “Confirm”, when prompted.

10. Institutional shareholders {i.e., other than Individuals, HUF,
NRI ecc.) are also required co send scanned copy (PDF/PG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority Letcer
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote,
to the Serutinizer through e-mail: es.vmanda@gmail.com with
a copy marked tc evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Members may please note the following:

A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his
right to vote through remote e-voting but he shall not be allowed
to vote again at the AGM.

A person, whose name is recarded in the register of members or
in the regiscer of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories
as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facilicy of
remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through Ballot
Paper.

The Chairman , at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the
resolutions an which voting is to be held, shall allow voting with
the assistance of scrucinizer, by use of Balloc / Poll Paper for all
those members wheo are present at the AGM but have not cast
their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, shall
first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock
the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of ac
least cwo witnesses not in the employment of the Company and
shall make, not later than 48 (Forty Eighc) hours of the conclusion
of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s repert of the total votes
cast in favour ar againse, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and
declare the result of che voting forthwith,

Other informacion:

* Login to e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful actempts to key-in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through ‘Forgot Password’
option available on the site to reset the same.

*  Your login id and passwaord can be used by you exclusively
for e-voting on the resolutions placed by the companies in
which you are the shareholder.

= |t is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and rake utmost care to keep ic
confidencial.

*  NSDLis pleased to infarm you chac NSDL has new integrated
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its e-Services website (https://eservices.nsdl.com/) wich the
aforesaid e-Voting system of NSDL, which enables you as a
registered User of IDeAS facility to also access e-Voring
systemn of NSDL for casting your votes by using your existing
login credentials viz.; User ID and password of IDeAS facilicy.
Thus, you would not be required to log-in to e-Voting system
separately for casting votes in respect of the resolutions of
companies.

In case of any gueries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting user manual for
members available at the Downloads sections of https:i}
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL ac the following coll
free no.: 1800-222-990,

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) FORMING PART
OF THE NOTICE.

The following Statemenc sets out all macerial facts relating to the
Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

Iterm No, 5:

The Board, on the recommendation of Audit Commitcee, has
approved the appointment of M/sPavan Gupra & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101351} to conduct the audit
of the cost records of the Company, for the financial year ending
March 31, 2017.

In accordance with che provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with The Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors,
has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an
Ordinary Resclution as sec out at leem No. 5 of the notice for
radification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Audicors for
the financial year ending March 31st, 2017,

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
/ their relatives are,in any way, concerned ar interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of the
Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in
the Notice for approval by the members.

Item No:- 6

Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, who was appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director by the Members to hold office upte 31.03.2017.
Hence his re-appointment as Exescutive Chairman requires
approval of Members by the means of Special Resolution.

The Board hereby recommends the appointmenc of Mr. Suresh
Kumar Poddar as the Executive Chairman of the Company with
effect from 01.04.2017 for a period of 3 years, The Company,
during the year, has achieved growth with its turnover crossing
Rs. 501.99 crore (on standalone basis). Moreaver, the Company
is aggressively concencrating on its expansion plans besides
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exploring opportunities boch in India and abroad. Since chere has
been a considerable increase in the duties and responsibilicies
performed by the Managing Director and after considering the
prevailing managerial remuneration in industry, the Board of
Directors at their meecing held an 27.05.2016. on the
recommendations made by the nomination and remuneration
committee, has approved the proposal to reappoint Mr, Suresh
Kumar Poddar as an Executive Chairman of the Company on
terms and conditions of his appointment as mentioned in the
Resoluticn.

Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar being appointee together with cheir
relative may be deemed to be concerned or interasted in che said
resolution. None of ather directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company, or their relatives except Mr. Manav Poddar and
Mr.Arun Kumar Bagaria being the relative is interested in the said
resolution.

The Board recommends the Special resolution as set sut in the
Notice for approval by the membaers.

Item No:- 7

The Board hereby recommends the appointment of Mr. Arun
Kumar Bagaria as Whole Time Director of the Company with
effect from 01.08.2016 for a period of 3 Years. The Company,
during the year, has achieved remarkable growth wich ics turmaover
crossing Rs. 501.99 crore {on standalone basis). Moreover, the
Company is aggressively concentrating on its expansion plans
besides exploring cpportunities both in India and abread. Since
there has been a considerable increase in the duties and
responsibilities performed by the Whole Time Director and after
considering the prevailing managerial remuneration in indusery,
the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 27.05.2016, on
the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, has approved the proposal to reappoint Mr. Arun
Kumar Bagaria as a Whole Time Direccor of the Company at
terms and condicions of his appointmenc mention in che resolution
and the propesed remuneration are well in conformity with che
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with

Place: Jaipur
Darce: 22" June, 2016

ScheduleV to the said Act, Cencral Gavernment approval is not
necessary.

Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria being appointee together with their
relative may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the said
resolution. None of other directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company, or their relatives except Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar
and Mr. Manav Poddar being the relative is interested in the said
resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in
the Notice for approval by the members.

Item No:- 8

Mr. Manav Poddar was appeinted as an additional director of the
Company w.e.f 09.06.201 6. The Board of Directors at the meeting
held on 22.06.2018, on the recomendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, have approved the appointment
of Mr.Manav Poddar,as aWheoleTime Director/ Managing Director
of the company on terms and condition as mendoned in the
Agenda lcem No-8 for tenure as under:

Whole Time Director - 22™ June, 2016 to 31 March, 2017
{Executive Director)

Managing Direccor - 0™ April, 2017 to 2I5tjune. 2019.

The terms and conditions and the proposed remuneration are
well in confarmity with the relevanc provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Schedule V to the said Act, Central
Government approval is not necessary.

Mr. Manav Poddar being appointee together with their relacive
may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the said
resolution. None of other directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company, or their relatives except Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar
and Mr.Arun Kumar Bagaria being che relative is interested in the
said resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in
the Notice for approval by the members.

By order of the Board of Direccors
Nikhil saxena
Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF 23f° AGM

Informacion pursuant to Regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Scock Exchanges in respect of the Director who is
proposed ro be re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Maeting to be held on 27% July, 2014:

Name of Director

Age

Date of Appointment

Dresignation

Expertise in specific functional area

Qualification

Directorship in other comparnies as on 31/03/2016

Member/Chairman of the Committee of the Board of other
Companies as on 31/03/2016

Ne of shares held in the Company as on 31/03/2016

Name of Director
Age

Drate of Appointment
Dresignation

Expertise in specific functional area

Qualification
Directorship in other companies as on 31.03.2014

Member/Chairman of the commictees of the Board of ocher
coinpanies as on 31.03.2016

No. of shares held in company as 31.03.2016

Name of Director

Age

Date of Appeintment

Designation

Expertise in specific functional areas

Qualification

Directorship in other companies as on 09/06/2016

Member/Chairman of the Commictee of the Board of other
Companies as on 31/03/2014

Number of shares held in the company as on 9/06/2016

Suresh Kumar Poddar
&9
01.04.2017

Chairman and Managing Director

B.Se.

Sterling Buildhome Private Limited

Nil
1,56,64,312

Arun Kumar Bagaria
43 years

30.06.2007

Whole Time Director

19 years experience in crading business with exposure
in all commercial activities

MBA, {Marketing)
Nil

Nil
5,50,000

Mr. Manav Paddar

42 years

09.06.2016

Director

Total Quality Management and Expart Marketing
B.Com. {(Hons.)

Nil

Nil
72,65,912
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED

CIN: LISI0IR]I992PLCO06952
Registered Office: Village:-|aitpura, Jaipur-Sikar Road, Teh.:-Chormu, Disce:- Jaipur—303704 (Rajaschan), India
Phone No: 91-1423-224001, Fax:- 91-1423-224420, Website: www.mayuruniquoters.com

{PLEASE FILL THIS ATTENDANCE SLIF AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL)
Jeint sharehalders may obtain additianal slip at the venue af the meeting

DP |d* Folic Na.

Client Id* Nao. of Shares
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER/PROXY (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

| hereby record my presence ac che 23" Annual General Meeting [AGM] of the Company beaing held on Vvednasday, 27th July, 201& ac 11:00
AM. ac the registered office of the Company situated at Village:-Jaitpura, JaipurSikar Road, Teh.:-Chomu, Distc.:- Jaipur—303704 {Rajasthan), India

*Applicable for Mambers holding shares in elsccronic farm. Signacure of Shareholder/Proxy

Nate - Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring o attend che meetings should hring histher copy of Annual Report for reference ac the meedng.

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(8) of the Companies
Acc, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LIMITED

CIN: LI8IOIRJ1992PLC0OO6952
Regd. Office: Villaga:-Jaitpura, Jaipur-Sikar Road, Teh.:-Chomu, Diste:- Jaipur-303704 (Rajaschan), India
Fhaone Na: 91-1423-224001, Fax:- 91-1423-224420, Webhsite: www.mayuruniquoters.com

Name of the Member(s}: e-mail |d:

Sz adds
eglstered address Folio Na.#Clien Id:

*DP I4:
1MWe, being the Member(s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
1) of having e-mail 1d or failing him
2y of having e-mail 1d or failing him
3) of having e-mail 1d or failing him

and whose signature(s) are appended below as miy/our proxy to aLE:ﬁnd and vore {on a pell} for mefus and on my/our behalf ac the 13“1 Annual
General Meeting of the Caompany, to be held an Wednesday, 27 July, 2016 ac | 1:00 A M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at
Jaipur-Sikar Road, Village: |aitpura, Tehsil: Chomu, Disct.: Jaipur-303704 (India) and at any adjournment chareof in respect of such resoludions as are
indicated below:

** | wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box belaw:

Resa. Descriptian For* Against®
Na.

1. To censider and adapt

(2) the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March
31=, 2016, together with the reparts of the Bazrd of Directors and Auditars thereon;

{b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for cthe financial year ended March
31= 2016 and auditor's report thereon.

2 To declare final dividend of Rs. 0.20/- per Equity Share of Rs. 5/- each for the financial year 2015-14 and
to approve the payment of Interim Dividends of Rs, 3.30/- per Equity Share of Rs. 5/- each, already paid
during the year ended March 31, 2016

3 To appoint a Director in place of Mr Arun Kumar Bagaria (DIN:00373862), who retires by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4 Ratification of appointment of the statutory auditors of the company

5 Ratificacion of ramuneration of cthe cost audicor

[ Re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Poddar, Chairman and Managing Director as an Executive Chairman
7 Ra-appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Bagaria as Whaole-time Direccor

g Appointment of Mr, Manay Poddar as Whole-time Director/ Managing Director

* Applicable for investars holding shares in electronie form. P.T.C.
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Mayur Uniquoters / 148
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/ Kukas Bandikui
Jobner - Bamanpuri
Sambhar ‘Jaipur 21
?', Y Dausa
Phulera P
J_,,/ ,—OJalpur International
Narains ~Bagru Airport
Affix
I/~ Rupee
Signed chis ... day of ... 2016. Signature of shareholder Revenue
Stamp
Signature of firsc proxy halder Signacure of secondpraxy holder Signacure of chird proxy holder

Notes:

(1} This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and depasited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

{2} A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

) A person can act as a proxy oh behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in che aggregace not more than 10% of the toral
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such persen shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

*+(4) This is only optional, Please put a ‘" in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicaced in the Box. If you leave the
‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as helshe
thinks appropriate.

{5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

{6) In che case of jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all che joincholders should be stated.
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MAYUR UNIQUOTERS LTD

Manufacturers of Artificial Leather/PVC Vinyl

Factory & Registered Office
Mayur Uniguoters Lid
Village Jaitpura, Jaipur-Sikar Read, |aipur-303704 {Raj.) India
Tel: +91-1423-224001; Fax: +91-1423-224420
Email: info@mayur.biz

Bangalore Office: Delhi Office: Jaipur Office:

Mayur Uniqueters Ltd Mayur Uniquoters Ltd Mayur Uniguaoters Led
#264, 2™ Floor, 19" Main, I''N' Block, #3909, 9" Floor, R.G . Trade Tower, #18, 4" Floor, Lakshmi Complex, g
Rajajinagar, Bangalore — 560010 Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, M. Road, Jaipur-302001 {Raj.) India =
Tel: +91-80-32955073, 4171 1881 New Delhi— | 10034 Tel: +91-141-2361132 a
. Fax: +91-80- 23474334 Tel: +91-11-45082516 Fax: +91-14]-2365423 3
Email: mayurblr@mayur.biz Email: delhi@mayurbiz Email: front.office@mayurbiz a
WwWW.MayLuruniquoters.cant F




